ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT
CABINET COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 16th July, 2019

10.00 am

Darent Room - Sessions House







Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 16 July 2019 at 10.00 am Ask for: Georgina Little
Darent Room - Sessions House Telephone: 03000 414043

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting
Membership (16)
Conservative (12): Mr M A C Balfour (Chairman), Mr M D Payne (Vice-Chairman),
Mr A Booth, Mr T Bond, Mr D L Brazier, Mr A Cook,

Mr N J Collor, Mr S Holden, Mr A R Hills, Mr R C Love, OBE,
Mr J M Ozog and Mr H Rayner

Liberal Democrat (2): Mr R H Bird and Mr | S Chittenden
Labour (1) Mr B H Lewis
Independents Mr M E Whybrow

Green Party) (1)
Webcasting Notice

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s
internet site or by any member of the public or press present. The Chairman will confirm if all
or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed. If you do not wish to have your
image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Introduction/Webcast announcement

2  Membership
Rob Bird to replace Antony Hook

Apologies and Substitutes
Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda

Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2019 (Pages 5 - 16)

o o0 b~ W

Verbal Update



7  19/00051 - Fastrack Full Network - Bean Road Tunnel (Pages 17 - 44)

8 KCC Bus Feedback Portal - Summary of Feedbacks Received January to May 2019
(Pages 45 - 58)

9  Performance Dashboard (Pages 59 - 68)

10 2018/19 Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate Equality Review (Pages 69
- 80)

11 Gypsy and Traveller Service - Emerging Policies (Pages 81 - 90)

12 19/00053 - Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) - Infrastructure delivery partner with
Dover District Council (Pages 91 - 114)

13 19/00054 - KCC Country Parks - Decision to approve fees and charges for Pay and
Display and Season Ticket charging, and the principles for establishing future fees
and charges (Pages 115 - 130)

14 Fly Tipping Enforcement Plan (Pages 131 - 136)

15 Kent County Council's Response to Transport for the South East's Proposal
Consultation (Pages 137 - 168)

16 19/00055 - Contract for Coroners' Post-Mortem Examinations, North West Kent
Coroners Area (Pages 169 - 186)

17 Serious and Organised Crime (Pages 187 - 196)

18 Work Programme (Pages 197 - 202)

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Monday, 8 July 2019

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers maybe
inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant report.



Agenda Iltem 5

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held in
the Darent Room - Sessions House on Friday, 24 May 2019.

PRESENT: Mr M A C Balfour (Chairman), Mr M D Payne (Vice-Chairman),
Ms S Hamilton (Substitute for Mr T Bond), Mr D L Brazier, Mr A Cook, Mr N J Collor,
Mr S Holden, Mr AR Hills, MrR C Love, OBE, MrJM Ozog, Mrl S Chittenden,
Mr A J Hook, Mr B H Lewis, Mr M E Whybrow and Mr H Rayner

ALSO PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE and Mr M Whiting

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs B Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and
Transport), Mrs S Holt-Castle (Interim Director of Environment, Planning and
Enforcement), Mr S Jones (Director of highways, Transportation and Waste) and
Miss G Little (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

172. Membership
(Item 2)

Members noted that Mr D Brazier had joined the Committee in place of Mr P
Messenger.

173. Apologies and Substitutes
(Item 3)

Apologies were received from Mr T Bond, Ms S Hamilton attended as a substitute.

174. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda
(Item 4)

There were no declarations of interest received.

175. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2019
(Item 5)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting on 19 March 2019 are a correct record
and that they be signed by the Chairman.

176. Verbal Update
(Item 6)

1. Mr Hill, OBE (Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory Services)
announced that Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue
Services (HMICFRS) had its fifth annual PEEL (Police effectiveness, efficiency
and legitimacy) assessment. Mr Hill was pleased to announce that out of the three
categories, Kent Police achieved one ‘good’ rating for its effectiveness and two

Page 5



‘outstanding’ ratings for its efficiency and legitimacy. He said that Kent Police had
officially been graded as the best Police force in the country and that the Prime
Minister described Kent Police as an outstanding example of an excellent police
force. Mr Hill commended the forces performance and had written to the Chief
Constable on behalf of Kent County Council to congratulate Kent Police on their
achievements.

. Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)
provided a verbal update on the following issues:

(a) Highways Pot-hole Blitz Programme
Phase 4 of the pothole blitz programme concluded in April 2019 and phase 5
had commenced with a further £56m allocated for patching and filling potholes
throughout the summer period. Mr Whiting confirmed that weekly updates
would continue to be sent to KCC Members, District and Council Leaders; and
Kent MPs.

(b) Road Re-surfacing
The road resurfacing programme was well underway with a substantial
increased volume of work due to additional KCC capital funding investment of
around £20m.

(c) Pilot Transport Schemes

As a result of the Big Conversation, five pilot schemes had been produced to
help the Council identify alternative ways to support rural bus services. The
first of the five pilot transport schemes was due to be launched on 3" June
2019. The other pilots were due to be rolled out over a six-week period and
take place in; Dover, Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tenterden and West Malling. Mr
Whiting informed the Committee that the Member Working Group led by Mr H
Rayner would review the overall performance of the pilots and identify areas
where improved services could be implemented using existing budgets.

(d) Kent County Council Travel Saver and Kent County Council 16+ Travel

Saver

Applications for the KCC Travel Saver and KCC 16+Travel Saver bus pass
would be accepted from 3™ June 2019. Mr Whiting confirmed that eligibility
rules would remain the same, however, applicants could now pay via
instalments through direct debit to help improve the affordability of the pass for
parents. Mr Whiting said that the cost of the Travel Saver Pass had increased
to £350, however, the cost of the 16+ Travel Saver pass remained at £400.
For families on low income, the passes remained at £100 and Kent County
Council continued to supply passes that were free-of-charge to those in care.

Page 6



In response to queries regarding the benefits of purchasing a bus pass compared
to the benefits of purchasing rail pass, Mr Whiting informed Members that the cost
benefit would vary depending on a family’s financial circumstances and therefore
benefits would need to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Mr Whiting assured
Members that the subsidised Travel Saver scheme offered families the
opportunity to purchase a pass at half the cost of an annual season ticket.

177. Performance Dashboard
(Item 7)

Richard Fitzgerald (Business Intelligence Manager, Performance, Strategic Business
Development & Intelligence) was in attendance for this item.

(@)

(b)

3.

4.

Mr Fitzgerald introduced the Performance Dashboard which showed progress
made against targets set for Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) up to March
2019.

The officers responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

In response to queries regarding WMO02: Municipal waste diverted from landfill
and converted to energy, Mr Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and
Waste) said that the Waste Partnership in Kent worked with district councils to
help coordinate and segregate recyclable material from non-recyclable material.
Whilst work was being done to improve recycling rates, this would have a
negative impact on the conversion rates.

With regards to the Digital Take-up indicators, Mr Jones informed the
Committee that work was on-going to improve public facing IT interfaces to
encourage increased usage of the online portals rather than via
telecommunication methods. Mr Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning,
Highways, Transport and Waste) commended the success of the IT
infrastructure and said that other interfaces needed to be designed in the same
user-friendly fashion to encourage members of the public to access Kent
County Council’s services online. Mr Whiting paid further credit to those who
had devised the workflow and said that the improved online access had
generated a significant financial saving.

Members and officers thanked Mr Fitzgerald for his work and wished him well with
his future endeavours.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

178. Growth, Environment and Transport Performance KPIs 2019/20
(Item 8)

Page 7



Richard Fitzgerald (Business Intelligence Manager, Performance, Strategic Business
Development & Intelligence) was in attendance for this item.

1. Mr Fitzgerald introduced the report that set out the proposed indicators that
would be reported within the Growth, Environment and Transport Dashboard
for 2019/20. Mr Fitzgerald said that an extensive amount of work had been
carried out to review the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and associated
targets.

2. Officers responded to comments and questions and follows:

(a) With regards to the Digital Take-up indicators, Mr Jones informed the
Committee that work was on-going to improve public facing IT interfaces to
encourage increased usage of the online portals rather than via
telecommunication methods. Subject to the approval of Mr Whiting
(Cabinet Member for Planning, highways, Transport and Waste) there
would also be further campaigns to help promote digital take-up and
encourage the public to report faults and/or concerns online. Some of the
improvements included enhanced map imagery to make it easier for those
reporting potholes etc. to pinpoint the exact location and an improved drop-
down list. Mr Jones said that the aspiration of the digital interface was to
ensure that all service reporting could be accomplished within five clicks of
entering the portal. Mrs Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth,
Environment and Transport) paid tribute to Mr Jones and his team who had
process mapped all the reporting systems to ensure a LEAN approach
which in turn would reduce the customer call-time and letters and increase
customer satisfaction rates.

(b) Mr Jones informed the Committee that KPIs HT01 and HTO02 were
comparatively lower than the previous years targets due to the exceptional
winter conditions experienced which had allowed the highways team to
carry out more pothole repairs than initially anticipated. Mr Jones informed
Members that weather conditions were likely to fluctuate and therefore the
target levels for 2019/20 were still aspirational having taken into account
the variable weather conditions. With regards to the reduction of municipal
waste converted to energy, the target for 2019/20 was an aspirational
target as Kent County Council were working with the district and borough
councils to improve recycling rates. Mr Jones highlighted to Members that
Kent County Councils waste to landfill target had remained as the lowest in
the country and work would continue to minimise that target year-on-year.

(c) In response to Members queries regarding KPI WM01 and WMO02, Mr
Whiting agreed to liaise with Mr Jones outside of the meeting to review the
proposed target levels.

(d) Mrs Cooper agreed to bring a report a future Committee that explained
how the district collection process impacted on the recycling targets. Mrs
Cooper informed Members that the KPIs and Activity Indicators reflected a
whole system approach, however, Members needed to remain mindful that
not every district had the same recycling process or same ambition.

Page 8



(e) Mr Jones said that as a result of the increased budget, the Council was
paying less per pothole, less per patch and repair rates were significantly
quicker.

3. RESOLVED that the proposed indicators and associated targets be noted.

179. 19/00039 - Award of a short-term contract to the Commercial Services
Group for the operation of three household waste recycling centres
(Item 9)

Simon Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste) was in attendance for
this item.

1. Mr Jones introduced the report that sought approval from the Committee to
implement a short-term variation for the operation and management of three
Household Waste Recycling Centres to a Commercial Services Group as the
incumbent supplier would cease to manage the three sites as of June 2019.
The report set out how Kent County Council planned to continue the supply of
its services and how it intended to align the operation and management of
Household Waste Recycling Centres to the long-term commissioning strategy
for all its waste services in future years.

2. Officers responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

(@) Mr Jones said that the co-terminus end dates of the contracts was
intentional as this would help the directorate to align the commissioning
period and as a result help Kent County Council secure substantial
commissioning in the future, consolidate its procurement activity and
review an ever-evolving market to ensure it entered into contracts with the
right suppliers.

(b) In response to queries as to whether the contract would be awarded to a
single supplier or to the Lot numbers, Mr Jones said that he was unable to
provide a definitive answer, however assured Members that a procurement
exercise would be undertaken to ensure that the contracted supplier
offered the best value for money at that point in time.

(c) With regard to economies of scale, Mr Jones said that there were obvious
economies such as staff coverage to ensure operational certainty over the
various site locations, it presented potential opportunities for improved
back-office functions and it also offered certainty in the haulage cost if
there was one single source. There was also the opportunity to avoid
duplication of costs that could arise when there were multiple suppliers. Mr
Jones assured the Committee that in terms of economy, the proposed
decision to have the same termination date for all Lots would invite
potential discussions around the development of a common commissioning
plan for the whole county and attract a variety of potential suppliers. It
would also offer consistency in terms of Key Performance Indicators and
provide Kent County Council with the opportunity to obtain a consistent
approach with the districts and improve working relationships.

Page 9



(d) Mrs Cooper (Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and Transport)
informed Members that a full commissioning strategy for all Lots would be
proposed for the consideration of the Committee in the autumn of 2019.

(e) Mr Jones confirmed that Pepper Hill was subject to a separate long-term
contract, however, work would be done in the future to review how the
Pepper Hill site would form part of the commissioning strategy.

3.RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/00039) to be taken by the Cabinet
Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste to:

a) award a short-term variation of the contract for the operation and
management of three Household Waste Recycling Centres at Touvil,
Maidstone & Swanley, to Commercial Services Group (CSG)from June
2019 until November 2020; and

b) note that Officers will prepare a common commissioning plan for the whole
County. The detail of the various options within this commissioning plan,
will be discussed at a future meeting of the Environment and Transport
Cabinet Committee,

be endorsed.

180. 19/00040 - South West Kent Dry Recyclables Processing Contract -
SC18061
(Item 10)

Simon Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste) and David Beaver
(Head of Waste Management Services) was in attendance for this item.

1. Mr Jones introduced the report that set out the proposal to enter into a
contract for the processing of dry recycling materials collected at the kerbside
by Tunbridge Wells Borough Council (TWBC) and Tonbridge & Malling
Borough Council (TMBC). As a result of changes to the mix of co-mingled dry
recyclable materials which were to be collected at the kerbside by Boroughs
from September 2019, Kent County Council needed to source an alternative
supplier who could process the waste at a Material Recycling Facility (MRF).

2. Officers responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

(a) Mr Jones said that the final decision paperwork would include the updated
version of the Kent Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy.

(b) In response to queries regarding the four-year duration of the contract and
whether this was an efficient length of time to obtain maximum value, Mr
Jones said the four-year period was the maximum term permitted through
the proposed buying framework and was based on two factors; the
availability and capacity of the Material Recycling Facilities (MRF’s).The
four-year duration also offered KCC greater flexibility in terms of aligning

Page 10



itself to the commodity rates and ensured a shared risk of price variances
with the provider during the life of the contract.

(c) Mr Jones said that the current MRF was located in Crayford, however,
discussions had taken place with various stakeholders to identify potential
sites for a further MRF and assured the Committee that they would be
informed should there be any further updates.

(d) Mr Beaver informed Members that in 2018 the Committee approved the
South West Kent Partnership model (Decision 18/00023 - Inter-Authority
Agreement in respect of the management of the Waste Project between
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council (TMBC) and Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council (TWBC)) which commissioned a new kerbside model of
waste collection to significantly increase recycling and composting rates.
However, due to the revised borough collection specification which
separated paper and card from glass, cans and plastic, the original
contracted MRF in Crayford could no longer process the new recycling mix
and therefore a new MRF needed to be identified.

(e) In terms of the income generated through recycling, Mr Beaver said that
the only materials that produced an income for KCC were paper,
cardboard, textiles and batteries.

() Mr Beaver referred again to the decision paper that was approved in 2018
and said that the South West Kent Waste Partnership agreed a system of
performance payments whereby the savings generated through diverting
residual waste from Allington would be shared between the two district
councils and Kent County Council. Mr Beaver said that the new proposed
commissioning solution would offer savings of £1m a year and had already
been activated in Gravesham Borough Council which had achieved a
minimum level of 20% recycling and received increased payments from
KCC. The scheme was due to be rolled out in East Kent in 20201 and
throughout Mid-Kent in 2023.

3. RESOLVED that the proposed decision (19/00040) to be taken by The
Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste to award
contractual arrangements for the disposal and processing of recycled
materials collected by these two Waste Collection Authorities up to a 4-year
contract period, be endorsed.

181. 20mph - Policy Review
(Item 11)

Simon Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste) Nikola Floodgate
(Schemes Planning and Delivery Manager) and Steve Horton (Casualty Reduction
Manager) were in attendance for this item.

1. Mr Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transportation and
Waste) introduced the report that set out the review of the County Council’s
approach to 20mph speed limits to ensure they met the requirements of the
latest guidance. Mr Whiting highlighted to Members that there were over 1,000

Page 11



roads within Kent that were subject to 20mph zones or limits and that in the
past 24 months, there had been 22 schemed implemented that covered 286
roads. Mr Whiting said that the report explored the benefits of modifying the
criteria required to implement a 20mph speed limit through greater flexibility,
and in particular, the measures that could be taken in locations where
prevailing road speeds were between 24mph and 28mph.

. Mr Jones informed the Committee that a review of the research published by
the Department for Transport (DfT) was carried out as well as a review of the
policy which compared Kent County Councils approach to 20mph with other
local authorities, the results of which confirmed that Kent’s policy was aligned
to national policy. However, Kent County Council was keen to review and
consider the use of more innovative and less intrusive traffic calming
measures, which was reflected throughout the report.

. As a supplement to this, Ms Floodgate said that whilst the current approach
remained compliant and consistent with national standards, there was merit in
exploring the benefits of modifying the criteria required to implement a 20mph
speed limit by providing greater flexibility. The proposed scheme would also
help to deliver a more cost-effective approach and would be aligned to the
active travel and public health agenda with a shared aim of reducing accidents
on Kent’s roads. The pilot schemes would be located in locations where there
were prevailing road speeds between 24mph and 28mph and results of the
trials would be reported back to the Committee within 12 months of their
implementation. The success of the scheme would be measured by speeds
before and after, the number of collisions and the perception of safety by local
residents.

. Officers responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

(a) Mr Whiting said that funding had been allocated to carry out a review and
develop an evidence base to support the future use of an expanded list of
traffic calming measures. This evidence would include best practice in
other parts of the country and how this may be applied to Kent's schemes.

(b) Ms Floodgate confirmed that the allocated budget for the review was
£75,000 and this was from the 2019-20 Local Transport Plan budget

(c) With regard to community support, this would be instigated and undertaken
by Town/Parish Council/Residents’ Groups. Mr Whiting provided Members
with an example of community support from within his own constituency
and said that residents had carried out a survey which received full support
for a 20mph speed limit zone. This was then presented to Mr Whiting with
the confidence to address the Parish Council and offer combined funding
to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to support the implementation of the

Page 12



request. Ms Floodgate added that common support trials had already been
carried out and work was being done with Faversham Town Council and
the 20’'s Plenty Group to review scenarios where a blanket 20mph
approach was going to be adopted and instead, a compromise was found
to adopt an approach that was most effective for that area in question.

(d) Ms Floodgate said that whilst the DfT enabled Kent County Council to use

a blanket approach and enforce 20mph speed limits, a more risk adverse
approach through innovative calming measures to identify the right speed
for the right environment helped to reduce casualty numbers. In Many
cases Kent County Council had gone against the recommendations of the
Police and taken into account other factors that supported the need for a
20mph speed limit. Mrs Floodgate also confirmed that the Policy did not
support the suggestion that 20mph limits were not permitted on A and B
roads but that they were not normally suitable.

(e) Mr Whiting informed the Committee that there was a separate policy and

(f)

fund for road safety interventions. If the 20mph scheme was the solution to
a proven safety issue, there would be a separate budget to address that
and would be implemented as part of a Road Safety Improvement Plan.

Mr Jones addressed Members queries regarding Margate Town Centre
and said that the scheme allowed District/ Parish Council’'s to request
intermittent traffic calming measures where there were seasonal changes
and this would ensure that variable speed limits were applied at the
appropriate times of year and times of the day to help balance tourist need
with business need.

(g) Ms Floodgate said that whilst the report states that a further report to the

Committee would be presented 12 months after the implementation of the
scheme, the aim was to have all schemes in place within a 12-month
period and then to provide feedback to the Committee as soon as
practically possible.

(h) In response to the effects of lowering speed limits, Mr Horton said that

following a road traffic collision, life care would usually cost around £4m. In
terms of the speed severity, Government statistics identified that when a
person is hit at 30mph there was a 7% fatality rate, when hit at 35mph
there was a 14% fatality rate and when hit at 40mph there was a 33%
fatality rate.

Mr Jones said that air quality was a significant factor, however, due care

needed to be taken to ensure that by implementing lower speeds within
one area, this did not have a negative impact in other areas as vehicles

Page 13



would then increase their speeds. Air quality needed to be resolved, not re-
located to other areas.

5. RESOLVED that the proposed modifications to the current approach to reflect
current learning and best practice; and the proposed series of research pilots
that would need to be undertaken to determine the effectiveness of alternative
(innovative) traffic calming measures at locations where the prevailing road
speeds were between 24mph and 28mph, be noted.

182. Kent & Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy - Draft for Public
Consultation
(Item 16)

Carolyn McKenzie (Head of Sustainable Business and Communities) was in
attendance for this item.

1. Mr Payne introduced the report that set out the final draft of the Kent and
Medway Energy and Low Emissions Strategy for public consultation. Mr
Payne commended the officers for their work and paid tribute to the Members
of the Cross-Party Working Group for their contribution in helping to draft the
final strategy and the proposals that were set out within the report.

2. Mrs McKenzie reminded Members that the Energy and Low Emissions
Strategy was a joint strategy with Medway and was created as a sibling
document to the Kent Environment Strategy. The report proposed that a public
consultation would run for 12 weeks from 11 June 2019 to 2 September 2019.
Following the consultation, comments would then be evaluated, and a final
Draft Strategy would be presented to the Committee in November 2019
together with a draft Implementation Plan and Evidence Base.

3. Officers responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

(@) Mrs McKenzie confirmed that Kent County Council was working closely
with the private sector and academic bodies to look at air quality. A briefing
note was available to Members and Mrs McKenzie agreed to re-circulate
this.

(b) Mrs McKenzie thanked Members for their comments and
recommendations and assured the Committee that wherever possible the
team always strived to exceed targets.

4. RESOLVED that the content of the Final Draft Strategy and any further
avenues of engagement that should be undertaken during the public
consultation phase, be noted.

Page 14



183. Kent's Plan Bee - (Kent County Council Pollinator Action Plan)
(Item 13)

Stephanie Holt-Castle (Interim Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement)
was in attendance for this item.

1. Mr Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning. Highways, Transport and Waste)
introduced the report that provided an overview of the Kent County Council
Pollinator Action Plan — “Kent’'s Plan Bee” and commended Mr Holden for
leading the cross-party working group.

2. Mr Holden informed the Committee that in May 2018, a motion was presented
before Full Council calling for the establishment of a cross-party working group
to produce a Pollinator Action Plan. The motion was unanimously carried and
over the last 12 months, the working group, supported by Allison Campbell-
Smith (Programme Manager, Kent Ambassador, Kent Vision Live and KEIBA)
and Elizabeth Milne (Natural Environment and Coast Manager), had drafted
the action plan and sought the Committee’s approval for the Cabinet Member
for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste to agree the draft Pollinator
Action Plan prior to final endorsement at County Council.

3. The officer responded to Members comments and questions as follows:

(a) Mrs Holt-Castle informed the Committee that Ms Milne had engaged with a
number of services to ensure a cross-authority action plan, this included:
Highways, Public Rights of Way, Infrastructure, Country Parks,
Countryside Management Partnerships, as well as external organisations
which included Kent Wildlife Trust, Natural England and the Bumblebee
Conservation Trust.

(b) Mrs Holt-Castle said that whilst specific elements of the action plan could
not be undertaken yet due to contractual commitments, there was an
opportunity for other elements to be taken forward by undergraduate or
recently graduated trainees as part of a project funded by the Heritage
Lottery Fund.

(c) Mrs Holt-Castle reminded Members that the “Kent’s Plan Bee” was an
action plan, not a strategy or a policy and therefore after its endorsement at
County Council, it would be delivered with immediate effect.

4. RESOLVED that the draft Pollinator Action Plan be approved prior to final
endorsement at County Council.

184. Work Programme
(Item 14)

1. RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted, subject to the inclusion of the
following items:

(a) A report that explained the District Council collection process and how this
had an impact on recycling targets.

Page 15



(b) The Pitch Allocation Policy for Gypsy and Traveller Service Charge (July
2019)

(c) Final Draft Energy and Low Emissions Strategy following public
consultation (November 2019)

(d) An interim report on the 20mph Policy (May 2020)

Page 16



Agenda Item 7

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth,
Environment & Transport

To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July
2019

Decision No: 19/00051

Subject: Fastrack Full Network — Bean Road Tunnel

Key Decision: Major Scheme with cost over £1m and affects more than

two Electoral Divisions
Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of Paper: None

Future Pathway of Paper: None

Electoral Division: Dartford East and Swanscombe & Greenhithe (with
Dartford Rural just to the South)

Summary:

A key element of the large-scale regeneration that is underway at Ebbsfleet Garden City
relies on a hugely increased use of public transport. Fastrack is a high-quality Bus Rapid
Transit system which will provide the core infrastructure to deliver the public transport
offer. The focus of this report is the Bean Road Tunnel which is an important element in
the Fastrack Full Network and will provide a bus route and a footpath/cycleway linking
Eastern Quarry and Bluewater.

Recommendation(s):

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse, or make
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste on the proposed decision to underwrite loan funding and, subject to formal
sign off of the legal agreement and commissioning plan, take the scheme through
the next stages of development and delivery. Specifically, for the Cabinet Member to:

i) give approval to the progress of the reference design as shown on Drawing No.
B2350500-JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001 Rev POl for development control and land
charge disclosures;

i) give approval to progress all statutory approvals or consents required for the
scheme including transfer of land and rights;

iii) give approval to carry out consultation on the scheme,;

Page 17



iv) give approval to underwrite and enter into forward funding and investment funding
agreement(s) subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board;

V) give approval to enter into a design & build construction contract as necessary for
the delivery of the scheme subject to the approval of the Infrastructure
Commissioning Board to the recommended procurement strategy; and

vi) give approval for the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport,
under the Officer Scheme of Delegations, to take further or other decisions as may
be appropriate to deliver the Fastrack Full Network — Bean Road Tunnel scheme in
accordance with these recommendations.

as attached at Appendix A.

1. Introduction and Background

1.1  The Fastrack Project was identified in the late 1990’s as being critical to the
sustainable delivery of Kent Thameside. Fastrack is fundamentally a transport
project, and Kent County Council as the local Highway and Transport Authority is
responsible for delivery of the Fastrack network.

1.2  Fastrack is critical to the economic development and sustainable regeneration of
Kent Thameside (Ebbsfleet Garden City) and in preventing unacceptable traffic
congestion. A key element of the large-scale regeneration is a hugely increased
use of public transport and without Fastrack, these plans cannot be delivered.
Fastrack must continue to evolve to become a totally credible mass transit system
carrying capacity of up to 30million passengers per annum when Kent Thameside
(Ebbsfleet Garden City) is fully developed which is comparable to the capacity of
light rail schemes such as the Docklands Light Railway or Croydon Tramlink.

1.3 Henley Camland are the developers of Eastern Quarry, a substantial housing
development of 6,250 homes, which is located in the site of the former quarry,
bordered by the B255 Bean Road/Bluewater to one side and Ebbsfleet
International to the other side. The development incorporates the construction of a
spine road which will run the length of the development, providing access to
homes and acting as the main point of access for residents/visitors. It will also
provide the key route for the Fastrack service and at the B255 Bean
Road/Bluewater end, the Spine Road will connect to Bluewater. Henley Camland
is committed to the delivery of the development platform in Eastern Quarry (Spine
Road which they are funding) to facilitate the Fastrack link across Eastern Quarry.
To provide the connection to Bluewater from the Spine Road, the B255 Bean
Road which sits on a chalk spine between the two former quarries, must be
crossed. The connection would provide for Fastrack and for a walking / cycling
link, which is then connected into the road infrastructure in Bluewater.

1.4 Two haulage tunnels previously constructed through the chalk spine supporting

B255 Bean Road to facilitate earthworks movements during the construction of
Bluewater Shopping Centre during the mid-1990’s, still exist and are suitable to

Page 18




15

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

form a new direct connection. As part of the highway infrastructure for Eastern
Quarry a residential road network will be constructed that crosses the Spine Road
and will link to the existing Hedge End roundabout on Bean Road at the Northern
edge of Bluewater. This route could be made available for Fastrack by moving
from the dedicated Spine Road to shared use residential roads. The most obvious
connection is a continuation of the dedicated Spine Road through a tunnel under
B255 Bean Road going directly into the Bluewater road infrastructure and bus
interchange.

The works will be delivered by KCC using forward funding and investment funding
provided by Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (EDC) and Bluewater with
forward funding repaid by the Fastrack revenue surplus. These works are
required to link up with the Fastrack Spine being complete across Eastern Quarry
by developer Henley Camland who are also contributing to the scheme.

The Current Situation

Following work into the potential use of the haulage tunnels it has been
determined that it would be more cost effective to construct a new tunnel for both
Fastrack/cycling/walking and leave the existing tunnels as is. The proposed new
bore tunnel with combined bus, walking and cycling renders both haulage tunnels
redundant.

Recent ecological investigation in the haulage tunnels has revealed that there is
some low-level bat activity and mitigation will be required in the construction of a
new tunnel. Whilst one tunnel would be retained for bat conservation, the other
would be filled to reduce maintenance and potential risk of exposure to
unauthorised access.

Next Steps

Consultants have worked on the design and have produced a reference design
and documentation for a Regulation 3 Planning Application. This planning
application has been submitted, for resolution by October 2019. This will be
followed by contract documentation for a NEC Design & Build (D&B) construction
contract.

Using the SCAPE framework, a scheme estimate and feasibility report will be
obtained which subject to cost will enable moving to the preconstruction stage
followed by construction to commence in 2020.

Financial Implications

The works will be delivered by KCC using forward funding and some investment
funding provided by Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (EDC) and Bluewater.

The overall scheme budget is £12.20m (including risk) for a new bore tunnel with

compliant one-way signal-controlled bus way and walking and cycling. This is
detailed in Table 1 & 2 below.

Page 19



Repayment of the proposed forward funding from Bluewater is to be over the
period 2025 to 2041 (16 years), funded from the Fastrack revenue surplus (Fare
Box). There is no interest payable on this loan and the rate is a flat £250,000 per

EDC has accepted that, in respect of the repayment of forward funding this is
dependent on Fastrack achieving its mode share objectives, beyond the 25% that
has been modelled by KCC and as such the funding could be paid over a longer
time period. EDC also acknowledge that Fastrack will need continuous
modernisation and funding must be allocated for this purpose. Subject to an
annual surplus of £350,000 (after Bluewater repayment), EDC will receive
£150,000 annually in repayment. The remaining balance will then be paid at
£300,000 per annum from 2041, after the Bluewater payments have been

4.3

annum.
4.4

completed. See Table 3.
4.5

The EDC and Bluewater investment will be confirmed through legal agreements
to formally secure its repayment as the new Fastrack service becomes
commercially successful. See Table 2.

Table 1. Scheme costs

New one-way bus Bat mitigation :
with walking & Total Estimate
: = measures
cycling provision (Em) (Em)
(Em)
Construction Cost 7.57 0.05 7.63
Scheme Costs (Inc. Risk) 3.68 0.04 3.72
Sub-Total 11.26 0.09 11.34
Inflation Cost 0.86 0.01 0.86
Total Estimate 12.11 0.09 12.21

Table 2. Funding

Loan / Refundable |Non-Refundable I
. : Contribution
Funding Funding (Em)
(Em) (Em)
Bluewater 4.00
EDC 5.05 2.40
Henley Camland 0.75
Total 9.05 2.40 0.75

Page 20




Table 3. Fastrack Annual Budget (2025 Base figures at 25% mode share)

Income Cost :

ltem Running Total (E

©) ©) 4T
Annual Fastrack A&B Bus
Operating cost 4,871,272 -4,871,272
Assumed operator profit margin 487,127 -5,358,399
KCC forecast management &
infrastructure maintenance costs 300,000 SR
Annual farebox revenue 6,082,484 424,085
TfL Fastrack contribution 210,000 634,085
Bluewater Repayments 2025- 250,000 384085
2041 s
Forecast Surplus 384,085
Desired payment to Fastrack
reserve for service ongoing 200,000 184,085
upgrades and modernisation.
Payment to EDC if surplus of
£600K is achieved 150,000 34,085

Fastrack is one of the core infrastructure projects for the Ebbsfleet Garden
City and the completed scheme will contribute substantially to enabling the
Ebbsfleet Garden City to function effectively through modal shift from the
private car to public transport. In the design of the new transport system the
EDC has worked closely with KCC. Once delivered, every resident will be
within 10 minutes of a Fastrack stop and 90% within 5 minutes ensuring that
residents and business users can move freely around the development and

Expansion of the Fastrack bus network is also included as a Transport priority
within the draft Local Transport Plan 4: Delivering Growth without Gridlock
2016-2031, which highlights how investment in these infrastructure projects is
vital to boost Kent’'s economy and support a growing population.

5. Policy Framework
5.1
between housing, business and leisure locations.
5.2
5.3

The extension of Fastrack is covered in the HT&W Divisional Business Plan
and Performance Management Framework 2019-20 under Service Unit
Priorities:

e Maximise inward investment into Kent

Working closely with the EDC, Department for Transport (DfT) and
Highways England to support the planning, development and delivery of
necessary infrastructure to support this key area of economic growth
(including the Fastrack extension).

Page 21



Legal Agreement

6.1  Appendix B summarises the overarching legal agreement between KCC, EDC
and Bluewater, highlighting the key items and risk.

7. Conclusions

7.1 Fastrack Bean Road Tunnels is a vital component of the expansion of the
Fastrack network into Ebbsfleet Garden City. This will contribute substantially to
enabling modal shift from the private car to public transport. The programme will
be challenging but there is confidence that the scheme can be delivered to
link with the Fastrack Spine being delivered across Eastern Quarry by
developer Henley Camland.

8.0. Recommendation(s):

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse, or make
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste on the proposed decision to underwrite loan funding and, subject to formal
sign off of the legal agreement and commissioning plan, take the scheme through
the next stages of development and delivery. Specifically, for the Cabinet Member to:

i) give approval to the progress of the reference design as shown on Drawing No.
B2350500-JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001 Rev POl for development control and land
charge disclosures;

i) give approval to progress all statutory approvals or consents required for the
scheme including transfer of land and rights;

iii) give approval to carry out consultation on the scheme;

iv) give approval to underwrite and enter into forward funding and investment funding
agreement(s) subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board;

V) give approval to enter into a design & build construction contract as necessary for
the delivery of the scheme subject to the approval of the Infrastructure
Commissioning Board to the recommended procurement strategy; and

vi) give approval for the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport,
under the Officer Scheme of Delegations, to take further or other decisions as may
be appropriate to deliver the Fastrack Full Network — Bean Road Tunnel scheme in
accordance with these recommendations.

9.0 Background Documents

Page 22




e Appendix A — Proposed Record of Decision

e Appendix B — Overarching Agreement For Fastrack Tunnels Works Contractual
Summary June 27 2019

e Appendix C - Drawing No. B2350500-JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001 Rev P01

e Appendix D — EglA: Fastrack Full Network

9.0 Contact details

Lead Officers:

Graham Killick — Major Capital Programme Project Manager
03000 419369

graham.killick@kent.gov.uk

Shane Hymers — Fastrack Development Manager
03000 414723
shane.hymers@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

Simon Jones - Director of Highways, Transportation & Waste
03000 411683

simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

Page 23


file://///invicta.cantium.net/KCCRoot/Universal/EE%20Transport%20Integration/Transport%20Integration%20Shared%20Area/Fastrack/Fastrack/Fastrack%20on-going/Fastrack%20Governance/E&T/graham.killick@kent.gov.uk
file://///invicta.cantium.net/KCCRoot/Universal/EE%20Transport%20Integration/Transport%20Integration%20Shared%20Area/Fastrack/Fastrack/Fastrack%20on-going/Fastrack%20Governance/E&T/shane.hymers@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL — PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: DECISION NO:

Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, 19/00051

Transport and Waste

| For publication

| Key decision: YES

Subject Matter / Title of Decision
Fastrack Full Network - Bean Road Tunnel

Decision:
As Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste, | agree on the proposed decision
to:

e i) give approval to the progress of the reference design as shown on Drawing No. B2350500-
JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001 Rev P01 for development control and land charge disclosures;

e i) give approval to progress all statutory approvals or consents required for the scheme
including transfer of land and rights;

e iii) give approval to carry out consultation on the scheme;

e iv) give approval to enter into forward funding and investment funding agreement(s) subject to
the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board;

e V) give approval to enter into a design & build construction contract as necessary for the
delivery of the scheme subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board to
the recommended procurement strategy, and

e Vi) give approval for the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport, under the
Officer Scheme of Delegations, to take further or other decisions as may be appropriate to
deliver the Fastrack Full Network — Bean Road Tunnel scheme in accordance with these
recommendations.

Reason(s) for decision:

A key element of the large-scale regeneration that is underway at Ebbsfleet Garden City relies on a
hugely increased use of public transport. Fastrack is a high-quality Bus Rapid Transit system which
will provide the core infrastructure to deliver the public transport offer. The focus of this report is the
Bean Road Tunnel which is an important element in the Fastrack Full Network and will provide a bus
route and a footpath/cycleway linking Eastern Quarry and Bluewater.

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:
Consultation will be carried out as the scheme progresses.

The scheme is being discussed at the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 16 July

Any alternatives considered and rejected:
None




Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the
Proper Officer:

Page 26

01/decision/glossaries/FormC




KENT COUNTY COUNCIL AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
SUMMARY REPORT OF CONTRACTUALTERMS SET OUT IN THE
OVERARCHING AGREEMENT FOR FASTRACK TUNNELS WORKS

NOTES

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

The following is not intended to be a substitute for reading / referring to the
executed Overarching Agreement (“OA”) and should be read in conjunction with
the same.

This document is intended to be a high-level summary of the key provisions of
the OA and is not intended to cover the legal, financial or technical aspects of the
OA.

The terms of the OA reflect the agreed positions as negotiated between the
parties.

The OA is bespoke to the requirements of Kent County Council (“KCC”) Ebbsfleet
Development Corporation, (“EDC”), Blueco Limited (“Blueco”) and Bluewater
Outer Area Limited (“BOAL”) and is not based on an "industry standard" form of
contract.

The authorised officers of KCC, EDC and Blueco/Bluewater have had several project

meetings to negotiate and agree the terms of the Overarching Agreement. Graham
Killick, Shane Hymers, Adeola Sonola (Invicta Law) acted on behalf of KCC.

Parties to the Overarching Agreement (“OA”)

The Kent County Council (“*KCC"), Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (“EDC”),
BLUECO LIMITED (“Blueco”) and Bluewater Outer Area Limited (“BOAL”); (the
“Parties”)

The Parties have entered into the OA to agree the terms and provisions relevant for
the construction and delivery of the works for a new bus, pedestrian and cycle
connection between Eastern Quarry and Bluewater by means of constructing a new
fastrack tunnel under the B255 (the “Works”).

KCC will receive funding from EDC and Blueco to construct and deliver the Works.
Blueco and BOAL own the land where the tunnel will be constructed.

Duration

KCC will commence constructions of the Works on the Effective Date. In the OA, the
Effective Date is defined as the date on which all conditions precedent have been
satisfied or waived by the Party for whose benefit the relevant condition precedent has
been inserted. The condition precedents are set out in clause 2 of the OA.

The Works are to be delivered by 31 August 2021 (Target Date).
The Target Date is subject to an extended period of two years, defined in the OA as

the “Long Stop Date”. If KCC fails to deliver the fastrack tunnel by the Longstop Date,
then it will be in breach of the OA. Please see paragraph 8 below.

Page 27



3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Construction of the Works

KCC is to follow a duly compliant tender process under the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 to appoint a construction company to construct and deliver the
Works (“Works Contractor”).

KCC will procure Balfour Beatty under the SCAPE Framework Agreement to construct
the fastrack tunnel. The industry standard NEC 4 form of contract (including additional
KCC clauses and other stakeholder requirements) will form the executed Works
contract between KCC and Balfour Beatty (“Works Contract”).

KCC will apply to register title to the land within which the new tunnel is to be
constructed and, as owner, will charge bus operators for the use of the new tunnel.

Funding

The Funding available to KCC for the construction of the tunnel is in the sum of
£14,080,000.00 in total.

The Parties have entered into a separate funding agreement to deal with the relevant
details associated with the funding for the Works.

Property Documents

A few property arrangements are required, and legal documents will be executed
between the Parties to formalise these. The property documents include leases,
mutual deeds, registration of titles, access, planning permission and other required
consents.

Diane Hayes (property lawyer at Invicta Law) with client’s instructions is acting for KCC
in relation to formalise these documents.

Contract Management

KCC is in-charge of appointing the Works Contractor to construct the tunnels. KCC will
apply for planning permissions and other required consents necessary for the
construction of the tunnels/delivery of the Works.

The Works will be supervised by KCC and other professional teams appointed by KCC
and nominated by the other Parties.

KCC will procure that the Works Contractor comply with Blueco’s requirements
attached to the Works Contract as additional provisions.

The Parties shall meet regularly and through other governance arrangements set up to
discuss the progress of the construction and deal with any related issues.

The OA provides for Step-In Rights, if KCC fails to perform or deliver the tunnels. This
is dealt with in clause 16 of the OA.

Dispute Resolution

Page 28



7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.1

52

5.3

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

By agreement of the Parties, all disputes shall be referred to any independent person
set out in clause 34.2 of the OA.

All disputes shall be governed in accordance with English Law.

Termination

KCC can terminate the OA if EDC and Blueco fail to provide the funding required to
construct the tunnel and deliver the Works.

The consequences of termination by KCC are (i) to reinstate the tunnel/land and (i) to
refund to EDC and Blueco all the funding received up to the date of the termination,
including legal costs paid by EDC and Blue in entering the OA. This is covered in
particular by clause 16.10 of the OA.

The Parties can terminate the OA if by the Long Stop Date, KCC fails to finish the
construction of the fastrack tunnel as set out in clause 13 of the OA.

The consequences of the termination in paragraph 8.3 shall be the same as those set
out in paragraph 8.2 above. These are set out in clause 13.10 of the OA.

The mitigation for KCC in relation to the consequences of termination in the OA is to
ensure that there are back to back provisions in the Works Contracts to pass on these
liabilities to the Works Contractor (Balfour Beatty).

Interest

If KCC fails to perform, KCC shall be liable to pay Interest on the funding in
accordance with clause 13.2.1 until such time that all the funding (including any
interest payable thereon) has been paid back to EDC and Blueco.

Interest will be charged at the rate of 4% over the base rate of the Bank of England
from time to time (as well after as before judgment), or such other comparable rate as
Blueco may reasonably designate if the base rate ceases to be published,
compounded at quarterly rests on 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31
December in each year.

The mitigation for KCC in relation to this interest rate set out in the OA is to ensure that
there is a back to back provision in the Works Contracts to pass on this interest rate to
Works Contractor (Balfour Beatty).

Insurances

Under the OA, KCC in relation to the delivery of the Works, shall insure in the joint
names of KCC, Blueco and BOAL the Works - covering Public Liability, Professional

Indemnity and Employment.

The obligation in paragraph 10.1 above will be passed on to the Works Contractor
under the Works Contract.

Statutory Compliance

Page 29



12.

During the construction of the Works, KCC will and shall procure that Balfour Beatty
and other procured professionals comply with the provisions of the law and ensure that
the Works Contract enables KCC to bring actions against them for all claims, demand,
proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever in respect of any
breach.

Boilerplate

The OA contains the usual boiler-plate terms to govern notices, a duty to mitigate
losses, etc. record-keeping, data protection, dispute resolution, assignment and terms
on expiry/termination. The OA provides for meetings and liaison.

| therefore conclude that the Overarching Agreement is in a form suitable for the
Kent County Council to enter into, as it reflects the position agreed between the
parties during negotiations.

Adeola Sonola
Invicta Law Limited
27 June 2019

Page 30



g - 20/06/2019 13:48:43 - CONB - PopaC

5 1FILE.dw

c
kel
=3
Q
<<
G_
-
o
S
@
>
x
O

1
2
<
+
O
<
2
o
S

15,
=
0
]
o
m
—_
P
LU
o
—_

»

>

@

2
e
=
L
—_
(m]
<
O
—_

w

o
£

2

@

—
O

1

c
=

o

o)
(m]
=

0]

c

c

)
T
©

@©

o]
x

C

@

o
m
—_
£

O
L

o

—
o
2
T
T
=

o

—
o
_—
N
o

o

a

2

c

o

4
=

(=

This

(€)

oLz ig

nirys

O,@M&wm
@ —
_ ]
ZO_N._.W@@/_ -
ROUNDABOUT
& 9@? 5
] SUB STATION .-V —
2 OPOSED
BN . PR
Onrwmo ) O}W_Ozw
U ~ MANHOLE TO
. BE RELOCATED |
A\ | { TREES TO
. \ LAMP POST TO -\ BE REMOVED
. %, \ \ ... BE RELOCATED -
A SN \ B B | (Y N /
05 RN \ TREES TO NG
N Ny BE REMOVED (! AN
e, : 3 // \ /, & RELOCATED PROPOSED
‘ ) o TRAFFIC SIGN REED BED
N & / \ . P
/ w | '
> 4507 g\ —
! ‘ : ==\ { TREES TO \
. | k BEREMOVED - | - _ kg
7} . SIGNALIZED 1Ty P \Jee _T=—-= . _ .
) STAGGERED T ~ \ e
v CROSSING . M&Z \ - ESTERN PORTAL
— TARMAC 1 1] ¥ [¢)]
“~——  GULLY TO / | \ o T
BE RELOCATED ; %!’ 1/ _\ =
/ 1 m (Vo) 4_ ._ —_ —
. ROAD SIGN TO —— N =] N Tunn
2 ... BE RELOCATED \ / ol | — _/_
. Rz N 8 -——
ULLY T / W oo o s — —
PARKING By BE RELOCATED | & ° Q g N ;ng N g - -
S S [ .1 5.00 — = —
meﬂ_ao\m___oxb,._,\_mm_w UW_‘»_ % m. - _ : "
— o y '
“~TO BE RELOCATED I op o AL mmﬂﬂwz_%\mo _\
ﬂ)r,\ic J h = \—\ CL#&. 6.88 .\ ' f
/o?? TO S | - < A 'k PROPOSED
v BE RELOCATED < %. i — ROAD SIGN TO ! 800mm DIAG. PIPES
\ . ! il ... | BERELOCATED /
if , 15 | o
\..\ S GULLY TO \ .
ARG s \ x . _w ! BE RELOCATED \
o v I3 ReeD BEDS
i \ | \ TREES TO !
T — i A / 3 e / BE REMOVED
TaRMAc l 3 aa N [N
PARKIG sy -~ ww ,. OQ“- , spL . v
] w3
v . - et \. i / ! _
LINE OF TREES —F- N s f ) 1., _
TO BE REMOVED g .
0 OVE NI e N d MANHOLES TO | :
V 2 . N BE RELOCATED _
zo 7Y (S R s T \ ——
\ o — \ g GULLY TO __ 3 =t
~— —_— W \\ . BE RELOCATED
= —_ A _
AL g . PARKING By \ i
CPs \ g S N 7
3 s sHL TR 2 58
o Yornas(Cop e o \is 2 ARKING Bays Q\N g&* et
o JGrass(™ Toer . - 4 o
o ° i >4 - "
% % Ry D —— \h,\“ﬁ\\\ \ -~ -
— oy L - oo -~ %
- /T\\SEI A .,‘ ) s\\\\\\/f
m.Wm:\ o SR s T Ul GULLY TO '
. ENyg | g ) e ) BE RELOCATED
: — B LAMP POST T _
BE RELOCATED —~ . _
= S e /. f 7. % , roy ﬂ o
SPL TO s . '
L BE RELOCATED ) nL _
ROAD SIGNS TO . i :
BE RELOCATED =- mOC._..ImEZm i )
@ ROUNDABOUT | ,
=8 N o N
e %
/
N 9

ARMCO 0.9

_—_—

SL

i

EXISTING TUNNELS

/ WEST AND EAST CLIFF

TO BE STABILIZED

Gmovansi

UNSURFacED

GRASS

GRass

PO

|
P02
|

|
C

6.75

g

_ _
MAINTENANCE
PARKING AREA

NOTES
1. Drawing to be printed in colour.
2. Do not scale from drawing.

3. All dimensions are in metres unless stated otherwise.

KEY

Proposed Road Markings
Proposed Traffic Signal
Proposed Traffic Sign
Proposed bollard
Proposed kerb

Proposed splay kerb
Proposed edging

Proposed footpath pavement

Proposed carriageway pavement

Existing kerb to be "‘emoved

Proposed HFS

Existing water course and ponds area
Existing Reed bed

Proposed verge

Proposed maintenance parking area

Proposed pedestrian fence

Proposed gabions

Proposed reed bed

Proposed tactile paving

EQ Countryside Clarion parcel plan

P0O7a

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
In addition to the hazards/risks normaly associated with the types o f
work detailed on this drawing, note the following :
CONSTRUCTION
AO0O0O - Identify and locate existing services p>
All buried services to be isolated / protected prior d
to start of works m
al
MAINTENANCE / CLEANING
- As above
DECOMMISSIONING / DEMOLITION
- As above
It is assumad that all works will be carried out by a competent contract tor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement
P02 JUNE. 2019 TOPO SURVEY UPDATED CP MJ Sy PW
PO1 MAY. 2019 FOR CONSULTATION CP MJ Sy PW
Rev Rev. Date Purpose of revision Drawn |Checkd| Rev'd |Apprvd

1:500 METRIC

e

5m 0 5m 10m 15m  20m

Client
Kent County Council
County
Council
kent.gov.uk
Project
Fastrack Full Network
Bean Road Tunnel
Drawing title

REFERENCE DESIGN
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN

Drawing status

FOR CONSULTATION

Scale 1:500 @ A1 DO NOT SCALE
Jacobs No. B2350500 Rev
Client no. UON

Drawing number

B2350500-JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001

© Copyright 2018 Jacobs U.K. Lmited. The concepts and informatin contained in this document are the property of Jacobs.
Use or copying of this document it whole or in part without the writtel permission of Jacobs constitutes a in infringement of
copyright. Limitation: This drawig has been prepared on behalf of and for the exclusive use of Jacobs' Client, and is subject
to, and issued in accordance with the provisions of the contract between Jacobs and the Client. Jacobs accepts no liability or
responsibility whatsoever for, or ilrespect of, any use of, or reliance 1pon, this drawing by any third party /.




This page is intentionally left blank



June 2017

Kent County Council
Equality Analysis/ Impact Assessment (EqlA)

Directorate/ Service: Growth, Environment & Transport

Name of decision, policy, procedure, project or service: Expanded Fastrack
Network (Civils schemes).

Responsible Owner/ Senior Officer: Graham Killick

Version: 1.0 First Issue

Author: Graham Killick

Pathway of Equality Analysis: HTW Div.MT

Summary and recommendations of equality analysis/impact assessment.

Context

Fastrack is a highly accessible public transport route that links existing and new

communities and provides a focus for all development and density.

Fastrack's speed, frequency and reliability will be radically expanded through the

building-out of missing sections of segregated track and by the maximising of

levels of priority across the network. The completed Fastrack network will aim to

reduce car-dependency in the area, therefore achieving greater public transport

modal split across Dartford and Gravesham.

Aims & Objectives

The proposed Fastrack expansions will provide better integration with the central

transport hub at Ebbsfleet International Station and a more direct route to

Bluewater Shopping Centre, Darent Valley Hospital and facilities in Dartford and

Gravesend town centres.

Certain of the proposed Fastrack expansions will alsc be able to encourage

walking and cycling to support healthy living and focus points of convergence at

local centres to encourage interaction of new and existing communities.

Summary of equality impact

o Potential Impact: Highway scheme - Low impact.

0 Adverse Impact: Low

o Positive Impact: Medium for younger and disabled people using the
expanded Fastrack full network and new / additional footway cycleway links.
Medium for carer groups using public transport who will benefit from an
expanded Fastrack network to support and access Clients.

Adverse Equality Impact Rating [l

Updated 16/04/2018 1

This document is available in other formats, please contact

graham killick@kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 419369
Page 33



June 2017

Attestation

| have read and paid due regard to the Equality Analysis/Impact Assessment concerning
the expanded Fastrack network and the connection to Bluewater Infrastructure from
Eastern Quarry Infrastructure. | agree with risk rating and the actions to mitigate any
adverse impact(s) that has / have been identified.

Head of Service ’TqM 2ef>
Signed: ﬁz_/( Name: ‘|
Job Title: NS (P TRAan) SELTPrAg Date: z_]/g‘,zo N

Div.MT Member

Signed: ﬂ,{ Name: TM Lefi>

Job Title: |NE¥LeM ) | RELAYTL Date: 24 IS”(M Y
H+AT

Updated 16/04/2018 2

This document is available in other formats, please contact
graham.killick@kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 419369

Page 34



69€61¥ 000E0 Uo sucydsay 10 Yn-AoB-JueX@HOIIIN Wweyeid
1oBju0D asea|d ‘sjeulno) Jaylo Ul s|qe|ieAe Si JuawWwnIop siyl

e 810Z/b0/91 payepdn

Zdnouib sy 1o} sajiunpoddo enba ajowoud asiAlas J0 Jo3foad ‘ainpasoud ‘Aaijod siyy pjnod

2Iuay u] s1ayjo uey) (Ajanebau) Aiqeinoae) ssa| (mojaq
pajsi]) dnoig) pajoajoid Aue j0aye ‘1 0] sebueys pasodoad Aue 10 ‘891A18s 10 Josfosd ‘aunpasoad ‘Aajjod siyy pjho)

Buiusaidss | ped

10¢ sunp

Page 35



69E6LY 000E0 U0 auoydaa) 10 3n*AoB U@ Weyelh
1oBjUCD asea|d ‘sjewlo} 18Yjo Ul 3|qe|IBAE S| JUBWNJ0P SIY |

L4

810Z/70/91 patepdn

10BdW| ON

oedw| oN

10edw| oN

1oedw) oN

aoey

1vedw| oN

joedw| oN

1oedw| oN

1oedw| oN

Japuabsuel]
/Auap! 1epuag

1oedw)| ON

eduw| oN

1oedw)| ON

10edw| oN

J8puag

SyUI Aema|dAD g ABM)00)
|euonppe ; mau apiaoid
snid sajnol Bunsixa
papuedxs ‘sjnol snq
yorljSEL MBU B 3)e)Ioe)}
M Juswdojaasp Auenp
uia]ses pue lejeman|g o}
SUOIJo2UU0D AINaNSELU
pue YJomiau oelse
pspuedxs ay| — SaA

SHUI| ABMB|DAD @ ABM]00)
[euoppe ; mau apinoad
snid senol Bunsixa
papuedxs ‘anol shq
yaeljseq msu e sjel|ioe)
[im Juswidojaaap AuenDd
ujajse] pue Jajeman|g o}
SUOID8UUCD BJNJOoNJISBIUI
pue jioMjau Hoelise
papuedxs ay| — SOA

Alngesia

by

a0UspIA]
yoedwy aAnisod
moyunips/yBIH

80UaPIATg
yoedwy aapebau moT

usa10g
joedug
aanebau wnipsy

vib3
yoedwi sanebau yBiH

'z Hed

U1 uaxepapun aq pinoys sisAjeue Jajng ‘sbuipuy oA uo Alejuswiwod jauq e epircad ases|d

dnoug) paj)oaejoad

LZi0c sunr

Page 36



69€6 1L 000€0 U0 auoyds|a) Jo }n"AoB-Jua@olI weyeld
Jor)UCY sseald ‘sjeulo) Jaylo Ui 9|ge|IBAE SI JuswnNoop SIY |

= 8102/¥0/91 pajepdn

‘sajnos buysixe
papuedxs pue ajnol snq
YorJjse mau e a)ey|ioe}
lim yuswdojaasp Auenp

uisjse] pue Jajeman|g o}
SUOI}OBULIOD aINjONSELUl
puUB }10M)3U YorJ)SEe

sapljIqisuodsay

papuedxa ayt — SaA 1oedw) oN 1oedl] ON 1oedw| oN s Jalen
. sdiysiauped

ALD

V/IN V/N VIN V/IN pue abejuep

Auwisiep

1oedW| ON edw| oN 10edw| oN 1edw| oN pue Aoueubaid
uopeusL0

10edw| ON 1oedw| oN joedw| oN 1oedw| oN lenxas

isljeg

1oedw| ON 1oedw| oN 1oedWw| ON 1edw)| oN pue uoibyay

£10¢ aunp

Page 37



June 2017

Part 2

Equality Analysis /Impact Assessment

Protected groups
No groups will be directly or indirectly negatively affected by this proposal.

Information and Data used to carry out your assessment

The planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended), for the Eastern Quarry development. These
are the mechanisms which make the development proposal acceptable in
planning terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on
site specific mitigation of the impact of the development.

Who have you involved consulted and engaged?

Land Securities (LS) and Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (EDC). Once
outline design has been completed there will be an engagement exercise to
share details of the design with the general public, local businesses, protected
groups and other key stakeholders. Local and District Councillors will be kept
updated together with regular reports to the Fastrack Advisory Board (once
formed).

Analysis
The proposal will impact three of the Protected Groups, Age, Disability and
Carer Responsibilities.

Without the direct link from Eastern Quarry to Bluewater the alternative route
will be much longer adding at least 3 minutes to bus travel time and
considerable inconvenience for pedestrian and cyclists.

Adverse Impact,
There are no adverse impacts currently identified in the delivery of this project.

The direct link from Eastern Quarry to Bluewater will utilise refurbished
haulage tunnels which are less than 100m in length with no perceived impacts
on Health, Safety and Welfare for tunnel users. Zero emission buses (all
electric) are proposed to operate on the expanded Fastrack network with the
resultant positive environmental and operational benefits.

Positive Impact:

Direct link between Bluewater {and beyond to Darent Valley Hospital and
Dartford Town Centre) and Eastern Quarry development (and beyond to
Ebbsfleet Intermational Station and Gravesend Town Centre).

Updated 16/04/2018 6

This document is available in other formats, please contact
graham,kiIIick@kent.gov.ulp%@@@hone on 03000 419369



June 2017

JUDGEMENT

» No major change - no potential for discrimination and all opportunities
to promote equality have been taken

Internal Action Required YES/NO

There is potential for adverse impact on particular groups and we have found
scope to improve the proposal.

Updated 16/04/2018 7

This document is available |g other formats, please contact
graham.killick@kent.gov.uk' i 4188hone on 03000 419369



69E6 LY 000E0 U0 auoydsja} Jo yn-AoB U BN Weye.d
10BJU0D 8seald ‘Sjewl0) JaYJo Ul 3|ge|ieAR S] Juswndop siy ]

8 81L0Z/70/91 parepdn
‘sioubisap
By} Yim malaal
ubisap Jejnbay
'§00¢ 18quisoe(
g1 paystiand isiy
Aunqoly aaisnjou|
uo aduepIngy
{1.0Q) vodsuel|
Jo juswpedaq pue
saniges|p yum
asouy) pue (NIN)
slesn pasuojow swa|qoid
-uou Joj uone|sibe) Aljlqow pue
WaUN2 Uo saliIgesip ypm
upny paseq asuepinb sJosn (e Aq
NN paldaosoy sanb yoiym alnjonaselu)
{gynq) sebpug Aemybiy
{pouad ubisaq ‘AN|Iqo) |AISN|oU| pue speoy 10} 18)eman|g ay)
|BUOISIAOIH) uo asueping | [enuey ubiseq ay) | @anoeld )saq pue pue 3Jomjau
610Z 0} 8102 10oQ pue Ypm aoueploaoe | saulepinb juasuno Aemybiy
1ebpng yosfosd |  usamisq sawi) NI gHNG 34l Yim | Ui INo palued ale | UM 8ouepiodoe ay) Jo asn
ay) o} |elbeyu) ajeudoidde 1y weyeis) | ubisap juedwod subisap ainsu3z Ul g o} subisag | pue 0} $$800Y
suopesijdun SaW02)IN0 uaye} asualarIEYD
1509 ajeasaw] Bumo pajoadx3y 8¢ 0} UONIOY | paynuapi sanss| pajoajoud

Z10g sunr

ue|d uonoy Juswissassy/sisAjeuy joedw) Ajjenb3

Page 40



69€6 L 000€0 Uo auoyds|s) Jo 3n'A0B us@HoI|IN weyelt
joBjUOD asea|d ‘sjeulo) J8Yjo Ul 9|ge|IBAE SI JUSWNJop SIY )

6

81.02/¥0/91 patepdn

L10¢ sunr

peol ||e 0} uaalb

S| UOIJBJaPISUOD
anp ainsua

0} useuapun

aq (IIm spne NAIN

10 Buipuelsiapun ‘ubisap ay) swinioj / sdnoib ‘anoqe

a|qeydaaoe Jo s)iejap 1syun) aAalyeyuasa.del paynuapi

6.0 ue aAey |m | 8leys 0} pasieulj pue sdnolb

196png | 1o gLOZ ul aw swruoy / sdnoib s| uBisap aulno a1ngnd jesauab pajoajoud

1o8loid juauno aleudoudde NI aAljejeuasaldai 3y} aouo D0y ay) yum nsuod | yum sugyd uo

uIyiim papnjou| ue 1y weyels) pue s1asM) AQ uonejnsuo) 0} paau ay| uolE)NSUOD
108loud
ay} jo aseyd

"SHIOM UuopRaNASU0D swajqoad

UoNoNIISU0D au} Buunp ajnou Apgow

ay) Buunp Ajgjes ay) jo syed Aue Jo | pue sapljigestp

Aemybiy ay) SN U0 SUOOWISal | Y)Im Bs0L} SO

asn pue ssanoe pue juswabeuew UcoNISUoD

ued Aal} ainsus oiyel} pasodoud Buunp

0} sjuswabuelie ‘ojeudoidde Jo ainponasenu | aunjonliseljul

(pouad ssaooe Aelodws) aJaym sbunsaw AemyBiy Aemybiy

UuoljanIIsuoD) Aue pue | onqnd pue elpawl Jajeman|g | Jayeman|g ay)

|EUOISIAOIA) swwelboid/syiom |Bl100S ‘sajIsgam ay} pue yiomjau pue jJiomysu

196pnq 1Z0Z 01 6102 UONoNIISU0I JO ‘sdouip Japs) Aemybiy ay) Aemybiy

108foid Juaung | usamiaq saw NOIIM | 9Jeme sie slasn Bl ‘Juswabebua | Jo s1asn ||e asiApe ay) Jo asn

uIim papnpou) | sjeudosdde 1y weyeio (| @insua 0] alqnd 0} peau sy | pue 0} SS90y

siasn

Page 41



69€6 L¥ 000E0 U0 aucyda|a} 10 3N "A0B U@ weyelb
10BjUCO 8sea|d ‘sjeulio) 12y)0 Ul 9jqe|ieA. S| JUswnaop siyl

0l

8102/v0/91 parepdn

S AOD U DIOJUIATISIBAID BUITEWS Aq Wea ] Ajl[enbs 8y} O} UOISISA PJOA PUE Ad0J JjUcidaje Paub(s [eul} & pJEMIO) 3Sedld

$]8S B)EP JUBABJa) BpNjoUl 8seald

Xjpusday

ON / SBA

Juejd adIA19s jssauisng JnoA Ul papn|oul uaaqg suonRde auy} aney

s|jesodoad
* pue ubisap ay)

‘sdojansp

awsyos ay)

se swnioy ; sdnosb
aAlejeuasaldal
yum aoe|d axel (Im
UOI}ESILUNWIWIOD
Jenbay
‘suoniqiyxa

pue s)ajjes)
LIOIJBLLLIO)U}
‘aysgsm JOM

ayj elA paleys

aq [|Im uoewloul
J|syung

anoqe
psiynuap! sdnoib
pajosjoid syl Joy

Zi0g¢ aunr

Page 42



69€61F 000£0 Uo suoydsja) 10 yn-AcB-Jua@MolIN weyeid
Joeju0D aseald ‘sjeulo} Jayjo Ul a|qe|ieA. S| JUswnNIop Sy

Ll 810Z/¥0/91 palepdn

‘sasodind ypne 104 wea} oA yum 1day eq pinoys Adod siuoijos|e pue Adoa piey paubis |euibuo ay |

‘peysiignd aq os|e pinoys y|b3g snoA "Hodas jpuigen
JuBAS|aL 8y} Yim Buoje SedIAles aNILILIND 0} Paigns ag 1snul yibg ay) ‘ucisioap jsulge) e o] 108lgns aq |iim AjAloe ayj §|

ZL0o¢ aunr

Page 43



Page 44



Agenda Item 8

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport
and Waste
Steve Pay, KCC Public Transport Planning and Operations Manager
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: KCC Bus Feedback Portal — Summary of Feedbacks received

January to May 2019

Key decision: N/A

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: Cabinet, 11 July 2019

Future Pathway of Paper: N/A

Electoral Division: Countywide

Summary: This report presents results for the first 5 months of feedback from the
bus feedback portal and explains how the results are being actioned with the bus
operators.

Recommendation: Cabinet Committee is asked to note the contents of the report ,
comment on the actions taken and consider how and at what frequency results are
published.

11

1.2

1.3

Introduction

The Bus Feedback Portal was introduced in January 2019 as a response to
feedback received during last year’s Big Conversation on rural transport..

The portal is designed to enable bus users to tell KCC about their
experiences of using services and allows KCC to capture data and identify
trends. Although the Council does not contract, control or regulate the
operators nor fund the majority of their services, understanding these trends
enables KCC to seek to address issues on behalf of Kent’s bus users with
operators accordingly.

This report and the more detailed summary (Appendix A) provides information
on the feedback received from residents and bus users in the period between
January and May 2019. It is provided for information but requests feedback
from Cabinet to the outputs presented and any actions that they would like to
see taken.

Summary of Report

Page 45



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

Appendix A provides a summary of the feedback received broken down as
totals, by month, by area, by operator and by complaint type. Due to the
amount of complaints about Arriva in quarter 1, and Stagecoach in April and
May, there is some more detailed analysis relating to these services.

The volume of responses is positive, averaging 53 per month. The higher
volumes of responses in January and February most likely reflect the early
interest in the portal and promotion of its launch. It is expected that more
typical feedback volumes will settle to between 20 and 30 per month.

Unsurprisingly, the majority of feedback relates to complaints which account
for around 92% of all comments received. Around 50% of feedback relateds
to complaints about reliability, 12% were capacity related and 11% related to
driver behaviour and conduct.

Ashford (14%), Maidstone (41%), Tonbridge & Malling (10%) and Tunbridge
Wells (7%) districts account for over 70% of all feedback received which
reflects likely owing to the complexity of some journeys and the high level of
use of buses for school journeys in these areas.

Naturally given the proportion of the network that they operate, Arriva and
Stagecoach account for 80% of all feedbacks received. Whilst there maybe a
number of actors influencing this, some further, analysis of comments relating
to Arriva in Quarter 1 and Stageoach in Quarter 2 has been completed.

Analysis of Arriva feedback shows that around 60% of these related to
reliability with capacity and driver behaviour also featuring. Over 50% of
complaints received relate to 5 services; 5 (Hawkhurst to Maidstone) , 12
(Tenterden to Maidstone), 59 (Grafty Green to Maidstone), 71 (Kings Hill to
Maidstone) and 89 (Coxheath to Maidstone but also including school journeys
from Grafty Green). , Many relate to the reliability of school journeys which
is known to be a common complaint in this area and was particularly
problematic at the start of the school year.

Analysis of the Stagecoach feedback in Quarter 2 shows that whilst there
was a spike in complaints, 75% related to one service; Service B in Ashford.
All of the complaints concerned a road in south Ashford where bus priority
measures have been recently introduced. Local residents have also
expressed dissatisfaction with the presence of buses more generally.

Feedback and Actions

Public Transport officers have established portal results as a standing item on
the agenda of all Quality Bus Partnership meetings which provides a more
formal setting to highlight these trends with the operators concerned and to
work with the opertors and District Councils to improve performance.

Page 46



3.2 Less formally, feedback has and will continue to be shared with other
operators by the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste in his regular meetings with them. Public Transport officers also use
the feedback as part of their periodic management meetings with bus
operators.

3.3 Cabinet is asked to comment on how often they would want the results to be
published including publically.

4. Conclusion

4.1 The bus portal was launched in January 2019 followng feedback on the ‘Big
Conversation.’ In the first 5 months, there has been an average of 53
responses made though this is expected to settle to between 20 to 30 per
month.

4.2 Particular trends have been identified relating to specific services provided by
Arriva and Stagecoach. Officers are seeking to address these concerns through
the Quality Bus Partnership meetings and as part of regular management
meetings with operator. .

5.  Recommendation:

5.1 Cabinet Committee is asked to note the contents of the report , comment on the
actions taken and consider how and at what frequency results are published.

6. Background Documents

e Appendix A — Summary of results

7. Lead Officers

Report Author:

Steve Pay, Public Transport Planning and Operations Manager
Telephone number : 03000 413754
Email : Stephen.pay@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

Simon Jones, Director of Highways Transportation and Waste
Telephone number : 03000 411683

Emai : simon.jones@kent.qgov.uk

Page 47


mailto:Stephen.pay@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



KCC Bus Feedback Portal

Summary of Feedback (January — May 2019)

61 abed

ent.gov.uk/bigconversation

Join the
tra

3} K are your wews.

'Kent )

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

Appendix A




Total Feedbacks Received by Month

Bus Feedback Totals 2019

120 106
5
% 100
S
80 71
60
40 34 o
17
20
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 S A A A A A A
Q Q& L N & N o & & & S
FHFE & T SES
3 N e e e
NG <(@0 e Q\' ov & &
o ¥ 9



TG abed

120

100

80

60

40

20

Feedbacks by Type

I'd like to......
96
65
34
— ] -
January February March

B Complain about an operator or service

37
17
> Mo

April May

M Leave a compliment



Feedb

60

50

40

2S abed

30

20
17
13

10

4 4

illl iz
0 0 l | L] |

Ashford Canterbury

a
221

Dartford

2
! 1°
OO0y 00 0

Dover

3

Feedback by Area

Folkestone & Gravesham
Hythe

51
49
10
7
11 1
0 0
0 HE i3]

Maidstone

5
12
‘N s
23122 131I3:2111
ll-ol ojo0o IOIOI I-l all=’n

Sevenoaks

acks by District

Swale

Thanet

Tonbridge

1

Tunbridge
Wells



Feedbacks by Complaint Type

Complaint Type

60 54
50 4
40
S 4 q
8 20 g 114 1 41
(6]
& 10 I 23230 “232 | I 02010 01010 (1110 I
O 1 1 I ._ =
. 2 < _ < Q& <
\&{c\ & ,bo © Ny © &P RS
N 3 R o 132 > & ®)
Q@ C & < Y &
AS) 2 ) L
< & . NS
Q& xO 6% <
& Q;" O 00
Q ¢ & Q
Q’b

M January M February M March April m May

Themes with ‘Other’ includes; Service Levels, Cost, Fares and Speeding



G abed

u 1st Bus Stop
® Farleigh Coaches

= Regent Coaches

u Arriva

" Go

= Sta;

Feedbacks by Operator

Quarter 1 by Operator

April & May by operator

—— 1%
T

m Arriva = Chalkwell = Farleigh Coaches
Go Coachhire = Hams Travel = Nu-Venture

Cnncifive :::l;:rm .EZZ:::BU% = Redroute Buses = Stagecoach in East Kent

gocaach in East Kent @ Stafine

January February March April May

1st Bus Stop 1 0 2 0 0
Arriva 48 106 9 8 4
Autocar 1 1 3 0 0
Chalkwell 0 1 2 2 0
Farleigh Coaches 1 0 0 1 0
Go Coachhire 1 6 1 3 2
Hams Travel 0 0 0 0 1
Nu-Venture 9 9 1 2 0
Redroute Buses 0 0 1 1 2
Regent Coaches 1 1 0 0 0
Stagecoach in East Kent 2 8 14 20 8
Starline 1 0 0 0 0



GG abed

25

20

15

10

9
4

Arriva Complaints by Service

Arriva Complaints by Service (Jan - March 2019)

23

8
I I 4

III-I
o 9

5 i
© N’\/ /\'\ /\’\r @ (,)(')

4
\

S > D o Ao
,L%,,,\f\'\«,\'\,‘?

9
&



9g abed

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Arriva Complaints by Type

Arriva complaints by type (Jan. to Mar. 2019)

89

23 23
10
m -
L — s—

Reliability  Capacity Other Driver Customer  Vehicle Poor

haohawvinnr Conriro Infarmatinn



1S abed

20
18
16
14
12
10

o N B~ O

Stagecoach Complaints by Service

Stagecoach complaints by Service : April & May

11

15

33

70

1
911

L]
80A

19



8G abed

20
18
16
14
12
10

o N B~ O

Stagecoach Complaints by Type

Stagecoach Complaints by Type : April & May

19
2 2
1 i} 1
- 1 1 - 1
Reliability Bluebell Road, Infrastructure  Capacity  Service Levels Driver

Ashford complaint



Agenda Item 9

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport
and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: Performance Dashboard
Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:

The Environment and Transport Performance Dashboard shows progress made
against targets set for Key Performance Indicators. The latest Dashboard has data up
to May 2019.

Recommendation(s):
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE the report.

1. Introduction

1.1. Part of the role of Cabinet Committees is to review the performance of the
functions of the Council that fall within the remit of the Committee.

1.2. To support this role, Performance Dashboards are regularly reported to each
Cabinet Committee throughout the year, and this is the first report for the 2019/20
financial year.

2. Performance Dashboard

2.1. The current Environment and Transport Performance Dashboard is attached at
Appendix 1.

2.2. The Dashboard provides a progress report on performance against target for the
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2019/20. These KPIs came before this
Cabinet Committee for comment in May 2019.

2.3. The current Dashboard provides results up to the end of May 2019.

2.4. The Dashboard also includes a range of activity indicators which help give
context to the KPIs.

2.5. KPIs are presented with RAG (Red/Amber/Green) alerts to show progress
against targets. Details of how the alerts are generated are outlined in the
Guidance Notes, included with the Dashboard in Appendix 1.

2.6. Latest performance is ahead of target for all but one of the five key performance
indicators in Highways & Transportation. Potholes repaired in timescale is behind

Page 59



target' as the HTM Contractor has suffered difficulties in securing resources to
meet demand. Urgent faults have been attended to on time.

2.7. Performance is ahead of target for all Waste Management indicators with the
exception of waste recycled and composted at Household Waste Recycling
Centres (HWRCs) which had a general reduction due to hot weather last year,
economic uncertainty and enforcement focus deterring potential trade waste.
Total waste tonnage collected is increasing but is at the lower end of
expectations.

2.8. For digital take-up, three indicators are ahead of target and four behind target.
Two of those behind target, Young Persons Travel Pass and 16+ Travel Card,
have only had a very small percentage of annual responses so far, with both
expected to meet target in the next few months as more cards are applied for.
Actions are in place to improve Speed Awareness courses and HWRC vouchers
completed online.

2.9. For Environment, Planning and Enforcement, Greenhouse Gas emissions have
reduced significantly ahead of target.

3. Recommendation(s):

The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE this report.

4. Contact details
Report Author: Steph Smith
Head of Performance and Information Management
Strategic Commissioning — Performance & Analytics
03000 415501
Steph.Smith@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director: Barbara Cooper
Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and Transport
03000 415981
Barbara.Cooper@kent.gov.uk

! The KPI relates to statutory requirement for the HTM Contract to deliver emergency repairs and not
the pothole blitz contract which continues to perform well.

Page 60


mailto:Steph.Smith@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Barbara.Cooper@kent.gov.uk

T9 abed

Appendix 1

Environment and Transport
Performance Dashboard

Financial Year 2019/20
Results up to May 2019

Produced by Strategic Commissioning — Performance & Analytics

Publication Date: June 2019




29 abed

Appendix 1

Guidance Notes

Data is provided with monthly frequency except for Waste Management where indicators are reported with quarterly frequency and on
the basis of rolling 12-month figures, to remove seasonality.

RAG RATINGS

Target has been achieved

Floor Standard achieved but Target has not been met

Floor Standard has not been achieved

Floor standards are set in Directorate Business Plans and if not achieved must result in management action.

DOT (Direction of Travel)

ﬁ Performance has improved in the latest month/quarter
4 Performance has worsened in the latest month/quarter
& Performance is unchanged this month/quarter

Activity Indicators

Activity Indicators representing demand levels are also included in the report. They are not given a RAG rating or Direction of Travel
alert. Instead they are tracked within an expected range represented by Upper and Lower Thresholds. The Alert provided for Activity
Indicators is whether they are in expected range or not. Results can either be in expected range (Yes) or they could be Above or
Below.



Key Performance Indicators Summary

Appendix 1

Month
RAG

R

Highways and Transportation

HTO1 : Potholes repaired in 28 calendar
days (routine works not programmed)
HTO2 : Faults reported by the public
completed in 28 calendar days

HTO4 : Customer satisfaction with
service delivery (100 Call Back)

ED
GREE

GREEN

HT12 : Streetlights, illuminated signs and
bollards repaired in 28 calendar days

!

HTO_8 : Emergency incidents attended to GREEN
within 2 hours

GREEN

YTD
RAG

=D

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

Digital Take up —reported year to date

YTD
RAG

DTO1 : Percentage of public enquiries for Highways
Maintenance completed online

DTO02 : Percentage of Young Persons Travel Pass
applications completed online

DTO3 : Percentage of concessionary bus pass
applications completed online

DTO04 : Percentage of speed awareness courses
completed online

DTO5 : Percentage of HWRC voucher applications
completed online

DTO6 : Percentage of Highway Licence applications
completed online

Waste Management

RAG

DT13 : Percentage of 16+ Travel Cards applied for
online

€9 abed

RAG reported for rolling 12 month

WMOL1 : Municipal waste recycled and composted

WMO02 : Municipal waste converted to energy

WMO01 + WMO2 : Municipal waste diverted from landfill

WMO03 : Waste recycled and composted at HWRCs

WMO04 : Percentage of customers satisfied with
HWRC services

Environment, Planning and Enforcement

YTD
RAG

EPE13 : Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC estate
(exclud. schools)

GREEN




Appendix 1

Service Area Director Cabinet Member
Highways & Transportation Simon Jones Mike Whiting

Key Performance Indicators

. . Latest Month Year to YTD
Ref Indicator description Month RAG DOT Date RAG Target Floor
HTOL Poth_oles repaired in 28 calendar days 78% & 730 90% 80%
(routine works not programmed)
HTO2 Faults reported by the public completed in 28 93% & 93% 90% 80%
calendar days
Customer satisfaction with service delivery 0 0 0 0
HTO4 | 100 Call Back) 90% i) 89% 85% 70%
HTO8 Egllfrzggency incidents attended to within 2 99% ! 100% 98% 95%
Streetlights, illuminated signs and bollards 0 0 0 0
HT12 repaired in 28 calendar days - April data 93% ¢ 93% 90% 80%

79 abed

HTO1 - Potholes repaired in timescale is behind target as the HTM Contractor has suffered difficulties in securing resources to meet
demand. Urgent faults have been attended to on time.



Appendix 1

Service Area Director Cabinet Member
Highways & Transportation Simon Jones Mike Whiting

Activity Indicators

Expected Range

Ref Indicator description Year to date It expec";ed P J PR s

HTO1b Potholes repaired (as routine works and not 2523 Yes 3.100 2.300 4.476
programmed

HTO02b Routine faults reported by the public 8.422 Yes 9.500 7.500 14,608
completed

HTO6 Number of new enquiries requiring further 12.459 Below 17.500 14.300 19.780
action (total new faults)

HTO7 qu_k in Prpgress (outstanding enquiries 5 564 Yes 6.750 5.500 9.243
waiting action)

G9 abed

HTO6 - The better weather over the last few months has helped keep demand to lower levels than previous years.



Appendix 1

Service Area

Director

Cabinet Members

Waste Management

Simon Jones

Mike Whiting

Key Performance Indicators (Figures are provided as rolling 12-month totals to remove seasonality) - March data, 2018/19 targets

enforcement focus deterring potential trade waste.

Activity Indicators

Ref Indicator description QLL?;?;S‘; RAG DOT Target Floor %ﬁ\gﬁgf
WMO01 Municipal waste recycled and composted 49.5% & 46.8% 44.3% 49.0%
WMO02 Municipal waste converted to energy 48.8% {4 47.9% 45.4% 50.3%
01+02 Municipal waste diverted from landfill 98.3% 4 94.7% 89.7% 99.3%
WMO03 | Waste recycled and composted at HWRCs 68.7% iy 69.3% 67.3% 68.4%
g o | ey | 9% 0 | o | o | oo
(o))
(o))

WMO03 — There was a general HWRC reduction due to the very hot year last affecting garden waste, the economic uncertainty and an

R . e Latest In expected Expected Range Previous
ef Indicator description

Quarter range? Upper Lower Quarter
WMO05 | Waste tonnage collected by District Councils 539,527 Below 560,000 540,000 537,432
WMO06 | Waste tonnage collected at HWRCs 171,208 Yes 190,000 170,000 168,110
05+06 | Total waste tonnage collected 710,735 Yes 750,000 710,000 705,684

WMO5 — Waste tonnage arisings have been declining over the last 2 years despite significant population growth across the county and
are slightly below expectations.



Appendix 1

Service Area Director Cabinet Member
Highways, Transportation and Waste Simon Jones Mike Whiting

Digital Take-up indicators - April data

: . Year to YTD Previous
Ref Indicator description Date RAG DOT Target Floor Year
DTO1 Per_centage of public enquiries for Highways 510 4 50% 40% 47%
Maintenance completed online
DTO2 Perc_entgge of Young Perspns Travel Pass 37% RED Iy 80% 60% 80%
applications completed online
DTO3 Perc_entgge of concessionary bus pass 37% 4 2506 15% 280
applications completed online
o | DTo4 Percc_—:'ntage of speed awareness courses 7504 ! 80% 65% 78%
& bookings completed online
(9] . .
o | DTOS Percentage of_ HWRC voucher applications 94% ! 95% 85% 97%
~ completed online
DTO6 Percentage of_nghway Licence applications 80% © 70% 60% 80%
completed online
DT13 (F)’r:alrizcéntage of 16+ Travel Cards applied for 71% ! 80% 60% 29%

DTO02 & DT13 — A very small percentage of annual responses have been received so far, with the majority due to come at the end of
the school year. The percentage completed online are expected to increase and meet target when the bulk of applications are made.

DTO04 - A project is in place to renew the online software system to improve the customer journey and encourage more people to book
online.

DTO5 - Improvements to the computer system which manages these vouchers has taken place and performance should be back on
track in the next reporting period.



Appendix 1

Division Director Cabinet Member
Environment, Planning and Enforcement Katie Stewart Mike Whiting
Key Performance Indicator (reported quarterly in arrears) December 2018
Ref Indicator description Latest RAG DOT Target Floor FItSHOLE
P Quarter 9 Year
EPE14 Greenh_ouse Gas emissions from KCC estate 31,885 % 37,200 40,200 36,885
(excluding schools) in tonnes

89 abed




Agenda Item 10

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services

Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: 2018/19 Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate

Equality Review
Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of Paper:  N/A
Future Pathway of Paper: Growth, Economic Development and Communities
Cabinet Committee 26 June 2019; Policy and Resources

Committee date tbc

Electoral Division: All

Summary: This report sets out a position statement for the Growth, Environment
and Transport (GET) Directorate in 2018//19 regarding the embedding of equality
and diversity within work programmes and organisational development.

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note current performance,
provide any comment, and agree to receive this report annually in order to comply
with the Public Sector Equality Duty 2010.

1. Introduction

1.1  Publication of equality and diversity information is compulsory in England for
all public authorities, as stipulated in the Public Sector Equality Duty 2010.
Proactive publication of equality and diversity information ensures not only
compliance with the legal requirements, but also transparency for the public in
how this Directorate ensures equality and diversity considerations are part of
every stage of our programmes and projects.

1.2  GET firmly places our approach to equality and diversity within our Customer
Service Programme. The Duty for us is about understanding and responding
to our customers and non-customers’ needs, data-led across all ten protected
characteristics. Everybody has protected characteristics.

1.3 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has identified six
domains which reflect the capabilities or areas of life that are important to

Page 69



1.4

2.1

3.1

4.1

41.1

people and that enable them to flourish. The six domains are work, living
standards, education, justice and personal security, participation and health.

KCC corporately is moving to measure all services’ progress against the
Equality Duty 2010 by utilising these EHRC domains. This report therefore
looks to do the same. Section 4 reports the detail of GET’s performance
against corporate equality and diversity objectives. Section 5 reports on
projects that do not directly relate to the corporate equality and diversity
objectives identified in Section 4 of this report but do align to EHRC domains.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications in producing an annual review of progress
against the Equality Duty 2010.

Policy Framework

This report relates to the KCC Equality and Human Rights Policy 2016 —
2020.

GET progress against KCC Equality and Diversity Objectives

KCC Human Rights and Equality Policy Objective:

“Protected characteristics will be considered within all highways and
transport schemes identified within Local Transport Plan 4, as well as
the schemes’ potential to advance equality of opportunity.”

Domain — Education

Highways, Transport & Wastes (HTW) Driver Improvement Booking
Programme. This service provides all the driver education programmes
through a Memorandum of Understanding with Kent Police which is licensed
by NDORS (National Driver Offender Retraining Scheme) and audited bi-
annually. The course offers are based on driver behaviours so there is no
equality statement as the courses are only offered to those who have
offended and met the criteria for a course (i.e. dependant on the extent of the
offence). Whilst equality data is not collected due to GDPR and NDORS
constraints, the service presents good practice with reasonable adjustments
made for protected characteristics when they arise. These included in 18/19:
one to one courses for autistic customers; allowance of a separate space
(whilst continuing training) for breast feeding mothers; translators for those not
proficient in English ; and signers for those who use British Sign Language.

Domain - Living Standards

Page 70



4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

HTW’s Winter Service. Each year HTW reviews the Council’s Winter Service
Policy and the operational plan that supports it to reflect changes in national
guidance and lessons learnt from the previous winter. Following 2017/18’s
“‘Beast from the East”, further mitigations for elderly (Age characteristic) and
disabled (Disability chacateristic) customers have been put into place with
local district plans and supply of a salt/sand mix to Parish Councils who can
prioritise snow clearance for care homes, and around GP practices and
hospitals for example.

HTW’s A20 Harrietsham Highway Improvement Scheme. This scheme is
to reduce the speed and manage potential traffic growth whilst retaining the
village feel of Harrietsham and aspiring to make public transport more
appealing. During the scheme design, a consultation took place in the form of
a questionnaire which specifically asked respondents of their requirements
with regards to protected characteristics. In response, crossing points were
provided in certain areas where demand was identified, and a toucan (two-
can - designed for pedestrians and cyclists to use at the same time) crossing
provided rather than a puffin crossing to assist with cyclists’ needs being
accommodated at the same time as a wheelchair or pram user for example.
(Age, Disability, Maternity and Carers characteristics).

HTW’s The Big Conversation. Consultation for future delivery model of rural
bus services. This project identified a number of potential negative impacts in
the equality screenings of the proposed models. The characteristics
concerned were Age, Disability, Carers and Maternity and issues focused on
size of vehicle, financial implications, and booking requirements. Widespread
consultation with networks comprising these groups was identified as the key
action in the Equality Impact Assessment (EglA) action plan, to ensure
negative impacts were avoided or appropriately mitigated.

Domain - Justice & Personal Security

HTW’s Safer Roads Fund. A252 Chilham to Charing. The Safer Road Fund
project from the Department of Transport includes two eligible A roads in
Kent. Working with the Road Safety Foundation and Amey who have been
commissioned to design and construct the scheme, an initial Equality
screening highlighted that for Age and Disability characteristics, a safety audit
needed to be completed at the design and construction stage and form part of
the equalities action plan. These actions included an accessible central
refuge island in Charing and generally slower speeds increasing safety for all,
especially those with Age, Disability, Maternity or Carer characteristics.
Extending the central reservation width will improve road safety and reduce
road traffic casualties amongst less experienced and vulnerable drivers,
including adolescent and elderly groups.

Page 71



4.1.6 HTW’s Safer Roads Fund. A290 Canterbury to Whitstable. As per the above,
the need for this scheme has been identified through analysis of crashes
between 2012 and 2014. Whilst funding has been secured, this project is on
hold and not due to commence before March 2020. However, an initial
Equality screening highlighted that for Age and Disability characteristics, a
safety audit will be completed at the design and construction stage and form
part of the equalities action plan.

4.2 KCC Human Rights and Equality Policy Objective:
“The Equality Duty will inform all services’ efforts to maximise
businesses’ potential.”

Domain — Education

4.2.1 Economc Developement’s (ED) South East Business Boost. In 2018/19,
the South East Business Boost (SEBB) programme has identified other
partners/bodies to work with which assist those with protected characteristics
who were previously underrepresented in applying for grants, identifying or
accessing the grants available through the SEBB programme, such as Kent
Foundation (working with young business leaders) and the Women in
Business Network. Data continues to be collected on some protected
characteristics (Age, Sex, Ethnicity and Disability) but key now is the analysis
of that data to inform the future and further reach of the SEBB .

4.2.2 ED’s Locate in Kent. As funded under an EU Scheme, Locate in Kent also
has a requirement to collect data on the same protected characteristics as the
SEBB programme. They have reported a good return on Sex protected
characteristic data but there was some reluctance by companies to provide
the other requested data, usually owing to a misperception of why the data is
sought and/or a reluctance of individuals to self-identify their own protected
characteristics

Domain - Living Standards

4.2.3 ED’s Ashford Borough Council and Kent County Council District Deal
Project. Equalities impacts were noted from the sub-projects which will be
undertaken as part of the District Deal, which will be pursued under each
relevant project through EqlA screenings. Such sub-projects include:
Chilmington Green (An urban development on the edge of Ashford town
which includes up to 5,750 homes); Ashford International Station Spurs
Project (The Ashford International Spurs scheme is essential to provide a
signalling solution to enable future interoperability for all international service
providers); and Enabling the Jasmin Vardimon Dance Academy (The dance

Page 72



4.3

431

4.4

441

company wish to escalate the work already undertaken and establish the JVC
International Dance Academy as a creative centre of excellence).

KCC Human Rights and Equality Policy Objective:

“The protected characteristics of all members of a community will be
considered when investing in roads, facilities and utilities that are
identified through the Growth and Infrastructure Framework, and
delivered to meet the needs of Kent’s population changes”

Domain - Living Standards

Environment, Planning and Enforcement’s (EPE) Digi-GIF. This project
aims to create and provide a digital platform for the Kent & Medway Growth &
Infrastructure Framework. An initial screening has identified impacts on Age
(older users are less likely to have the confidence and skills to access the GIF
online), Disability (those with disabilities may have difficulty in using the
website or its interactive features as well as reading the narrative and analysis
provided) and Race (English will not be the first language of all

users). Mitigating actions to be included in the project plan include: All
functions and interactive capabilities of the Digi-GIF will be designed to meet
the Government’s digital accessibility standards; Online help and guidance
will be available; A digital accessibility audit will be undertaken during the
development of the final platform and will also be included in tender
documentation; Clear links and presentation of information will be made in
plain English; Alternative formats and languages of the Digi-GIF platform will
be made available.

KCC Human Rights and Equality Policy Objective:

“Irrespective of Age, Disability, Race or Religion and Belief, Kent
residents should be able to access our county’s high-quality landscapes
and environment”

Domain - Living Standards

EPE’s Energy and Low Emissions Strategy. The strategy will aim to
identify and prioritise action to reduce harmful emissions that contribute to
climate change and poor air quality leading to impacts on people’s health.
This will particularly benefit certain protected groups including young people
(Age. Maternity) and those with a Disability. The screening identified that
there may be a perceived or real barrier to take up of electric vehicles by
disabled people, and a key proposed action is to gather data to support or
dispel this notion.

Domain - Participation

Page 73



4.4.2 EPE’s Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan. This 18/19 project
produced a new Countryside Access/Rights of Way Improvement Plan for
Kent, for the period 2017 — 2027. The plan identifies action points to ensure a
better experience for those with mobility limitations across Age, Disability,
Maternity and Carers characteristics which include: maintenance of network;
vegetation clearance; work with land owners to remove stiles; and ensure
least restrictive access.

45 KCC Human Rights and Equality Policy Objective:
“The Libraries, Registration and Archives (LRA) Service in Kent will
continue to understand its local communities’ needs, and tailor its
services accordingly”

Domain — Participation

45.1 LRA’s Website. In 2018/19, a need was identified to improve the libraries
service’s webpages. Ensuring the needs of customers with protected
characteristics were met was an integral part of the goals for the project. For
example, images to be used on the website were to show a broad range of
ages, backgrounds, sex, race, and so on. A section on the website was also
set up for customers who might not be able to come to the library due to
disability, called Library Direct. Promotions are also advertised on the
website, including LGBTQI (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender,
Questioning, Intersex) resources and events.

4.5.2 LRA’s Schools Service Review. Libraries data was used to assess school
engagement and attendance by adults with children, thus supporting the Age
characteristic. In addition to this, focus groups were held as well as an online
survey for schools. Following the feedback received, a revised offer was put
forward, including removing the charge for library school card, aligning fees
(fines and reservations) with the public offer and maintaining free introductory
class visits to the library for children.

4.5.3 LRA’s Bockhanger Library relocation project. As part of relocation of
Bockhanger library to the local Children’s Centre, customer data was
collected from the library management system, Spydus, to inform on
borrowing habits. This data informed the resultant EqlA. There were a
number of positive outcomes from this including: height adjustable chairs
(benefiting Age characteristic); promotion of eBooks and other online
resources (benefiting housebound users who may be more likely to have Age,
Disability, Maternity or Carer characteristics); and changes to the stock
management system, Collection HQ,to ensure that the offering remains fresh
and accessible to all.

Page 74



454

45.5

4.5.6

4.5.7

4.5.8

LRA’s Libraries Extra project. In 2018/19, Libraries, Registration and
Archives piloted technology-assisted opening hours at three libraries to
enable customers to access library services outside of normal opening hours
with no staff presence. Customer data was collected and as a result, the
emergency exit at Higham Library was improved for accessibility (Disability,
Age, Carers and Maternity characteristics).

LRA’s proposed strategy. Two full EqlAs were produced for the Libraries,
Registration and Archives proposed three year strategy. One for the
overarching strategy and one for the proposed library tiering model (which
proposed reduced library hours). A 10-week consultation took place with 20
drop-in events for the public to talk to the library staff across the county during
the 10 week period. Based on protected characteristic data of likely impacted
library users, versions of the consultation were produced in Easy Read and
Nepalese. Specific data on protected characteristics were collated, and all
Equality feedback was analysed separately. An adjusted proposed tiering
proposal as a result of using more up-to date data, resulted in the the original
20% reduction in opening hours reducing to 18% and therefore the impacts
identified with respect to equality and diversity were similarly lessened.

LRA’s Banning Policy. This policy and its associated procedures were
revised in 2018/19. Through an initial equality impact screening, whilst there
were no negative impacts on protected characteristics, it was identified that
the existing banning letters were written in such a way that they were not
easily understandable due to the complex language used. The mitigating
action resulted in a simple, plain English version and other accessible formats
in order to meet potential requirements of those with protected characteristics
associated with Age, Disability and Race.

LRA’s Bearsted Temporary Location project. The library in Bearsted had
to be temporarily housed in an alternative location in 18/19. Customer data
from Spydus and local staff knowledge was used to identify the needs of the
users in Bearsted and as a result flexible moveable shelving was put in place
to enable access for existing groups including those with protected
characteristics such as Disability and Maternity.

LRA’s Faversham Good Day Programme at Faversham Library
As part of making better use of KCC buildings a space was identified at
Faversham Library that could be used by the Faversham Good Day
Programme (GDP). GDP has been running since 2008 and develops
community-based day opportunities for people with learning disabilities. As
part of this project, a new ‘Changing Places’ toilet will be built so that anyone
who needs assistance with their personal care can benefit from this asset. As
well as the toilet, the scheme involves a library refurbishment and
reconfiguration. As part of the refurbishment, customers were consulted on
what items of stock they would like to see added, or particular areas
developed, which included books and resources on disabilities. Existing

Page 75



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

groups such as Talk Time (comprising generally older customers), were
relocated temporarily during the refurbishment process.

Additional projects delivered in 2018/19 that align to ECHR domains.
Domain — Education

EPE’s Trading Standards Life Skills. This public protection educational
toolkit has been developed for young people under 18 years old in special
schools, secondary schools and youth groups. It will help prepare them for
the challenges of adult life and encourages safe, independent living to reduce
the risk of financial harm in the future. From an equality perspective, actions
identified include: use of plain English; accessible formats (e.g. audio) for
those with a visual impairments or dyslexia. (Age, Disability and Race
characteristics).

Domain — Work

LRA’s Lone Working Policy. In many library venues, a system of lone
working is operated. The associated policy and procedures were revised in
2018. An equality impact screening identified a potential issue for staff with a
disability working alone. Mitigating action has been written into the policy
which stipulates that any staff self-identified within this group will have a
personal risk assessment completed to ensure any reasonable adjustments
are put in place (which may include only team working).

HTW’s Technical & Environment Service Contract tender. The Technical
and Environment Services Contract (TESC) was implemented in April
2018/19 and provides (amongst others) the following services: Highway
design; Traffic modelling; Site supervision; and Environmental advice. Whilst
no negative impacts for protected characteristics were identified through an
EqlA, the contractor Amey have their own robust approach to equalities.
Examples include: working with Kent Supported Employment to provide
disabled people work experience within the Highways contracts — with a view
to full time employment; and partnering with The Prince’s Trust to provide
career advice and guidance to young care leavers. (Disability and Age
characteristics)

Domain - Living Standards

HTW’s TW Public Realm Phase 2. Working with Amey and Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council, the scheme has been designed to provide a more
pedestrian focussed Tunbridge Wells town centre allowing better pedestrian
movement, cycling, access to buses, improved lighting and air quality
improvements. Data was collected via a customer survey, pedestrian counts,

Page 76



5.5

5.6

5.7

traffic movement data and two exhibitions which has informed equalities
improvements to the scheme including tactile paving to assist road crossing
for visually impaired users (Disability characteristic).

EPE’s Flood and Water management strategy. KCC has a duty to develop,
maintain, apply and monitor a strategy for local flood risk management in Kent
under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010. The strategy sets out how
local flooding will be managed in the county with one of the objectives being
to support and improve the safety and wellbeing of Kent’s residents and the
economy of Kent through appropriate flood risk management. For the
protected characteristics of Age and Disability, an equality impact screening in
18/19 identified mitigating actions for those who may have difficulty reading
material published to advise about flood risk and mitigation measures or
reporting flood events. Accessible alternative reading materials have been
made available. (Disability and Race characteristics).

Domain — Health

EPE’s Coroners’ Body Removal and Transfer Contract. This project
covers the renewal of contracts (1) for the removal of deceased from place of
death to designated hospital mortuaries in Kent and Medway, and (2) for the
transfer of deceased between designated mortuaries in Kent and Medway,
and other specialist mortuaries outside of Kent. The service’s EglA identified
that considerations for unaccompanied and vulnerable older or younger
people (Age) and Disabled people present at a sudden death would be given
by other services on the scene such as the Police. Under the protected
characteristic of Race, translation can be provided for those who do not speak
English as a first language, and equally the leaflet given on behalf of the
Coroner ‘Where a death is referred to the Coroner’ which explains why the
deceased is being removed, can be provided in alternative languages.
Should any Religion or Belief characteristic requirements arise with regards to
the removal and transportation of the deceased to the designated mortuary,
the contracted Funeral Director will call the Coroners’ Office for guidance.
The Coroner has discretion to agree to any such requests provided that they
do not compromise the preservation of the body of the deceased as evidence
for the Coroners’ enquiries.

Domain — Participation

EPE’s Kent Sport Equality and Diversity Statement. This statement of the
Kent Sport and Physical Activity Service and the Kent & Medway Sports
Board is part of the requirement to comply with the highest level (Tier 3) of
Sport England’s Sports Governance Code as Sport England provides Kent
Sport with funding. It is published online and accompanied with a Board

Page 77



diversity action plan. Although there was no adverse impact identified from the
screening, some specific areas were highlighted for consideration in the EqlA
action plan to ensure that protected groups are not negatively affected by
work undertaken. For the protected characteristics of Age, Sex, Disability
and Race, it was identified that promotional material may not be
representative or accessible to those groups and therefore imagery and
accessible formats were annotated in the action plan. For the protected
characteristics of Gender Identity, Sexual Orientation and Race it was
considered that engagement with these groups would need to be addressed
by considering new partners, networks for promotion of opportunities and
consultation.

5.8 ED’s Village Halls. Village Hall grants support communities’ village halls
which have a purpose to enable an environment that is based on
inclusiveness, where all users and potential users, can benefit from the
facility. For example, a key activity in support of village halls and other
community venues has been the investment in facilities for groups of Disabled
people and improved access, further benefiting Age, Maternity and Carers
characteristics. Its support for improved central heating and insultation in
such venues also opens up their use to wider numbers of people with certain
protected characteristics. By improving the fabric of community venues, it has
improved their usability.

6. Conclusions

6.1 GET continues to improve its compliance with the Equality Duty by improving
year on year the volume, depth and underpinning data of completed equality
impact assessments.

6.2 The Directorate’s approach to equality and diversity is carefully positioned to
underpin the Directorate’s approach to customer insight and customer service.

7. Recommendation(s)

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note current performance,
provide any comment, and agree to receive this report annually in order to comply
with the Public Sector Equality Duty 2010

8. Background Documents
Background Documents
KCC Human Rights and Equality Strategy 2016 — 2020:

http://www.kent.qgov.uk/ data/assets/pdf file/0007/67075/Executive-summary-of-
our-annual-equality-and-diversity-report-2016-2020.pdf

Page 78



http://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0007/67075/Executive-summary-of-our-annual-equality-and-diversity-report-2016-2020.pdf
http://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0007/67075/Executive-summary-of-our-annual-equality-and-diversity-report-2016-2020.pdf

Contact details

Report Author

e Sarah Bedingfield

e 03000 414417

e sarah.bedingfield@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

e Stephanie Holt-Castle

e 03000 412064

e Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

Page 79


mailto:sarah.bedingfield@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory Services

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: Gypsy and Traveller Service — emerging Policies
Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: n/a
Future Pathway of Pathway of Paper: N/A
Electoral Division: Canterbury City North, Cranbrook, Dover North, Malling Central, Malling

North East, Sevenoaks Rural North East, Sevenoaks West,
Sittingbourne North

Summary: This report updates Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on
emerging proposed policy changes of the KCC Gypsy and Traveller Service. In particular
taking account of the results from the consultation exercise it outlines the approach to
developing an Asset Management Plan and a draft Pitch Allocation and Site Management
Policy. It also describes the intention to develop a new draft Gypsy and Traveller Service
Charges and Rent Setting Policy, and by the end of the financial year, an Unauthorised
Encampment Strategy.

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and make comments to the
Cabinet Member on the emerging proposed policies and strategies and Asset
Management Plan.

1. Introduction and background

1.1. KCC owns and manages eight gypsy and traveller sites. KCC manages a further
two sites on behalf of Maidstone Borough Council.

1.2. The Office for National Statistics (ONS) figures suggest that there are an estimated
4,522 Gypsy and Travellers living in Kent. This could include individuals living on
private or local authority owned sites, ‘bricks and mortar’ housing, unauthorised
developments or travellers in the literal sense. Kent County Council has approx.
343 residents? living on the eight sites owned and run by the KCC Gypsy and
Traveller Service (GTS).

1.3. The County Council has no statutory obligation to provide or manage sites unlike
the district councils who have a duty to provide accommodation for the Gypsy and
Traveller community through the Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment (GTAA). KCC contributes to a number of Kent Districts’ assessments
by providing 131 pitches in total, across the county.

! Office for National Statistics: Census 2011, CT0769 Metadata — Ethnic group: Gypsy, Traveller, Roma,
Gypsy/Romany
g Gypsy and Traveller Service Census 2016. Page 81




1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

2.1.

The decision for KCC to own and manage sites is historic but came about as a
negotiation in 1967 under the auspices of the forthcoming Caravan Act 1968 that a
number transfer from six district and borough councils within Kent. The sites must
be managed in line with the Mobile Homes Act 1983. In addition, as a local
authority, all policies and practices relating to the sites must of course meet the
Public Sector Equality Duty. Case law has determined that Romany Gypsies and
Irish Travellers are protected against race discrimination as they are recognised as
ethnic groups under the Equality Act.

In October 2017, a consultation took place on a draft Gypsy and Traveller Pitch
Allocation Policy, to meet the residents’ needs and changing demands on the
service, developing sustainable provision fit for the future. This draft policy was
wider than its title suggests, and incorporated the allocations process, the licence
agreement terms and conditions, rent setting principles (including service
charges), resident vetting processes including DBS checks, and enforcement
processes.

47 responses were received, principally from site residents (58% of respondents,
both online and orally). Issues on which respondents felt most strongly were:
affordability of increased rent; a proposal around a deposit scheme; literacy and
ICT challenges in the affected community meaning the consultation process might
not reach all of the affected community; understanding how higher charges would
be calculated; wishing greater investment into the sites; and the rent approach
having parity with social housing. As a result of the consultation KCC has taken
into consideration the responses made and has developed further proposals to
inform two future draft policies, which are introduced in this report to Environment
and Transport Cabinet Committee.

This report outlines the new proposals to inform planning for a second public
consultation on a new draft Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Allocation and Site
Management policy and on a new draft Gypsy and Traveller Service Charges and
Rent Setting Policy. It is intended that the public consultation on both policies will
take place in the autumn 2019.

Proposed Service Policy Changes and Methodology
As a result of the initial consultation in 2017, GTS has been developing the

proposals around four areas of work. Table 1 highlights the issues raised, actions
being delivered and recommendations for further work.

Table 1

Asset management 8 sites requiring Asset management Further site surveys to

maintenance and strategy and plan to be be carried out.
improvement developed, site action Investment options to
plans to be included. be explored.
Resident engagement.

Rental income Current rental fees do Rent setting policy and Increase in rental fee to

not cover the cost of process to be developed @ ensure an effective
running and maintaining | in conjunction with service and ‘steady state
the sites to desired asset management asset’ can be delivered

standard trategy.
Page 82S &Y



Allocations & site
management

Current allocation policy
does not have parity

New Pitch Allocation
and Site Management

Housing needs scheme
to be adopted to ensure

Unauthorised
encampments

2.2.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

with social housing policy to be developed

to include housing

fair and transparent
allocation and site
needs banding scheme.
New policy to go out to
consultation.

management

UE service is subsidised
from GTS rental income

UE policy to be
developed

Funding options to be
explored

To develop robust proposals, the GTS have developed in conjunction with GET’s
Systems and Data team, data capture tools. This includes a case management
system to ensure regular updates inform and update planning for the site and pitch
provision. In addition, national trends being realised locally such as almost entirely
female licence holders, or benefit claim anomalies, have been investigated with
the assistance of KCC Strategic Business Development & Intelligence (ST SBDI)
team.

Asset Management Plan

Results from the first consultation in 2017 highlighted the need for an asset
management approach. The GTS are currently developing an asset management
strategy through which action required on the eight KCC owned and managed
sites can be prioritised. The strategy and resultant action plan will detail the
repairs, maintenance and investment needed to ensure compliance with the
Mobile Homes Act and that standards such as the Housing Health and Safety
Rating System (HHSRS) are achieved whilst the service meets budget
requirements within a sustainable framework.

The asset management plan has sampled three Gypsy and Traveller sites out of
the eight KCC own and manage, to calculate costings per pitch establishing an
indicative current ‘at steady state’ investment position. This along with site action
plans will inform the asset management strategy highlighting the capital
investment required to ensure sustainability and longevity for the benefits of
residents, sites and of the service.

To assist asset management, site visit data has additionally been recorded
developing a greater understanding of asset condition.

The refurbishment works needed to improve outcomes for residents will bring
parity between sites, ensuring standards are met, improving health outcomes and
enhancing the environment. Investigation into central government funds through
the Affordable Homes Programme and KCC Capital Works Programme may help
to bridge the performance gap. This capital investment would ensure that the sites
become sustainable and that the GTS can continue to deliver the service for the
Gypsy and Traveller community.

In addition to KCC funding all of the GTS overhead costs, the service additionally
derives an income from the residents’ pitch fees which contribute to existing critical
refurbishment works.

Page 83



4. Draft Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy proposals

4.1. The current Pitch Allocation Policy 2012 does not include site management.
However, 2017 consultation feedback highlighted that the two themes were linked
and in response have been included together in the emerging new draft policy.

4.2. The new draft Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy will propose three
principal changes from the Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Allocation Policy 2012.
These three proposals set out a clear direction for the service to secure a
sustainable future, maximising the positive outcomes the service can deliver.
These positive outcomes include planned site improvements for residents (based
on the Asset Management Strategy and Action Plan described above), an
improved allocations process for customers, and efficiencies for the service.

4.3. Table 2 below details the key features of the draft policy proposals

Table 2
Outcome Summary highlights
Sustainable Proposal 1: Applying a service charge for serviced communal

and innovative
service

areas
Communal areas including shared grass space, access paths etc that
are serviced by the GTS will levy a charge in addition to the pitch rent.
This will cover maintenance costs incurred for the upkeep of these
areas.

These costs in the past have either been met within the budget but
consequently another issue has been forgone or no action has been
taken due to budget constraints and the situation has worsened. The
development of the asset management plan has not only highlighted a
more efficient and effective management approach for pitches and
overall sites but also for the communal areas.

Reduction in
debt for
residents

Proposal 2: Two weeks rent in advance.

Respondents from the 2017 consultation referred to the practices of
social housing, utilised by local councils. KCC has listened to these
requests and is proposing a similar customer journey. As part of this
process residents will be asked to pay two weeks’ rent in advance.

Two weeks’ rent in advance and managing the risk of residents going
into arrears, is common practice for Registered Social Landlords
(RSLs) commissioned to manage social housing by the local councils.
Paying rent is an important responsibility for a resident and paying rent
in advance gives residents the opportunity to budget and build up
credit, offering a safety net should circumstances change
unexpectedly.

KCC Gypsy and Traveller site residents are currently asked to give
notice of termination at a period of four weeks, and rental for this period
is required. When two weeks’ rent in advance is applied, this will
reduce the end debt, financially helping residents with their move off
the site.

Page 84




In addition, should a resident vacate without notice the resident
remains liable for the costs during the termination period. Again, this
debt will be reduced for the resident at this time when the two weeks’
rent in advance is applied.

Increased
parity with
social housing
and improved
customer
journey

Proposal 3: Banded allocation process.

Respondents from the first consultation highlighted the disparity
between the application process for social housing and KCC Gypsy
and Traveller pitch accommodation. The draft policy will now
recommend addressing the disparity by introducing a banding
(prioritisation) system used by social housing that can be applied to
Gypsy and Traveller pitches, similar to that of other councils nationally
such as Northumberland County Council or in Kent, Maidstone
Borough Council (MBC).

This proposed change from the current Gypsy and Traveller waiting list
process to a fairer banded process will utilise mobile applications and
the internet to increase digital accessibility alongside more traditional
communication methods.

Currently Home Choice Based Lettings (HCBL) is the delivery
mechanism used by all district and borough councils of Kent to enable
applicants to apply for ‘bricks and mortar’ properties. Applicants
register online, are banded by the district or borough council and then
properties can be applied for in line with social housing allocation
processes. Applications, commonly known as ‘bids’, will be undertaken
by the applicant to show interest in a KCC Gypsy and Traveller pitch.
Under the new draft policy, the applicant by this point has already been
assessed and understands the banded allocation (prioritisation)
process of awarding pitches.

Currently applicants wanting to live on a KCC site apply for a pitch and
are registered as such by the GTS. The applicant is then added to the
waiting list. The applicant is then only assessed for a pitch when one
becomes available. This leaves the applicant uncertain as to whether
they are likely to gain a pitch in the near future or at all. The
consultation feedback suggested that potential residents would prefer
parity with the district/borough banded allocation process.

Whilst KCC Gypsy and Traveller pitches are outside the scope of the
Choice Based Letting Scheme run by all district and borough councils,
where housing applicants apply for social accommodation, the same
principles can be applied for eligibility and assessment to those
applicants wishing to register and apply for a pitch. To deliver a similar
online process, KCC is exploring commissioning a Choice Based
Lettings provider to enable applicants to apply, or bid, for the desired
pitches, increasing opportunity, transparency and efficiency.

The banding award is not based on a points system but by how the
allocation of a pitch meets the accommodation need of the individual.

e Band A — urgent need to move
e Band B — high priority _

Page 85




e Band C — medium priority
e Band D — low priority

These bands will be described in detail in the final draft policy. Once
banded, it is intended that the applicant can bid for a pitch/pitches that
they wish to be considered for and the applicant who has been in the
highest priority group for the longest period is then eligible for the pitch.
This gives the greatest choice and flexibility for the applicant in relation
to their need. If an applicant wishes to apply for both district housing
and KCC pitches banding, the GTS service will utilise the
accommodation need assessed by the district/borough council to
ensure consistency of assessment. However, the principle aim is to
emulate the social housing processes, not necessarily delivery from the
same process.

Every assistance will be given to applicants to access the
accommodation register and search for accommodation available as
the GTS will work with partners to support internet applications from
locations such as libraries, district and borough offices and Citizen

Advice Bureaux offices etc.

4.4

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

The 2017 consultation highlighted that the proposed Disclosure and Barring
Service (DBS) checks are not necessary, and the service will not be continuing
with this proposal.

Draft Gypsy and Traveller Service Charges and Rent Setting Policy
proposals

Rental fees in the past have been set by the District Valuer Services (DVS) who
carry out a range of statutory duties covering rental data, fair rents and Local
Housing Allowance rates. This advice changed in 2016 for Gypsy and Traveller
sites, and thus rental fees are currently agreed with individual local authorities in
line with the localised rent affordability calculations for social housing within any
particular district or borough.

This original advice determined the pitch fee by comparing similar charges of rent
in the locality and the condition of the accommodation. However, there are few
genuine comparisons with Gypsy and Traveller site pitches. Nationally sites vary
and there are small numbers of publicly run Gypsy and Traveller sites in the South
East.

The condition of the KCC owned sites and pitches has been declining for a
number of years and has contributed to a minimal rent charged.

After discussions with the DVS it was decided that an asset management
approach to setting the rent would be fair and transparent. Paragraph 3 above
describes the developing asset management strategy which will then inform the
rental fee, helping ensure that in the medium-term the sites become sustainable
and that all costs to provide the sites and pitches are recovered.

Page 86




6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Draft Unauthorised Encampments Strategy proposals

An unauthorised encampment is a group of people with vehicles who are
trespassing on land with the intention of residing there without the landowner's
permission. The Unauthorised Encampment (UE) service delivered by the GTS,
removes UEs from KCC owned land on behalf of Highways and Gen2. The service
is frequently called upon to advise on UEs on land not owned or managed by the
County Council.

Unauthorised Encampment numbers have risen dramatically from 2016, anecdotal
evidence suggests a 50% increase on last year 2018/19 in UEs across Kent
recorded by all local authorities. Data is currently being captured across Kent by a
new multi-disciplinary UE working group and a county wide Memorandum of
Understanding is being developed by all partner agencies.

The removal of a UE can take time and the duration and nature of engagement
from the GTS can differ from an initial welfare visit to court appearances and finally
bailiff removal. This engagement work can typically take from four to seven days
for removal.

The cost of managing these unauthorised encampments includes additional staff
resources, legal fees, bailiff support, tow trucks, storage charges, disposal charges
and clear up costs.

The cost is currently principally absorbed by the GTS when the UE is on KCC
owned land.

Public Consultation

The consultation on the draft Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy and on
the draft Gypsy and Traveller Service Charges and Rent Setting Policy is planned
to take place in Autumn 2019 and will engage all current site residents, district and
borough councils, the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and wider
stakeholders.

Stakeholders will be sent draft policy documents providing details of the proposals,
a guestionnaire, an easy-read version and a copy of the Equality Impact
Assessments. The consultation documents will also be available in hard copy from
KCC libraries, Gateways and will also be available online. During the consultation
period, the Service will hold drop-in events at each of the eight KCC sites across
the county for site residents to come and talk to staff about the proposals.

Pre-consultation work is taking place with district and borough councils to ensure
the proposals are robust. The new Pitch Allocation and Site Management policy
may directly impact the district /borough councils’ existing housing policies as they
currently do not include the allocation of local Gypsy and Traveller pitches.
Discussion and analysis of their allocation process and application data will shape
further the KCC Gypsy and Traveller pitch allocation process.

Following the end of the consultation a full analysis and report will be completed
which will be presented to Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee. The
recommendations, analysis reports and updated Equality Impact Assessments will
then be considered by the Ca’_t;(ijlrbeejSB/Iember for Community and Regulatory



8.1.

8.2.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

services before a key decision is taken on each of the Pitch Allocation and Site
Management Policy, the Gypsy and Traveller (Service) Rent and Charges Policy,
and latterly within the year, the Unauthorised Encampment Strategy.

Equalities Implications

The initial Equality Impact Assessment from the 2017 consultation is currently
being updated in light of the issues raised by the respondents. New Equality
Impact Assessments are being developed to inform the emerging Policies and
Strategies outlined in this report. Based on the analysis to date it is concluded that
there are potential effective mitigations to be tested at consultation.

The original consultation raised concern for the Race protected characteristic
within the Gypsy and Traveller community in relation to the perceived unaffordable
increase in pitch fees and lack of improvements to sites. Investigating these issues
further, KCC has identified effective mitigation reducing the risk of inequality. The
Equality Impact Assessments are therefore informing the new proposals including
reviewing cases on a case by case basis; offering support from organisations such
as Citizens’ Advice Bureaux; and the proposed asset management strategy led
approach.

Financial, GDPR and HR Implications

The GTS budget comprises of rental income only. KCC covers all of the wider
overheads.

The GTS income derives from rent gained from the 131 pitches and has to date
covered the cost of staffing, emergency site and pitch repairs, and unauthorised
encampment costs.

The GTS has an income target to enable it to invest back into the sites and pitches
according to their need identified through the asset management plan. The service
will not be in a position to confirm the validity of that income target and therefore of
the income available to reinvest, until it has completed the Asset Management
Plan, Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy, and Gypsy and Traveller
Service Charges and Rent Setting Policy. The service is therefore currently
presenting an ongoing financial pressure (overspend) which needs to be
addressed.

Maintenance on-site has been reactive reflecting the short-term availability of
funding rather than the consideration for durability, life cycle, replacement costs or
longevity. The asset management strategy, plan and site action plans are being
developed to identify the capital works needed over the next three years and
identify the investment required to bring the sites to a ‘steady state of asset’.

The asset management surveying to date has identified that the smaller more
remote sites are the least cost effective and need the greatest amount of
refurbishment.

In addition, there are two sites that have been identified as having serious fly-
tipping issues needing resolution through enforcement. This has been difficult to
resolve as there is no one enforcement service within KCC which is responsible for
the legal enforcement of this typg,%gvggte disposal, therefore, to resolve the fly-



9.7.

9.8.

9.9.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

tipping issues on site, the GTS require additional support. A GET Directorate
Investigations and Enforcement Project will support the service in taking this
forward.

Detailed financial implications will be presented alongside each draft policy or
strategy when it comes before Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee.

The current staffing levels are adequate therefore it is not predicted that there are
any HR implications.

This report does not contain nor consider any personal data and therefore there
are no GDPR implications of this report.

Conclusion

By delivering the two strategies and two policies described in outline within this
report, KCC can ensure the GTS sites are fit for purpose, benefiting the
communities on and around the sites, helping to deliver the three KCC strategic
outcomes.

The draft Pitch Allocation and Site Management Policy, the draft Gypsy and
Traveller Service Charges and Rent Setting Policy and the draft Unauthorised
Encampment Strategy will all be brought to Environment and Transport Cabinet
Committee in 2019, ahead of their respective public consultation, to support KCC
to provide a sustainable service to the Gypsy and Traveller Community.

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and make comments to the
Cabinet Member on the emerging proposed policies and strategies and Asset
Management Plan.

Background Documents

Report Author:
Jayne Collier-Smith, Project Manager Gypsy and Traveller Service.

Helen Page, Head of Countryside and Community Development Group

Relevant Director:

Stephanie Holt-Castle

Interim Director for Environment, Planning and Enforcement
Tel: 03000 412064

Email: stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

Page 89



mailto:barbara.cooper@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport & Waste
Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment &
Transport

To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019

Decision No: 19/00053

Subiject: Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) — Infrastructure delivery partner

with Dover District Council
Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of Paper: None
Future Pathway of Paper: For Cabinet Member Decision

Electoral Division: Dover West, Dover North and Dover Town

Summary: Approval to enter into a legal agreement with Dover District Council to act
as an infrastructure delivery partner at no cost or risk to the County Council and to
take the project through detail design, planning, statutory approvals and to enter into
a construction contract.

Recommendation(s):

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse, or make
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste on the proposed decision as follows and as indicated on the proposed
decision sheet attached at Appendix A.

i) Approval to enter into legal agreements with Dover District Council to
undertake the delivery of the Infrastructure Works at no cost or risk to the County
Council.

i) Approval for KCC officers to project manage, input into the delivery and
supervision of the project, with the cost of all staff and consultant time being
recoverable against the project funding.

i) Approval to undertake the detailed design and surveys for the project, to
include a new bridge crossing the A2, associated approaches to link to
existing/proposed highway, a new link road through the undeveloped White Cliffs
Business Park, improvements to the existing Dover Road and links/improvements
for the junction onto the existing A258. This work will be undertaken by procuring
consultants through an existing framework contract.

Page 91



iv) Approval to acquire the land and rights for carrying out the construction and
maintenance of the BRT project

V) Approval to progress all statutory approvals and consents required for the
scheme including Section 6 Agreement with Highways England, drainage and
environmental consents and detailed planning permission.

Vi) Approval to enter into construction contracts as necessary for the delivery of
the scheme subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board to the
recommended procurement strategy.

vii)  Approval for any further decisions required to allow the scheme to proceed
through to delivery to be taken by the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment &
Transport under the Officer Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with
the Cabinet Member.

1. Introduction

1.1 The Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project will provide a high quality and
reliable public transport service linking major housing allocations at Whitfield
(5,750 homes) to Dover Town Centre and the High-Speed Rail services at
Dover Priory Station. The BRT also has the potential to facilitate Park and Ride
services to Dover Castle and the Town Centre / Waterfront, assisting future
growth and opportunities within the District.

1.2 Part of the new route will be delivered through the build-out of the housing
developments and part of the route will utilise the existing highway network.
However, new elements of infrastructure have been identified for the route, as
follows:

a) New A2 overbridge for bus/ pedestrian and cycle access.

b) New dedicated bus link through White Cliffs Business Park (to Dover
Road).

C) Localised widening of Dover Road.

d) Junction improvements at Castle Hill Road (To be delivered as part of
the proposed Connaught Barracks Development which is now owned by
Homes England)

1.3 In order to advance the project, Dover District Council (DDC) submitted a
funding bid to Homes England (HE) for £15.8m through the Marginal Viability
Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) in September 2017, for the infrastructure
elements listed above.

1.4 Following ongoing discussions with Homes England, further clarifications were
required and submitted in November 2018. Funding of £16.1m was

Page 92




15

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

subsequently confirmed at HE's Grant Recommendation Panel on 12 April
2019, subject to DDC concluding the following funding pre-contract conditions:

a) DDC to provide written evidence that independent State Aid advice has
been sought and that there are no issues in this regard.

b) DDC to confirm in writing that it accepts its obligation to use reasonable
endeavours to recover the HIF grant funding via appropriate
contributions from landowners/developers associated with the delivery of
housing development through the planning process and recycle it into
future residential housing development schemes.

C) DDC to provide a revised cash flow for the scheme that reflects the HE
opinion on land value.

d) DDC to provide evidence that all land required for the implementation of
the BRT is within its control.

e) DDC to provide to HE its strategy for the procurement of an operator for
the BRT and for DDC to confirm in writing that it will work in partnership
with KCC Highways and a Bus Operator to use money from S106
Agreements to operate, or subsidise the operation, of the BRT for a
minimum period of 3 years from the date of the BRT completion.

DDC have made progress with all the conditions and expect to discharge these
with HE prior to the execution of the funding agreement.

Financial Implications

There are no implications to either the KCC revenue or capital budgets. Dover
District Council made a successful funding bid through Homes England’s
Marginal Viability Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) and were awarded £16.1m
in April 2019.

The County Council supported DDC with the funding bid and were involved with
the production of the project estimate and risk allowances.

The funding is being drawn down quarterly by DDC directly from Homes
England and KCC will invoice DDC on a monthly basis to recover costs. DDC
have accepted that for KCC to provide the resources to deliver the BRT
scheme there will be no financial cost and no risk to KCC — covering these
aspects and ensuring KCC is not exposed to financial risk are the key aspects
of the Agreement with DDC.

Policy Framework
The scheme supports the Strategic Statement Outcome 2 by reducing

congestion, improving the highway infrastructure to provide more reliable
journey times and improved public transport links and accessibility, to support

Page 93



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Kent business and housing growth and encourage economic activity to benefit
the local and wider communities.

The Report

As part of the project development, several preliminary investigations have
been carried out and reports produced to demonstrate the viability of the
proposed scheme and to support the funding bid. These include:

a) A Feasibility Options Report, a Preliminary Design Interim Report and a
Geotechnical Feasibility Report.

b) Route options report produced by Atkins Highways & Transportation,
who undertook design development work on three potential route options
for BRT in 2013, identifying a preferred option through the White Cliffs
Business Park between the B&Q roundabout and Dover Road.

C) Amey feasibility report on the proposed bridge to carry the BRT and a
combined footway/cycleway across the A2 at Whitfield.

Initial surveys and investigations focused on some of the key risk areas to
ensure the project estimate was robust and included for the appropriate level of
risk.

DDC received approval at their Cabinet meeting on 1 July 2019 to enter into a
funding agreement with Homes England. A report is to be taken to their full
Council meeting on 24 July 2019, and subject to the outcome of this meeting, it
is anticipated that the legal agreements will be signed at the end of July 2019.

There are no legal implications associated with this scheme. Invicta Law will be
drafting the Infrastructure Delivery Agreement with DDC.

Once the legal agreements are in place the County Council will appoint a
design consultant through an existing framework to undertake the work required
to complete the detail design, contract documents and planning application.

The County Council will be appointing an independent cost consultant through
an existing framework to provide support in managing the expenditure on the
project.

Once the design is sufficiently developed, a public consultation will be held with
key stakeholders, the local community and the general public, to allow the
scheme to be refined and the design finalised. The consultation will be carried
out jointly with DDC.

Highways England is a key stakeholder for the new bridge as it crosses over
the A2. Both a Section 6 Agreement, that allows KCC to undertake work on the
strategic road network, and technical approval will be required. Initial
discussions have been held with Highways England and they have given their
support in principle to the project.

Page 94



4.9 Delivery of the scheme will be dependent on completing the detailed design,
obtaining planning permission and procuring a contractor through a competitive
tender process under European procurement rules. The current project
estimate includes a risk and inflation allowance, but a more robust estimate will
be prepared as the design develops and where it will be possible to provide a
more accurate assessment of the project risks. DDC will be required to approve
the final contract price before construction contracts are signed.

4.10 The HIF funding must be spent by 31 March 2022, so it is currently anticipated
that construction will commence in early 2021.

4.11 DDC will be establishing a Project Board that will meet quarterly to manage the
delivery of the project and sign off any significant changes to the project.

4.12 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out and is appended to this
report.

4.13 DDC have or are currently arranging for land agreements with developers
where land is required for the project. The proposed infrastructure will become
adoptable highway at completion of the project and as such all land secured for
the scheme by DDC will be transferred to the County Council.

4.14 A risk register has been developed jointly by DDC and KCC, which identifies the
key risks to the delivery of the project across areas such as cost, design,
operation, planning and programme. The primary risk items are:

a) DDC are unable to execute the funding agreement — DDC, with support
from KCC have made significant progress in concluding the pre-contract
conditions.

b) Land required for the scheme — DDC already have an agreement in place
for the land through the White Cliffs Business Park and are currently
progressing an agreement for the land required for the new bridge. All
other land required for the project is either highway land or is already
owned by DDC.

b) Planning/EIA Requirements — Planning is required for the new bridge and
road through the White Cliffs Business Park. Work has already started to
mitigate this risk by undertaking work required to seek an EIA screening
opinion.

4.15 Subsequent to the decision by the Cabinet Member, any further decisions
required to allow the scheme to proceed through to delivery will be taken by the
Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & Transport under the Officer
Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with the Cabinet Member.

5. Conclusions

5.1 This is an important project that will help support housing delivery, job creation
and general economic activity, as well as provide transport mitigation to both

Page 95



local and strategic road networks and improve public transport links. The
project is fully funded by an allocation of £16.1m of HIF funding to Dover
District Council and carries no risk or cost to KCC.

6. Recommendation(s)

Recommendation(s):

The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and
endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste on the proposed decision as follows and as indicated on the
proposed decision sheet attached at Appendix A.

i) Approval to enter into legal agreements with Dover District Council to
undertake the delivery of the Infrastructure Works at no cost or risk to the County
Council.

i) Approval for KCC officers to project manage, input into the delivery and
supervision of the project, with the cost of all staff and consultant time being
recoverable against the project funding.

iii) Approval to undertake the detailed design and surveys for the project, to
include a new bridge crossing the A2, associated approaches to link to
existing/proposed highway, a new link road through the undeveloped White Cliffs
Business Park, improvements to the existing Dover Road and links/improvements
for the junction onto the existing A258. This work will be undertaken by procuring
consultants through an existing framework contract.

iv) Approval to acquire the land and rights for carrying out the construction and
maintenance of the BRT project

V) Approval to progress all statutory approvals and consents required for the
scheme including Section 6 Agreement with Highways England, drainage and
environmental consents and detailed planning permission.

Vi) Approval to enter into construction contracts as necessary for the delivery of
the scheme subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board to the
recommended procurement strategy.

vii)  Approval for any further decisions required to allow the scheme to proceed
through to delivery to be taken by the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment &
Transport under the Officer Scheme of Delegations following prior consultation with
the Cabinet Member

7. Background Documents

e Appendix A — Proposed Record of Decision
e Appendix B — Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 96




8. Contact details
Report Author
e Barry Stiff, Project Manager, Capital programme Team

¢ 03000 419377
e barry.stiff@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

e Simon Jones, Director of Highways, Transportation & Waste
¢ 03000 413479
e simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

Page 97


mailto:barry.stiff@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL — PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: DECISION NO:

Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, 19/00053
Transport and Waste

| For publication

| Key decision: YES

Subject Matter / Title of Decision: Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) — Infrastructure delivery
partner with Dover District Council

Decision:
As Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste, | agree to:

)] Approval to enter into legal agreements with Dover District Council to undertake the delivery
of the Infrastructure Works at no cost or risk to the County Council.

i) Approval for KCC officers to project manage, input into the delivery and supervision of the
project, with the cost of all staff and consultant time being recoverable against the project funding.

iii) Approval to undertake the detailed design and surveys for the project, to include a new bridge
crossing the A2, associated approaches to link to existing/proposed highway, a new link road
through the undeveloped White Cliffs Business Park, improvements to the existing Dover Road and
links/improvements for the junction onto the existing A258. This work will be undertaken by procuring
consultants through an existing framework contract.

iv) Approval to acquire the land and rights for carrying out the construction and maintenance of
the BRT project

V) Approval to progress all statutory approvals and consents required for the scheme including
Section 6 Agreement with Highways England, drainage and environmental consents and detailed
planning permission.

Vi) Approval to enter into construction contracts as necessary for the delivery of the scheme
subject to the approval of the Infrastructure Commissioning Board to the recommended procurement
strategy.

vii)  Approval for any further decisions required to allow the scheme to proceed through to delivery
to be taken by the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport under the Officer Scheme
of Delegations following prior consultation with the Cabinet Member.

Reason(s) for decision:

The Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project will provide a high quality and reliable public transport
service linking major housing allocations at Whitfield (5,750 homes) to Dover Town Centre and the
High-Speed Rail services at Dover Priory Station.

The project will help support housing delivery, job creation and general economic activity, as well as
provide transport mitigation to both local and strategic road networks and improve public transport
links. The project is fully funded by an allocation of £16.1m of HIF funding to Dover District Council
and carries no risk or cost to KCC.

Cabinet Committee recommendations and gifgs gonsultation:




Once the design is sufficiently developed, a public consultation will be held with key stakeholders,
the local community and the general public, to allow the scheme to be refined and the design
finalised. The consultation will be carried out jointly with Dover District Council.

The scheme is being discussed at the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 16 July

Any alternatives considered and rejected:
None

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the
Proper Officer:

Page 100

01/decision/glossaries/FormC




29/ Sl¥ 0000 uo auayds|e) Jo YN A0B JUSH D OJUIANSISAIP JORIUOD BSES|d "SJELLIC) JBYJ0 Ul 9|QBJIBAR S| JUSLLUNJOP SIY |

I 6102/.0/S0 paiepdn juswndoQ aleQ

(juawdojenaqg
s)oeueqg ybneuuo) pesodold ay) Jo Yed se palaalep 2q 0} awayds jeuld) peoy (IIH ense) je siuawaaoclidwi uonsunp (p

‘peoy Jaro(q jo Buiuspim pasieaon (o

{peOY Janoq 0}) yied ssauisng spiD Sy ubBnouy) yul| snq pajesipap maN (q

8889208 9|2A2 pue ueujsepad fsnq 10} abpuUqIano gy maN (e

:SMOjjo} Se ‘alnol

B} 40} pBUNUSP! UBSQ SABY SINJONUISEIJUl JO SJUSLIBIE MaU ‘JSABMOH jlomjau Aemybiy Bunsixa ay) asiin pm 3ol ay) jo ued
pue s)orileg Jybneuuo) pue playiUYAA ul sjuswdojgasp Buisnoy ayy jo Ino-pling ayi ybnouy) paialap aq [jIm 81nos mau U Jo Ued
10I81q 94} uIypm saijiunyoddo pue ymoub ainyny

Bunsisse ‘yuoipalepn / 21U UMO, SY) pue J)ISBD) JBAO(] 0} SIJIAISS aply pue j3Jed aieyjioe) o) [enusiod ay) sey osje |xg 8yl

‘uone)s Aoud JaaoQ je saoines ey peads-ybiH eyl pue anuan umo] taaoq o) (Sswoy 0SZ°S) PIBUNYAA 1B suonedojie Buisnoy
Jofew yuy| 0) so1a19s Hodsuel) algnd s|qelas pue Ayjenb ybiy e apiaold o} si josfoid psuel) pidey sng Jaaog ay) Jo asodind ay)

a2iAlas o Jo9losd ‘ainpasoad ‘Aaijod jo uonduosap jaug
(Lyg) usues] pidey sng ian0Q

:201A49S 40 j93foud ‘ainpasoid ‘Aoljod ‘uolsioap Jo awepN

aje|dwae) (yb3) juswissassy joedwy / sisAjeuy Ayenby

(139) ejei0)0311g Modsurl] pue JUBSWIUOIIAUT ‘YIMOls) - 99

Page 101



29. Sl 000€0 uo auoydaja) Jo Yn°AcB UMD OJUIANSISAIP JORIUCD 8SES|d 'SIBULIO) JBUIO0 Ul S|GEIBAE S) JUSWINJ0P SIY |

4 6102/20/50 paiepdn Juswnoo( aleQ

"84NS0[2 8Y} JO pUS BUO WOJ UonoNIISUeD Buunp paulejuiew aq sAeme (M saiusadoad
[enplaipul 0} sse00y ‘sabels uonejuswaldwi pue ubisep ay) Suunp N0 palled aq [Im Jojelado snq ay) Ylim UosIel sawi yesd
1e Bujuunt eojes e doay 0} apew aq [|m Hoye Alaas Ing ‘eoinles sng Bunsixs ue uo Joedw Aew siy | "Ajajes UoIoNIISUOD ale)(Ioe)
0} peoy JaA0O( 8SOj0 0} Alessadau aq jIim ) slaym uononisuod Buunp syoedw sanebau moj Aesodwa) apiaoad [m joslold ay)

uaye} uaaq saey Ajjlenbs sjowoid o} seiunpoddo [jle pue uoneuwuosip 1o} [ejuajod ou - sbueyo Jofew oN e
'S paynuapl uasq sey jey) juswabpnl ay) ‘Juswssassy Buiusalog | Hed ay) jo uonajdwod ay) Bumo|jo4

"Aum ujejdxe Apesio sses|d ‘paynsni eq ued
sjoedw aAnebau Aue §| ‘sdnolc) psjosjold JueAs|al ay) Jo) JUSLUSSASSE JNOA WO PUNO) SABY NOA suoneondwl ey} mojeq Jno 189S

ANIW3IOaANr

"PIBUNYAA 18 Juswdojanap Buisnoy ay) aeinwiis flim siv) ey padoy s )i Jnoy UB UeY) $$9] JO UOPUOT]
0} Yul| pasds-ybiy e jo uoisiroid aininy ay) s Os|e |IM YoIum uonels Aold Jaaoq e sjusweaosdw pesodosd yum uonounfuod uj

"saw}
Aaumnol a|qeljas alow yyum aaiauas e und o} Jojesado snq sy} ajqeus |[im syul nodsuely oqnd paacidwi ey 'saop Apuaung piaulym
LwoJ} 92IAI9S 8y} se yiomiau Aemybiy paleys e Buisn 1sAo adimas snq ey} Jo) sijeusaq juediiubis spiacid jIim siyl yled ssauisng
SHIID SNYAA BY] O) PEOY JBA0(Q WO} SSSIE BU) JE pue gy ot} Jaao Butssouo abpuq ay) Je sAemsieb Ajuo snq aAey |im @ncs ay

‘sjuauidojaaap syoeueq Jybneuuos pue plRIIYM 341
Aq pajesausb aq |Im Jey) oied) Ul 8sSealdul ey} Wwody syJjomiau peol oifsjel)s pue |eo0] ay} Yyioq o} uonebijiw apiacad m 109foad ay

‘plemuioy saWwod JuswdolaAasp pPIBIRIYM BY} JO Jsowl alojeq |euonelado aq o} )l Buliqeus ‘uonejuswaidw s} Joy
paau ay} jo abejs Aues ue je aJnod | Mg ||e49A0 By} Jo sluswala Asy apiaoid jm Joafoid siu) Jo Hed se pasodaid ainjoniysenul ay

seAl}0alqQ pue swy

Page 102



29/ Sl 000€0 uo auoyds|s) 1o yn"A0B UL DOJUIANSISAIP JOBJUOD BSES|J "S]EULIO) JBYI0 Ul S|qR|IBAE S| JUSWINDOP SIY |

6102/,0/S0 palepdn juswnooq ajeq

BB 29 o) Buney joedw Ajjjenb3 esiaapy ay) punoy aAey |

"SEaJe ||ejoJ pue SSauIsng
‘SJ00YDS ‘84)uad aINSIaT ‘SBJIYO [I9UN0YD JoM)sIq Jaaog Buipnioul ‘sspiuswe [eso] Bunsixe o) syu) BulloAo pue ueuisepad jeuonippe

apinosd pue saoinies sng Bupsixe eoueyus (m Jey; ainonasenul mau Buipinoad Ag syoedwir sapisod Jaalep m 1osfoid syl

Page 103



29/ SL¥ 000E0 uo auoyda|a) 1o 3N A06 JUSH @ OJUIANSIBAIP JOBJUOD SSED|d "SJEWLIO) JBYJO Ul 3|E[IBAB S| JUBWINJOP SIY L

6102/20/50 parepdn swnooq sjeq

C)oz \AU\M 10j0au1g nw\\ \ m SSUO LUoWIg

\K\ =) Q\m\\ .«\\\ =7 aoIAI9S JO pesH w;.\r\w loe _+\\ S peay wil

anssj jo ajeq SLL ainjeubig aweN

"paynuapl ussq aAey/ sey Jey (s)oedw!
aslanpe Aue ayebijw o} suonoe sy} yum aaibe | -Juswssassy Joedwy/sisAjeuy Ajjenbg ay) o) piebas anp pied pue peas aAey |

uone}sany
(10198.41Q JUBAS|BL BY3 puR 8D1AISG JO PEAH JUBASIAI BY} UI0q 9q 1SN siUl) JO-ubig Jusawnsoq

(yo subis
Joyang ayy
UOISIBA 8} 0}
paubisse aq
pInoys siug)
yns Aueg | 6102 AInr GO LA

wes] Apsialg @ Ajjenb3 woyy soeqpas) Bumolo) papuswy s Aueg | 6102 AINr SO AV

joeqpasy 1o} yeiqg yns Aueg | gLOg sunr Gg L'OA

JusWIWo) sloyny aged UOISIOA

A10)SIH UoISIAY

JoJjuo) Jusawnosoq 139

Page 104



29/ Si¥ 000£0 Uo suoydala) 10 YN A0BJUSHTDIOJUIANSIBAID JOBIUOD BSES|d 'SIELLLIO) JBY]0 Ul S|ge|IBAR S| JUSLUNDOP SIY |

S 6102/20/50 pajepdn yuswnoaoq ajeq
saljlusWe [eso| )
0} 58208 aAosdw aul|-4o s}lom
OS|e |[IM anjonJiiseljul uonRanIsuo9 JBYIo
map 'dojs snqg e | “sawi |[e Je paulejulew
JO WQOS UIyIm pajeoo) aq o) seiuadoid
Auadoud Aiana yim |ENPIAIPUL 0} SS320Y
sjuawdojaAasp msu ‘uoponisuod Buunp
aAI8S pue uoISIA0Id paso|2 8q 0} pasu
aolnes bunsixe [llm peOI 3y} SE peoy
32UBYUS |IIMm ‘SJUBWIB|S Janoq Buoje ajelado
Ajuo snq Buipnioul Jey) saalAIas snq
‘aunjonuiselur | Bunsixs ay) o} yoeduy
SNQ MaU JO UOISIAOld | Aselodws) wis} Loys 1pedw) oN yoedw)| oN aby
Joeduw) ajqeinoAey Joeduy .
mojwinipep/yBiH| | 3oedw)| eApebeN moT] oApeBaN wnipay .ﬁmmnE_ aapeBeN ybBiH dnoig pajoaoig
= _ peuBisuninoAioj peuinjez aq M VI3’ |
sy} 40 ‘sBulpuy unoA 03 sk Auejuswiwod japiq e apjroid SN NOA

sjuawalainbazs |eba| ay)
0} Buipioooe paynsnl aq 0} peau J|m UORBUILLILDSIP }02Jipul pue TUCKEUINOSIP J08JIp JOJ UoReoRnsnl ou S| 819y} Jey) ajou aseald

dnaib sjy; 10y sepiunpoddo jenba ajowoud aoiales o J93fold ‘asnpasoad ‘Aaijod siy pinoo

Zjuayj ul siayjo ueyyy (Ajlaanebau) Ajqeinoae} ssa| (mojaq
paisi|) dnolg pajoajoud Aue joaye ‘3 o) sabueys pesodoid Aue Jo ‘adiazas Jo }93foid ‘ainpasosd ‘Aoijod sy pjnos

‘uojjelap|suod Japun adjAIas 40 J23foud ‘ainpasold ‘Aoyjod ‘uoisioap ay) Buipsebay

BUlUeelog - | HEd

Page 105



29/ S1¥ 000£0 uo auoydala) Jo NN ACH JUBY D OJUIANSISAIP 19BIU0D 9SES|d ‘SIELLLIOJ JBYJO0 Ul S|E[IBAR S| JUSWINDOP SIY L

6102/.0/50 palepdn wawnoo(q sjeq

edw| oN 1oedw| oN 1oedw)| oN 10edw| oN ooey
Japuabsues)
joedw| oN Joedw] oN oedw] oN 1oedw| oN /Aynuap Jepuas)
Joedw| oN 1oedw| oN yoedw| oN 1pedw| oN xX9g
seale |iejal -
pue ssaulsng ‘sjooyoss
‘aljuan) ainsian
‘S821J0 [louno)
101181 Joaoq Buipnjoui
saljiuswe |eao|
0) $S820e aaosdw BUI-LO 21 SHIOM
OS|E ||IM 8Jnjonaiseljul uoioNIISU0D J8YI0
map "dojs snqg e | ‘sawi) ||e e paulejulew
JO WIS WIyum pajeso) 2q 0} seluadoid
Auadoud Aana ypim [ENPIAIPU] 0} $§800Y
sjuswdojaasp mau "uonjanisuod Buunp
anles pue uoisiaoid pasoo aq 0} pasu
2ouas Bunsixa | |Im peod ay) se pecy
adUBYUD ||IM ‘SluBWB|S Jano(q Buoje sjesedo
Ajuo snq Buipnjoul Jey) $a21AI9S SNQq
‘ainjongseul Bunsixa ay) 0} 10edw
SNQ mal JO Uoisinold |  Alelodwa) uus) Hoys 1oedw| oN 1edw| oN AMgesig
seale |iejal s o

pue ssaulsng 's|jooyos
‘asua) ainsja]
‘S20IY0 |I2UN0D

101181 Jaaoq Buipnjoul

Page 106



29/ S1¥ 000£0 uo auoyds|a) Jo N"A0B JUSHDB)OJUIANSIAAIP JOBJUCD BSEB|d "SIEWLIO) JBYJO0 Ul B|qB|IBAR St JUSWINIOP SIY |

6102/.0/S0 Pajepdn uswnooq ajeq

aAI8S pue uoisiaold
a9)A18s Bunsixa
a0uUBYUS |IMm ‘sjuaws|s
Aluc snq Buipnjouy
‘alnjonJiseljul

SNQ Mau JO UOCISIAOIY

paso|2 8q 0} paau
[lim peol 8y} Se peoy
Janoq Buoje siesado
jey} saolales sng
Bunsixe ay) 0} 1oedun
Arelodwa} wus) poys

sapjiqisuodsay
s dalen)

sdiysiauped

VIN VY/N V/IN __VIN| 119 pue sbejiep
seale |lejal
pue ssauisng ‘sjooyoss
‘8/jua) ainsia
‘S891J40 |12UN0Y)
ousIq 1eaoq Buipniou
saljluawie [ed0)
0} ssao%oe aaoduwl BU||-Jo ale sHIom
0S| ||IM 8Injonsiselul uoloNIIsuU0d JIBYIO
map 'dojs snqg e | "sawi ||e e paulejuliew
JO WIOOS UIYIM paledo) aq o) seiyadoud
Auadoid Aiaas yum |ENPIAIPU] 0} SS820Y
sjuawdojaasp mau ‘uoponisuod Buunp
aAlas pue uoisiaoid pasoo 8q 0) pasau
aolMes Bunsixa | [im peod sy} se peoy
aouByuD |IMm 'SUBWY|e Janoq] Buoje ajelsdo
Ajuo snq Buipnjou JeY) S80)AI8S SNq
‘alnoniiseyur | Bunsixe ay) 0} 1oedw Auwiaepn
SNQ MaU JO UoIsinold | Aeiodwa) wue) Hoys pue Asueubaid
1oedw| oN yoedw| oN 10edw| oN joedw| oN | uonejualQ [enxag
jolleg
10edwl oN yoedw| oN 1oedw} oN yoedw| oN pue uoibijay

Page 107



29/ S1¥ 000E0 Uo auoydaja} 10 3N°A0B UBNTD)OJUIANSISAIP JOBIUOS SSES|d "SIEULIOJ JAUJ0 Ul S|gB|IBAR SI JUSWINIOP SIYL

6102/,0/S0 Perepdn juswnao( sleq

Seale |lejal

pue ssauisng ‘sjooyos
‘aJjua) ainsia
‘S901Y0 |IoUnoD
1M3sI J8aoq Buipnioul
sajjiuswe |eo0|

0} §5920€ aAocuduw
OS|e [Im alnjonJjseljul
maN "dojs snq e

40 WS ulyim pajedq)
Apadoud Alena yum
sjuawdojaAap mau

Bul-4o ale syiom
UONONIISUOD JBLNO

"saLug J|e 18 pauleuiew

aq 0} saluedold
[ENPIAIPUI 0} $S800Y
"uoljanIsued Buunp

Page 108



29/ S 000E0 uo auoyds|s) 10 yn"A0B JUSYHDIOJUIANSISAIP JOBJUOD SSEB|d "SJRULIO} JOYIO Ui 3|gR|IBAR SI JUBLINJOP SIU L

6102/,0/50 pajepdn wswnoocq ajeq

abe)s siyj je pasinbad jou sy Juswssassy joedwy/sisAjeuy Ayjenbg N} v

juswissassy joedul|/ sisAjeuy Ajijenb3 [|nd - ¢ 1Med

Page 109



29/ Sl¥ 000€0 uo auoydals) 10 3n°A06 UMD OJUIANSIDAIP JOBIUOD BSEA| "SJBLLLIO] J8Y10 Ul 3|qe|iBAR S| JUSLUNIOP SIY |

0l

6102/20/S0 perepdn uswnaoq sjeq

[EWIUIN

saseyd
uBjsep Bung

ns Aueg

'sse004d ubisap ay)
oJul yoeq pa) sjnsai
pue usyeuspun

a4 [lm slipne NAIN

pasiel suwaduo)

*543SN
peod (|2 0} uaalb

S| UOHEIIPISUOD ANP
aInNsua o} uayepspun
aq [ sppne NIAIN

‘500¢ Jaqusdaqg
Sl paysiignd jsay
Aujiqo antsnou)
uo aJuepIng
vodsuei]
jojuawuedaqg e
‘sanlqestp
upm asoy}
pue (NIN) siesn
PasiolCW-uouU 10}
uone[siia) Jua.und
uo paseq aouepinb
saalb yoiym
‘(84nQq) sebpug
pue speoy Jo)
[enuepy ubisaq eyt e
‘4Im 2OUEPIODDE
ul JNo palues aq [Im
ubisap pajejap ay L

‘abejs
aunc Je Apuaung
51 aWaY9s ||

uOo[joNJSU0D

Buunp (pjo pue
BunoA Ajeinoued)
Wodsuen oygnd

0) SS899E PajoL)Sey

sainsoo peoJ Bunnp
SUOHOISaL SS8308
1snp ‘asiou — ajdoad
Japjo lo} 1pedwy
S3}JoM LIONONJISU0D)

suojjesiduwi
921n0say

a|edsawll]

J8umQ

Sawioono
pajoadxy

uaye;
aq| 0} uopay

pauijuapi sanssj

9By

~opsuajoeIRy)
paja9ioid

uejd uondy - ¢ Jed

Page 110



Ll

29/ S1¥ 000E0 Uo auoydaja) Jo YN'A0B JUDYDOJUANSISAIP JDBIL0D BSES|d "SIELLLIO) JBYIO U) 9|GR|IBAB S| JUSWNSOP SIUL

6102/.0/50 palepdn uswnooq sjeq

[ewun

saseyd
uBisap 6uung

s Aueg

*ssasoud ubisep ay)
0ju] yoeq pa} synsal
pue uayeuspun

aq |iim supne NN

alnsua 0] uayepepun
3q i SHPNE NIAIN

'S00z Jequwadag

Gl paysiignd s1y
AMjgow emsnjou| uo
asuepIng yodsues |
Jouswpedaq
‘saifjgesip

yum asoy) pue (NAIN)
s19sn pasuojow-uou
loj uone|siba| Juauno
uo peseq asuepinb
sanb yoym (gyna)
sabpug pue speoy
Joy jenuepy ubisaq ay)
Ylim 82UEpIOIDE

ul JNo pauled aq |Im
ubisap pajejap ay L

‘abes
aune Je Auauna
S1 9WsYIs ay |

uononusuos Buunp
Hodsues agnd
0] SS800E Pajol]say

S8JNS0j2 peol
Buunp suoousal
$59008 ‘)SNp ‘asiou
oy} sayiiqesip

yiim s1asn Joy oedw)

A

qes

‘uondrusip asiwuw
0] JapJo ul Joy pauued
eq ue9 sjuap|sal

10} sjuswannbal
aunads Aue

JEY) 2Jnsua o) aseyd
UONaNIISUoD auy)

10 peeye no peled
aq |m sjuapIsal

Ui Juawabebu]

*859001d ubBisap ay)
Ul pasapIsuod ag jim
$5820Jd uoye)NSUd
Buwued ayy ybnoayy

Page 111



¢l

29/ Sl 000€0 uo suoydajs) 40 3n°AcB U D OJUIANSISAIP JOBIIOD 9SBI|d "SIBLLLOY JAYI0 Ul Sjqe|ieA. Si JUaWnoop Siy |

6102/20/S0 Pajepdn juswnooQ ajeq

fewiuyy

seseyd
uBisap Buung

s Aueg

*ssaooud ubisep ay)
ojuI y2eq pPa) synsal
pue usyeuapun

24 ||m sipne NN

Anigopy aasnjou| uo
asuepIng podsues |
Jo juawpedaq
‘saljligesip

Uum asoy) pue (NINN)
S198N pPaslojow-uoy
loj uopesifial Juaund
uo paseq asuepinb
sanlb yoiym (guna)
sabpug pue speoy
10} |enuepy ubisaq ay)
UM 8aUEPIOdIE

Ui Jno palLed aq |Im
ubisap pajelap syl

-abe)s
aulIno 1B Apusung
S1 3WaYs 3y |

uonannsuod Buunp
saiadoud o} sseooe
ajpiysa Bujuiejuiepy

‘uoldnisip asiLUIW
0] JapJo ul Jo} pauued
aq ueo sjuapisal

Joj sjuswalnbal
oipoads Aue

ey} aJnsug o) aseyd
UONONUISU0D 8}

1O PESYE JNO palIED
aq ||1m sjuapisal

yim juswabebug

*ssaoold ubisap ay)
Ul piapIsSuo? ag |im
ssa20.d UOlR)NSU0D
Buuued sy ybnoay

Pasiel swaduos)

‘s1asn
peoi ||e 0] Uaalb
S} UONEJapISUOD anp

Ajweiep
pue AsueuBaid

Page 112



€l

Z9. Sl¥ 000£0 Uo auoyda|a} 1o ¥n°A0B UMD OJUIANISISAIP JOBIUOD 8SBS|d "SIBULIOS JBUI0 U) S|qE|IBA. S| JUSLUNJOP SIY

6102/L0/S0 peiepdn uswnooQq sleq

WUy

saseyd
ubisap Buung

s Aueg

'ssa004d ubisep ay)
ojul ¥oBq pa} synsad
pue uayeuspun

aq ||m sppne NN

$Jo9sn pasuojow-uou
10} uone|sibe| JuaLN2
uc paseq aauepinb
sanb youm (gyiNg)
sabpug pue speoy
Jo} [enuepy uBisaq ay)
Yiim adueploooe

Ul JNo paules aq |m
ubisap pajieiop ey L

-abe)s
aulpno Je Apuawung
S| 9LWIBYIS By |

uonanssuos Bunnp
saluedoud o) ssedoe
ajoiyea Buluejuiey

sapijiqisuodsay
s Jalen

‘uondrusip asiwiuiw
0} Japlo ui Joj pauued
aq ued sjuepisal

Joj sjuswseJinbay
olaads Aue

1) aunsue 0} eseyd
UOI}OTU}SUCD By}

Jo peaye Jno pajed
aq ||Im sjuapisal

yum yuawabebug

'ssa004d ubisep ay)
Ul PaJapIsuo9d aq |Im
ssasozd uolje)nsuoa
Buuueld ay) ybnoiuy

pasiel suJaouos)

"siasn

peol ||e 0} uanib

S| UDJJEJBP|SUOD anp
8JNSUI 0} USNELHAPUN
aq (™ supne NN

'S00T Jaqusdaq
G| payslignd 1s1y

Page 113



vl

29/ S1¥ 000£0 uo auoyda|a} 10 JN'A0B USHDOJUANSIOAIP JOBJUOD B8SEB|d 'SJEULIO} JBUI0 U] B|QE|IBAR S| JUSLINDOP SIY Y

6102/20/50 pelepdn uswnooq sjeq

‘palinbai se pajepdn pue joaloid ay) Jnoybnoly) sBunasw ubisap Jeinfeal je palojjuow aq ||ImM SUONOe 8yl — ON

iued 221A19s /SSauIsng JNOA Ul papnjoul uaaq SUOKO. 8y} 9ABH

‘uondrusip asjwiuiL
0] JapJo ul Joy pauued
5Q ued sjuapIsal

Jo} sjuawalinbal
aoads Aue

Jey) ainsug o) aseyd
UDNOMIISULOD 8L}

0 pEesye N0 paIeD
aq [m sjuapisal

yum Juaswsbebuy

‘ssao0ud ubisap ay)
Ul PaIapISU0d aq ([IM
ss8004d UORE}NSUGD
Buiuued ay) ybnoayy

PasIBl SLI2IU0T

"Slasn
peol |je o} uaa)b

S| UOIJEJapISUDD anp
2INSua 0} UaYeuspun
aq |m stipne NAIN

‘G002 sequsdsg

G} paysignd jsiy
Anigoly aaisnjou) uo
aouepIng podsuel )
Jo Jueweds(
‘saljliigesip

yum asou pue (NNN)

Page 114



Agenda Item 13

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment
and Transport

To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Decision No: 19/00054
Subject: KCC Country Parks — Decision to approve fees and charges for

Pay and Display and Season Ticket charging, and the principles
for establishing future fees and charges

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A

Future Pathway of Paper: For Cabinet Member Decision

Electoral Division: Canterbury South, Cheriton Sandgate & Hythe East, Gravesend

East, Gravesham Rural, Maidstone Rural West, Malling Central,
Ramsgate, and Sevenoaks North & Darent Valley

Summary: This paper details Pay and Display and Annual Parking Season Ticket
fees and charges for Kent Country Parks (KCP) following an annual review. This
paper also sets out a number of key principles applied when establishing fees and
charges for discretionary parking services provided to visitors and customers using
the Kent Country Parks.

Recommendation(s): The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked
to consider and endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for
Community and Regulatory Services on the decision to increase fees and charges
for Pay and Display and Annual Parking Season Ticket fees and to delegate
authority to the Head of Country Parks to annually review and publish revised fees
and charges subject to the application of a number of key principles as shown at
Appendix A.

1. Introduction

1.1 KCC owns nine country parks, seven of which hold a Green Flag award, four of
which were Silver, Silver Gilt or Gold award winners in the 2018/19 Keep Britain
Tidy Awards, and one of which (Brockhill Country Park, in Saltwood, Hythe)
won the South East England Country Park of the Year in 2018/19. Shorne
Woods Country Park in Gravesham has previously won that prestigious award
on three occasions, reflecting the quality of these community assets right
across the portfolio. The average customer rating according to the most recent
visitor survey is 9.25/10.

Page 115



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

KCC is entitled to charge for Pay and Display at the Kent Country Parks under
Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 (Power to Charge for
Discretionary Services) and Section 43 of the Countryside Act 1968.

Kent Country Parks determine each site’s daily car parking charges by the
range and quality of services and facilities provided at the particular site to
ensure a fair and consistent approach across the portfolio. The service
allocates the nine country parks to one of three bands which are determined in
line with the amenities on site.

Band 1 Country Parks, of which there are four in the portfolio, are sites with the
widest range of customer facilities which can include visitor centres, permanent
catering and w/c facilities, large or multiple children’s play areas and a variety
of marked or accessible trails. They also host a seasonal events programme,
educational programmes, venue hire, children’s birthday parties and team
building as additional paid for activities. Band 2 Country Parks, of which there
are four in the portfolio, are sites with seasonal catering facilities, w/c facilities,
medium sized children’s play areas and a variety of marked or accessible trails.
Band 3 Country Parks, of which there is one in the portfolio, are sites with no
catering, wi/c facilities or children’s play areas but that have a variety of marked
or accessible trails.

Pay and Display charges are applied on a daily basis. Customers are able to
spend as long as they like (within the operating hours of the park) using the
Country Park and all of its facilities for a fixed daily fee. Visitor numbers are
significantly higher on weekend days compared to weekdays and therefore
charges at weekends are higher to reflect the increased demand, as well as to
encourage visitors to visit off peak on weekdays when the pay and display fee
is lower.

Enforcement of non-payment of Pay and Display charges uses Automatic
Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) technology. This system is designed to
capture the number plates of vehicles as they enter and leave the car park and
to correlate this information against valid pay and display tickets, or valid
entries on the exemptions list. This means that all drivers, including those with
a valid blue badge, are required to pay and display to avoid penalty charges for
non-payment being applied.

As an alternative to the daily Pay and Display charges, regular visitors to the
Kent Country Parks are encouraged to purchase an annual parking permit
(season ticket) that, once the initial season ticket is purchased, provides them
with unlimited free parking at all nine parks in the portfolio for a period of 365
days. A similar subsidised annual parking permit is available for blue badge
holders.

Both daily Pay and Display charges and annual parking permit fees have not
changed since 2017/18 despite increasing financial pressures on the service.
This report details the current and proposed changes as outlined in Appendix 1
with the intention for increases to be imposed on 1% September 2019.

Page 116



1.9 The Kent Country Parks Service has applied a number of principles in

establishing both the daily Pay and Display charge and the annual parking
permit charge:

a) Itis incumbent on the Service to charge for activities that are
discretionary given the pressures on the County Council finances.

b) Charges will be costed, reasonable and comply with all applicable
legislation, regulation and guidance.

c) Charges will be reviewed annually and, if needed, on the enactment of
any amending legislation, regulation or the issuing of guidance.

d) Charges will reflect the true cost of service provision and will include
both direct and indirect costs of service provision as well as Corporate,
Directorate, Divisional and Service overheads.

e) The charges for specific sites have been established in line with the
principles above and our best assessment of the visitor facilities and
customer experience whilst using the Kent Country Parks and have
been applied fairly and consistently across the portfolio.

1.10 In order to limit the need to seek further Executive decisions in respect of

2.1

2.2

2.3

charges, delegated authority is sought to enable annual adjustments up to the
maximum value of £5 per annual season ticket and also to the maximum
value of £2 per daily pay and display charge to be made to the published fees
and charges without the need for further Executive decision. Adjustments will
be made following the same set of key principles above and in keeping with
competitor leisure facilities in the county

Financial Implications

The nine country parks are extremely popular with residents and welcome 1.5
million visitors every year. The vast majority of park users understand that
every penny raised through car parking is invested directly back into the parks.
Pay and Display car park charging raised £395,555 across all nine country
parks in 17/18. This represents 30% of the £1.3m income the service generated
in 17/18. Pay and Display car park charging raised £391,861 across all nine
country parks in 18/19. This represents 26% of the £1.5m income the service
generated in 18/19. It is therefore a vital income stream for a discretionary
service. All income raised through Pay and Display is invested directly back into
KCC Country Parks.

The number of annual parking season tickets has increased year on year.
There were 1212 standard season ticket holders in 17/18, rising to 1532
standard season ticket holders in 18/19. There were 682 blue badge season
ticket holders in 17/18 rising to 1437 blue badge season ticket holders in 18/19.

Country Parks service reviews the annual parking season tickets price and the
daily pay and display charges each year. The current daily parking charges
were set in 2017-18 and based on the principles above there are no plans to
increase these fees in 19/20. The standard ticket has increased in small
amounts most years but remained at £50 in 18/19, with no increase from 17/18.

Page 117



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The Blue Badge season ticket has remained at £3 since its introduction in
2015.

All monies from the sale of season tickets is reinvested back into KCC Country
Parks. This has included improvements to parking facilities such as disabled
bays, signage, pay by mobile as well as improvements to park facilities such as
access-for-all paths, provision of trampers (all terrain mobility vehicles) for less
mobile visitors and more benches to enable blue badge holders and other less
mobile visitors to have greater confidence to venture further into our sites. In
18/19 an additional tramper mobility scooter was purchased for the fleet at a
cost to the service of £8,500, 1000km of additional accessible pathways were
created and 3,500km of accessible pathways were repaired and maintained to
ensure that access for customers remains in a quality state. The standard (non-
blue badge) season ticket covers the costs of processing the purchase and
contributes to the maintenance of the parks just as a member of the public
using Pay & Display to pay for parking does. The £3.00 blue badge season
ticket does not cover the whole cost of processing the purchase, (which is
£7.57) and does not make any contribution to the maintenance of the parks.

In November 2017 a new online payment system was introduced. In
conjunction with this the valid period of a season ticket was changed to 12
months from the date of purchase rather than the financial year 1% April to 31
March. This removed a tiered charge (paying a pro rata amount depending at
what point in year season ticket was purchased) for the standard ticket, and is
better value for the customer.

A review of the season ticket prices and daily pay and display fees has been
carried out. We have seen a significant increase in the number of blue badge
season tickets since their introduction, which is positive as it indicates more
disabled customers and their family or friends are accessing and enjoying our
parks. However, the associated costs of servicing more blue badge purchases
have also increased, as this client group are less likely to use self-service
online payment, preferring to contact Contact Point for telephone payments and
support.

The annual price of both season tickets are proposed to rise from the 1
September 2019 by £2. The standard ticket will therefore increase to £52
(costing the customer £1.00 per week to use all nine parks as frequently as
they wish) and the blue badge season ticket will increase to £5.00 (10.4 pence
per week). This £5.00 figure has been set as the sum to make the processing
costs of all blue badge season ticket applications neutral (i.e. putting together
those that do apply online with those that use contact centre) but will not
provide any surplus funds to support the ongoing maintenance of the parks’
infrastructure.

Based on 18/19 sales of season tickets the proposed uplift will generate an
additional income for the service of £5,938. It is anticipated this will contribute

Page 118



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

to the annual increase in running costs to the service and not to provide an
additional surplus income.

Policy Framework

Kent Country Parks’ work programme is determined by the Kent Country Parks
Strategy 2017 - 2021

This Strategy helps deliver KCC Strategic Outcome 2 — “Kent communities feel
the benefits of economic growth by being in work, healthy and enjoying a good
quality of life.” The Strategy particularly contributes to Strategic Supporting
Outcome “Kent’s physical and natural environment is protected, enhanced and
enjoyed by residents and visitors.”

This Strategy has three strategic aims, one of which is “Ensuring the Service is
as financially self-sustainable as possible.”

This Strategy was endorsed by the Environment and Transport Cabinet
Committee on 31% January 2018.

Legal considerations

KCC is entitled to charge for Pay and Display at the Kent Country Parks under
Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 (Power to Charge for
Discretionary Services) and Section 43 of the Countryside Act 1968.

KCC Legal Services have confirmed lawfulness of parking enforcement through
English contractual law and this has recently been tested and ratified through
the Local Government Ombudsman following a customer complaint.

Equality considerations

No equalities implications have been identified; an Equalities Impact
Assessment (EglA) initial screening and a Data Protection Impact
Assessment (DPIA) has been completed.

Conclusions

The Kent Country Parks service relies on the income generated from daily Pay
and Display charges and the sales of annual season tickets in order to continue
to maintain the parks and the services they provide to a high-quality standard.

The proposed £2 increase will affect all sales of annual parking season tickets
with effect from the 1% September 2019. There are no proposed increases to
daily pay and display charges in 2018/19.

The proposed increase to annual parking season tickets is to cover the
administrative costs of providing the season ticket facility and will enable blue
badge season tickets to be provided as a cost neutral offer rather than one that
costs the service to administer.

Page 119



6.4 Delegation of authority to the Head of Service to make annual increases to the
maximum additional value of £5 to annual parking season tickets and £2 to
daily pay and display charges will reduce the need for further Executive
decisions to be made in order to respond to the changing market. All decisions
for future increases to charges will be made in line with the principles outlined
in this report.

6. Recommendation(s)

Recommendation(s):

The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and
endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Community and
Regulatory Services on the decision to increase fees and charges for Pay and
Display and Annual Parking Season Ticket fees and to delegate authority to the
Head of Country Parks to annually review and publish revised fees and charges
subject to the application of a number of key principles as shown at Appendix A.

7. Background Documents

7.1 Appendix 1: Current and proposed daily pay and display charges and annual
parking season ticket charges for Kent Country Parks.

7.2 Appendix 2: Proposed Record of Decision

7.3 Appendix 3: Country Parks charges for daily Pay and Display fees and Annual
Parking Season Ticket fees — EQIA

7.4 Appendix 4: Data Protection Impact Assessment

8. Contact details
Report Author

Helen Page

Interim Head Countryside and Community Development
(03000) 417711

Helen.page@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

Stephanie Holt-Castle

Interim Director, Environment, Planning and Enforcement
(03000) 412064

Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

Page 120



mailto:Helen.page@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

PROPOSED PARKING CHARGES 2019-20

Appendix 1

Country Park Current rate Proposed rate Difference |Difference
W'ends / W'ends / W'ends /
Mon-Fri BHs Mon-Fri BHs Mon-Fri BHs

Shorne Woods Country Park £ 20 1|£ 300]|¢ 2.00 300 £ } _
Lullingstone Country Park £ 150|£ 250|lg 1s0|f 250|lg - g -
Trosley Country Park £ 150|£ 250l 150|£ 2850|lg - £ -
Brockhill Country Park £ 150|£ 250l 150|£ 250|le - g -
Teston Bridge Country Park £ 130|£ 200|lfg 130]|£ 200l - |[£ -
Grove Ferry Picnic Site £ 130|£ 200|lfg 130]|£ 200]le - |£ -
Pegwell Bay Country Park £ 130|£ 200|leg 130]|g 200|le - |£ -
Manor Park Country Park £ 130|£ 200|£ 130|£ 200|le - |£ -
White Horse Wood Country Park | ¢ 100 £ 150 £ 100 £ 150 £ } £ .
Annual Parking Season Current |Proposed
Tickets annual annual

rate rate Difference
Standard Season Ticket £ 50.00| £ 52.00 | £ 2.00
Blue Badge Season Ticket £ 300|£ 5.00]|£ 2.00

Page 121




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL — PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY:

Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for 19/00054
Community and Regulatory Services

| For publication

| Key decision: YES

Subject Matter / Title of Decision
KCC Country Parks - Fees and Charges

Decision:
As Cabinet Member for, Community and Regulatory Services, | agree on the proposed decision to:
e increase fees and charges for Pay and Display and Annual Parking Season Ticket fees, and

e delegate authority to the Head of Country Parks to annually review and publish revised fees
and charges subject to the application of a number of key principles

Reason(s) for decision:

KCC is entitled to charge for Pay and Display at the Kent Country Parks under Section 3 of the
Local Government Act 2003 (Power to Charge for Discretionary Services) and Section 43 of the
Countryside Act 1968.

Both daily Pay and Display charges and annual parking permit fees have not changed since
2017/18

All monies from the sale of season tickets is reinvested back into KCC Country Parks.

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:
The proposed decision and principles for future charging is being discussed at the Environment and
Transport Cabinet Committee on 16 July

Any alternatives considered and rejected:
None

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the
Proper Officer:

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



GeT abed

Appendix 3

Kent County Council
Equality Analysis / Impact Assessment (EqlA)
for decisions, policies, procedures, projects or services
Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate (GET).

e Please complete this cover sheet, including the Document Control Section, and Part 1 initially.
e Part 1 will inform your decision on whether you need to complete Part 2
e Part 2 will inform your decision on whether you need to complete Part 3

Further guidance is available at http://www.kent.gov.uk/ data/assets/pdf file/0019/11809/Equality-impact-assessment-
policy-quidance.pdf

Name of decision, policy, procedure, project or service:
Proposed increases to Country Parks charges for daily Pay and Display fees and Annual Parking Season Ticket fees.
Brief description of policy, procedure, project or service

Annual increase in daily pay and display parking charges and annual parking season ticket prices across the nine Kent
Country Parks sites.

Aims and Objectives

Kent County Council (KCC) is privileged to own and manage a range of country parks and countryside sites which contain
some of the highest quality natural habitats and landscapes that Kent has to offer. The service seeks to protect and
manage these natural environments at the same time as providing high quality opportunities for individuals, families and
communities to play, learn and relax in these essential greenspaces across the county.

Date Document Updated 05/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762


http://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0019/11809/Equality-impact-assessment-policy-guidance.pdf
http://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0019/11809/Equality-impact-assessment-policy-guidance.pdf

92T abed

Appendix 3

Document Control

Revision History

Version Date Authors Comment

V0.1 24.06.19 Helen Page First Draft

V1

(this should
be assigned
to the version
the Director
signs off)

Document Sign-Off (this must be both the relevant Head of Service and the relevant Director)

Attestation
| have read and paid due regard to the Equality Analysis/Impact Assessment. | agree with the actions to mitigate any adverse
impact(s) that has /have been identified.

Name Signature (for paper copy only) Title Date of Issue
Kate Phillips Head of Service

Stephanie Holt- Director of EPE

Castle

Date Document Updated 05/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



o+ ARy

Part 1 - Screening

Regarding the decision, policy, procedure, project or service under consideration,

Appendix 3

Could this policy, procedure, project or service, or any proposed changes to it, affect any Protected Group (listed
below) less favourably (negatively) than others in Kent? Could this policy, procedure, project or service promote equal
opportunities for this group?

Please note that there is no justification for direct discrimination; and indirect discrimination will need to be justified according to

the legal requirements

Protected Group

Please provide a brief commentary as to your findings

High Negative Impact | Medium Negative Impact Low Negative Impact

High/Medium/Low
Favourable Impact

UAge No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
2 in charging.
3Disabi|ity No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
N in charging.

Gender No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change

in charging.

Gender identity/
Transgender

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Race

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Religion and
Belief

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Sexual
Orientation

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Date Document Updated 05/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762




Appendix 3

Pregnancy and
Maternity

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Marriage & Civil
Partnerships

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

Carer’s
Responsibilities

No impacts positive or negative noted to this protected characteristic as a result of the change
in charging.

8zT abed

Date Document Updated 05/07/2019

Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762




Appendix 4

DPIA Screening Form

Name of decision, policy, procedure, project or service:

Proposed increases to Country Parks charges for daily Pay and Display fees and
Annual Parking Season Ticket fees.

1 Does the activity involve... YES | NO DPIA Necessary?

Processing of personal data? If no, a DPIA will not be
X necessary. If yes, please

continue.

2 Are you planning to... YES | NO

Use systematic and extensive profiling or If you answer yes to any of

automated decision-making to make X these questions, you must

significant decisions about people. carry out a DPIA.

Process special category data or criminal X

offence data on a large scale.

Systematically monitor a publicly X

accessible place on a large scale.

Use new technologies. X

Use profiling, automated decision-making

or special category data to help make X

decisions on someone’s access to a

service, opportunity or benefit.

Carry out profiling on a large scale. X

Process biometric or genetic data. X

Combine, compare or match data from X

multiple sources.

Process personal data without providing a X

privacy notice directly to the individual.

Process personal data in a way which
involves tracking individuals’ online or X
offline location or behaviour.

Process children’s personal data for
profiling or automated decision-making or
for marketing purposes, or offer online
services directly to them.

Process personal data which could result
in a risk of physical harm in the event of a X
security breach.

3 Are you planning to carry out YEs | NO
any other....
Evaluation or scoring. X | Where two or more criteria are

met, the activity may present a
X | high risk to the rights and
freedoms of data subjects and

Automated decision-making with
significant effects.

Systematic monitoring X | itis recommended you conduct

Page 129



Appendix 4

Processing of sensitive data or data of a
highly personal nature.

Processing on a large scale.

Processing of data concerning vulnerable

data subjects.

Innovative technological or organisational
solutions.

X a DPIA.

X Even if only one criteria is met,
you may still need to conduct a

X DPIA if it is considered to
present a risk to the rights and

X freedoms of an individual.

Processing involving preventing data
subjects from exercising a right or using a
service or contract.

If uncertain about whether the
X risk is likely to be high, conduct
a DPIA regardless.

4 Other

YES | NO

Are you planning any major project
involving the use of personal data?

If so, you should consider
X carrying out a DPIA as good
practice.

5 Has there been a change...

In the nature, scope, context, or purposes
of existing processing operations

You should carry out a new
DPIA.

Conclusion YES NO

Rationale

Is a DPIA required? X

Increasing charges for daily pay and
display fees does not require the
processing of any personal data as the
transaction is made directly between
customer and parking meter. Annual
parking season tickets require the
collection of personal data including,
name, address, car registration mark and
payment information which is covered
directly by a privacy notice prior to
purchase and is used for the purpose of
processing and managing the annual
season ticket payment and details only.

If no, will a DPIA be X
conducted anyway?

Summary of DPO advice:

Page 130




Agenda Item 14

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: Fly Tipping Enforcement Plan
Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A
Future Pathway of Paper: N/A

Electoral Division: All

Summary: KCC has committed £250,000 to reduce the level of fly tipping in Kent,
building on the close work already undertaken with district and borough councils,
Kent Police and other partners through the Kent Resource Partnership to tackle this
crime. The funding will assist district and borough councils to undertake further
enforcement, improve communications between all partners involved and aims to
better inform both householders and businesses of their Duty of Care and
responsibilities relating to waste disposal.

This report updates Cabinet Committee on the current and future actions plan to
address this anti-social behaviour.

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and comment on
planned actions and success measures in the fly tipping enforcement plan.

1. Background

1.1  Fly tipping is anti-social and a crime often carried out by local criminal gangs.
Kent residents bear the cost of fly tipping through the added disposal costs
and the disruption caused by the blocking of highways.

1.2  To tackle this issue the County Council works closely with the District and
Borough Councils and Kent Police and we have a long history of joint working
through the well-established Kent Resource Partnership.

1.3 In May 2019, KCC committed £250,000 to develop a fly tipping enforcement
plan to reduce the level of fly tipping in Kent. The funding will assist district
and borough councils to undertake further enforcement, improve
communications between all partners involved and aims to better inform both
householders and businesses of their Duty of Care and responsibilities
relating to waste disposal.

Page 131



2.1

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Current Action

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste has held
one-to-one meetings with all district and borough leaders to understand how
KCC can help to support them further. The Cabinet Member has also met with
the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) who has agreed to assist the
actions being taken and has made an offer of financial support through the
Crime Support Units. A letter has also been sent from the Cabinet Member to
the Chief Constable requesting his personal support and to seek views of how
the additional funding can help Kent Police to increase levels of enforcement
action and successful prosecutions.

Chief Inspector Rachel McNeil has been appointed to lead for Kent Police.

Meetings have also been held with the Kent Environment Crime Practitioners’
Group, Kent Resource Partnership, Environment Agency, National Farmers
Union and the Vehicle and Operations Service Agency (VOSA).

Planned action will include more electronic surveillance including mobile
CCTV and covert cameras to enable better targeting of criminal activity and
use of Apps such as Country Eye, which is already supported by the PCC.
There will be even greater sharing of intelligence between agencies to enable
better collation of statistics and communications to identify trends for targeted
action and to alert householders and businesses and inform magistrates.

In the last year, officers from Local Authorities across Kent together with Kent
Police have been working together in a joint operation “Op Assist”, which
involves days of action with other partners to crack down on fly tipping and
unlicensed waste collectors across Kent.

Building on successful work in North Kent which led to a number of
prosecutions in May, on 12 June, Op Assist was carried out in five districts;
Ashford, Canterbury, Folkestone & Hythe, Dover and Thanet. 107 vehicles
commercial vehicles were stopped and checked to ensure drivers had the
correct documentation and licences. During the operation,

27 local authority producer notices were issued*

5 local authority fixed penalty notices were issued

5 vehicles were seized

1 person was arrested for drink driving

2 persons were reported for driving whilst disqualified

4 prohibition notices were issued by VOSA

1 defection rectification notice was issued and

1 stolen woodchipper was recovered and an arrest is pending

' A Local Authority Producer notice is a notice provide by the relevant LA to the individual
transporting the waste, which asks them to produce their waste carrier’s details and waste
transfer notices within a set period of time at the relevant local council office.

Page 132



2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Due to the success and impact of these ‘days of action’, we will work with
district and borough councils, Kent Police and other partners to deliver more
frequent events, ensuring high visibility to the public.

Future Actions

The following actions are being pursued which will form the basis of a fly
tipping enforcement action plan.

(i) Duty of Care Communications Campaigns

There will be targeted campaigns to engage residents and small businesses.
A PR consultant will be engaged to help draft a Kent-based campaign using
videos, social media, paid advertising, billboards and point of sale advertising.

(ii) Duty of Care Small Business Course

Using LOCASE funding we will look to roll out Kent wide small business waste
courses piloted by KCC Waste management and Dover District Council
(DDC) . The course will explain to small businesses and waste carriers how to
deal with their waste legally. The course will be delivered by the DDC
enforcement officer and KCC’s Waste Enforcement Advisor.

We will also develop an engaging and visual e-learning package targeted at
businesses looking to obtain a waste carriers license. The Environment
Agency, Federation of Small Businesses, Kent Invicta Chamber of Commerce
and trading standards contacts are already engaging in this initiative. Defra
has also shown an interest.

(iii) Days/ nights of action

This will have a documentary focus covering each stage of enforcement
activity from evidence gathering, identifying the target and filming vehicle
seizures/ stops. The documentary will be supported by press releases and
social media messaging. There will be a sharing agreement in place across all
parties to ensure maximum public accessibility and visibility.

(iv) Building on #keepkentclean

Fly tipping hotspot signage will be produced; ‘#keepkentclean’ and rolled out
countywide at hotspots. We will also install “Take your litter home’ signs at
district litter hotspots and ‘Authority aware’ tape for use at fly tips (similar to
police tape).

(v) Magistrates Training

We are contacting the Magistrates Association to raise awareness of
environmental crime within Kent. If there is interest, we will arrange a
presentation and training which will be delivered by district enforcement staff.
The aim is to encourage larger fines or sentences to be given.

Page 133



3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

(vi) Trackers/ covert eqguipment/ mobile CCTV cameras/ other related
technology

Central resource covert cameras will be placed in appropriate hotpots
countywide and we will use trackers and Smartwater as part of sting
operations and mobile CCTV cameras to identify any vehicles of interest.

(vii) Automated phone system for inteligence reports

Completion of intelligence reports and the sharing of this information between
relevant partners is vital to the success of the enforcement plan. Many
enforcement officers state they do not have the time to complete intelligence
reports. KCC'’s Intelligence Manager has suggested that an automated phone
system, where enforcement officers could leave a message, to then be
downloaded each morning by the intel team, could be beneficial and
encourage intel to be submitted.

Success Measures

A number of success measures are being developed around each action
including:

e Duty of Care Communications Campaign — number of people reached,
shares on social media, more people know what to do

e Duty of care course — number of attendees, feedback, Environment
Agency considering completion of course prior to waste carrier’s licence
being given, number of times e-learning undertaken

e Days / nights of action — vehicle stops, vehicle seizures, Fixed Penalty
Notices, arrests, prosecutions. Effectiveness of the documentary — number
of people reached, social media posts

o #keepkentclean — fly tipping reduced at hotspots, reduction in litter, fewer
multiple reports of the same incident of fly tipping as a result of the
‘authority aware’ type

e Magistrates training — increase knowledge and awareness, greater fines
and sentences given for fly tipping offences

e Trackers/ covert equipment/ mobile CCTV cameras/ other related
technology — enforcement action taken, Fixed Penalty Notices given,
increase in fines and prosecutions as a result of evidence obtained by
technology

e Automated phone system for intel reports — increase in intel reports
received via system and how intel is then used to support investigations
(and resultant outcomes)

Ultimately the aim is for a reduction in instances of fly tipping and an
increased number of prosecutions.

Through a strong communication campaign with householders and
businesses alike, it is hoped that those illegitimate businesses, undercutting

Page 134



legitimate businesses, will eventually be starved of waste to collect and
therefore reduce instances of flytipping.

4.4  In addition, it is proposed that a Cross Party Member Group be established to
consider all aspects of this enforcement action plan, and other related waste
matters.

5. Conclusions

5.1  Fly tipping is an anti-social crime often carried out by local criminal gangs and
Organised Crime Groups and has a devastating impact on local communities
and the environment.

5.2  The County Council works closely with the District and Borough Councils and
Kent Police and we have a long history of joint working through the well-
established Kent Resource Partnership. We are in a strong position to
continue to work together to tackle flytipping and will utilise the Kent Resource
Partnership as the means in which communication and education will be
made with the public, businesses and partners.

6. Recommendation

Recommendation: The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and comment on
planned actions and success measures in the developing fly tipping enforcement
plan.

7. Report Author

Hannah Allard

Waste Business Development Manager
Tel: 03000 413429

Email: hannah.allard@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director

Simon Jones

Director, Highways, Transportation and Waste
Tel: 411683

Email: simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

Page 135



mailto:hannah.allard@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport
and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Subject: Kent County Council’s Response to Transport for the South East’s

Proposal Consultation
Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of Paper: N/A
Future Pathway of Paper: N/A

Electoral Division: All divisions

Summary:

This report outlines Kent County Council’s (KCC) proposed response to the
consultation by the emerging Sub-national Transport Body (STB) — Transport for the
South East (TfSE) on its proposal to government for statutory powers.

TfSE includes the 16 Local Transport Authorities (LTAS) and the five Local Enterprise
Partnerships (LEPSs) that cover the geographic area. Kent County Council (KCC) and
Medway Council are included. The development of TfSE is being led by East Sussex
County Council.

TfSE will speak with a single voice on the South East’s transport needs to directly
influence the decisions of national infrastructure providers and operators. Once a
statutory body, the Secretary of State must have regard to the STB’s transport
strategy in agreeing the investment priorities of Highways England and Network Rail.
TfSE’s transport strategy will be consulted on separately in the autumn.

TfSE is operating in ‘shadow’ form until it becomes a statutory body. To become a
statutory body, it needs to submit a proposal to government with a request for
transport powers, which if accepted, would then be taken through Parliament.
Although the Secretary of State has indicated that he is not considering anymore
STBs becoming statutory bodies at this time, TfSE is still preparing for this possibility
in the future by undertaking a public consultation on its draft proposal and is asking its
constituent authorities, including KCC, to formally respond. Following this
consultation, TfSE will revise the proposal and seek endorsement from its constituent
authorities.

Recommendation:

Cabinet Committee is asked to comment on the proposed response by Kent County
Council (KCC) to the consultation by Transport for the South East (TfSE) with
proposed support for powers 1 to 9, and conditional support for powers 10 to 15 as
set out in the table in section 3.4 and in the conclusions in paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8. The
conditional support is that it is agreed by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies
in that decisions on the use of those pgvgerEﬁ made at the most immediate (or

) ; FPage
local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities;”e.g. KCC.




1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

2.1.

2.2.

Background

The Government’'s 2015 Budget promised to offer areas legal powers to
transform transport and rebalance the economy through the creation of Sub-
national Transport Bodies (STBs).

The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act (2016) allows organisations
to draw down powers from central government. The Secretary of State for
Transport has the power to establish STBs for any area outside of Greater
London.

The powers of each STB must be requested in a proposal to the Secretary of
State, with the consent of all its constituent transport authorities, and then
agreed in law through the Parliamentary process.

There are now several STBs in England. Transport for the North (TfN)
became a statutory body in April 2018. Midlands Connect, England’s
Economic Heartland and Transport for the South East are all in ‘shadow’ form
and working towards gaining statutory status. East of England and two STBs
for the South West — Peninsular Transport and Western Gateway are newly
emerging and will complete the coverage of STBs across the country.

However, the Secretary of State wrote to all the emerging STBs on 10 June
2019, and while he does not rule out creating more statutory STBs in the
future, his preference is to continue working with emerging STBs on a
voluntary partnership basis. The Department for Transport (DfT) will continue
to take account of the views of emerging STBs in developing national
transport policy and investment decisions regardless of formal status.

Transport for the South East (TfSE)

The South East 7 (SE7) councils proposed the establishment of an STB for
the South East that would bring central government, the South East’s Local
Transport Authorities (LTAs) and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPS)
together with Highways England, Network Rail and port, airport, rail and bus
operators in one body; Transport for the South East (TfSE).

TfSE is now a partnership of 16 LTAs and five LEPs. Kent County Council
(KCCQC) is currently a constituent authority as resolved at the Environment and
Transport Cabinet Committee on 17 November 2016 on the proposed
decision (16/00120) that was taken by the Leader to establish and participate
in the formation of TfSE working in partnership with:

East Sussex County Council (lead authority and Accountable Body)
West Sussex County Council

Medway Council

Hampshire County Council

Surrey County Council

Brighton and Hove City Council

Southampton City Council

Portsmouth City Council

Page 138



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

e Isle of Wight Council

e The Berkshire unitary authorities through the Berkshire Local Transport
Body (LTB) which includes West Berkshire, Wokingham, Windsor &
Maidenhead, Bracknell Forest, Reading and Slough.

e Five LEPs within the TfSE area are also included: South East LEP
(SELEP), Enterprise M3, Coast to Capital, Solent and Thames Valley
Berkshire.

TfSE’s overall vision is to grow the South East's economy by delivering a
quality, integrated transport system that makes the South East more
productive and competitive; and improves the quality of life for all whilst
protecting the environment.

TfSE is seeking to formalise its role as the South East’s voice for strategic
transport issues by becoming a statutory body. In order to do so they have
worked with member authorities to develop a proposal to government which
makes the case for becoming a statutory body and sets out the specific
powers and responsibilities required to help TfSE deliver economic growth,
improve quality of life and protect and enhance the environment.

Prior to this consultation on its draft proposal to government, TfSE undertook
an informal engagement exercise with elected Members and officers from the
constituent authorities and LEPs between January and the end of February
2019. In Kent there was a report to the Environment and Transport Cabinet
Committee and a presentation to the Kent Joint Leaders on 17 January 2019
and the Joint Chiefs (8 January), and to the Kent and Medway Economic
Partnership (KMEP) on 28 January.

Following the period of informal engagement the draft proposal was agreed by
TfSE at its ‘shadow’ Board meeting in March and is now the subject of a 12-
week public consultation between 3 May and 31 July 2019. A proposed formal
response to the consultation from KCC (as a constituent member) will be
submitted by the Cabinet Member, therefore the Environment and Transport
Cabinet Committee is asked to comment on the proposed response as
summarised in Section 3 of this report and attached in full in Appendix A.

Feedback from the consultation will be reported to TfSE’s ‘shadow’ Board
meeting in September and a revised proposal will be finalised. Constituent
authorities will then need to endorse the post-consultation revised proposal
before it is submitted to government, therefore it will be brought back to
Cabinet Committee before a proposed decision by Leader under Article 10 (1)
and 10 (4) of the Constitution. However, following the Secretary of State’s
letter sent after the launch of this consultation to the emerging STBs (see
paragraph 1.5) on his preference to not grant statutory status at this time,
there is not currently a timetable for the submission of the finalised proposal to
government. A new approach to formalising TfSE’s status will be discussed by
its ‘shadow’ Board in September.

Page 139



Summary of TfSE’s Proposal to Government (The Consultation)

2.8 The table below outlines the powers and responsibilities proposed to be
sought by TfSE.

Proposed Power
As set out in the Local Transport Act (2008), these
General functions will give TfSE the powers to develop a transport
functions strategy for the area and to provide advice to the Secretary
of State (this is the minimum power for STBS).
: Right to be consulted about new rail franchises
Rail . TT -
Set high level output specification for rail
Set the Road Investment Strategy for the Strategic Road
Network
Enter into agreements to undertake certain works on the
Highways Strategic Road Network (SRN), Major Road Network
(MRN) and local roads
Acquire land to enable construction, improvement, or
mitigate adverse effects of highway construction
Construct highways, footpaths, bridleways
Capital Make capital grants for the provision of public transport
grants facilities
. Duty to secure the provision of bus services
Bus service - - .
o Enter into Quality Bus Partnerships
provision . —
Implement bus service franchising
Smart Introduce an integrated ticketing scheme
ticketing
Air quality Establish clean air zones
Promote or oppose Bills in parliament
Other powers | Incidental amendments to enable TfSE to operate as a type
of local authority

2.9 All of the proposed powers and responsibilities would be concurrent with
Local Highway Authorities’ and Local Transport Authorities’ (LTA) existing
powers and responsibilities and would only be implemented with the consent
of the affected Local Highway Authority / LTA and with the consensus of all
TfSE’s constituent authorities. See Section 9 — ‘Other Corporate Implications’
for consideration of the risks to KCC as a Local Highway Authority and LTA.

2.10 The table below shows the powers and responsibilities that TfSE is not
seeking, which includes highway maintenance.

Power Reason for TfSE to not seek the power
Set priorities for local
authorities for roads that are | TfSE will only be responsible for

not part of the Major Road identifying priorities on the MRN.
Network (MRN)

Being responsible for any There is no intention of TfSE becoming
highway maintenance involved in routine maintenance of MRN
responsibilities or local roads.

Page 140




2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Take on any consultation Local authorities are best placed to seek
function instead of an existing | the views of their residents and
local authority businesses

Give directions to a
constituent authority about
the exercise of transport
functions by the

authority in their area

Constituent authorities understand how
best to deliver their transport functions to
meet the needs of their residents and
businesses

There are no aspirations for TfSE to

Carry passengers by rail become a train operating company

Act as co-signatories to rail

franchises There are no current aspirations for TfSE
Be responsible for rail to become involved in this area.
franchising

TfSE’s proposal to government also includes the constitutional arrangements
of the STB. As with the existing ‘shadow’ body, once statutory status is
granted it is expected that each constituent authority will continue to appoint
one of their Councillors/Members or their elected Mayor as a member of TfSE
on the Partnership Board. The Partnership Board will be the only place where
all constituent authorities are represented at an elected Member level,
therefore the Board will have formal decision-making powers. The Partnership
Board will meet at least twice per annum, with the option to meet more
regularly. Each constituent authority will also appoint another one of their
Councillors/Members as a substitute member.

TfSE expects the Partnership Board will continue to work by consensus but
have also proposed an approach to voting when consensus cannot be
reached and for certain key decisions, i.e. agreeing the TfSE transport
strategy, budget and changes to its constitution. It is proposed that a
population weighted voting arrangement is adopted in these circumstances.
Kent, with the largest population of all the constituent authorities, would have
the most votes of any single authority (11 votes) but is not large enough to
have a veto (there are a total of 54 votes across all constituent authorities).

TfSE’s work to date

Whilst operating in ‘shadow’ form, TfSE has responded to several
consultations as a collective partnership, acting as one voice for the South
East. The main consultations include Highways England’s proposals for Road
Investment Strategy 2 (RIS2) and the DfT’s proposals for a Major Road
Network (MRN). A DfT representative attends all ‘shadow’ Board, Senior
Officer Group, and Transport Strategy working group meetings.

Engagement with the DfT regarding the MRN and RIS2 priorities has so far
been positive. TfSE’s RIS2 priorities included the improvements along the
M2/A2 corridor that are essential once the new Lower Thames Crossing
opens to enable bifurcation. This included dualling of the A2 Lydden to Dover,

Page 141




2.15

2.16

3.1

3.2

3.3

Brenley Corner (M2 Junction 7) upgrade and improvements to the A229
connection between the M2 and the M20.

DIT also asked TfSE to prioritise MRN and Large Local Major (LLM) schemes
and among the top 10 priorities are KCC’s bid for the gap funding for
Highways England’s RIS1 scheme for improvements to M2 Junction 5
(Stockbury roundabout) on the A249; and a bid for a Birchington, Acol, and
Westgate-on-Sea relief road of the A28 as part of the Thanet draft Transport
Strategy for its draft Local Plan. Brenley Corner (M2 Junction 7) upgrade and
A229 Bluebell Hill M2 and M20 interchange upgrades are also among TfSE’s
priorities for the LLM scheme programme.

Furthermore, TfSE has responded to consultations on Heathrow expansion,
Western Rail Access to Heathrow; Gatwick Airport's Draft Master Plan;
Midlands Connect’s proposal to government; the Lower Thames Crossing; the
Public Information Exercise on Solutions to Operation Stack, which gave
support to KCC’s position; the Williams Rail Review; Light Rail and Other
Rapid Transit Solutions Call for Evidence; Pay-as-you-go on Rail; and the
Berkshire Local Industrial Strategy framework document.

Summary of KCC’s Proposed Response to TfSE’s Consultation on its
Proposal to Government (full response in Appendix A)

KCC’s proposed response gives support for the establishment of an STB for
the South East and outlines the benefits of TfSE having statutory status.
These benefits include the ability to speak with one voice to ensure the case
for strategic transport investment in the region is clearly heard by government.
As a statutory body under the legislation, TfSE will also be able to inform and
influence the critical spending decisions of Highways England and Network
Rail in the South East as government will have to ‘have regard to’ the adopted
regional transport strategy. This will enable a collective voice of the South
East to make the case to government for improved rail services, and
investment in the Strategic Road Network, including the new Lower Thames
Crossing and wider network improvements.

KCC’s proposed response agrees that as the Local Transport Authority (LTA)
and Local Highway Authority, KCC should be a constituent member authority
of TfSE. The UK’s international gateways of the Port of Dover and Eurotunnel,
which both play a significant role in the performance of the South East and
national economies, are within Kent. With a population of just over 1.5 million,
Kent has the largest population of all the English non-metropolitan authorities
and its proximity to London and the continent make it a unique and attractive
place in the South East to live, work and visit. Kent should therefore be part of
the STB for the South East.

KCC’s proposed response also gives support to TfSE’s proposed population
weighted voting mechanism. As the county with the largest population within
the TfSE area, KCC will have more votes than any other individual constituent
authority and this equates to 11 votes from a total of 54.

Page 142



3.4 TfSE’s consultation seeks views on the proposed functions and powers being
sought from government. The below table summarises the powers and KCC’s
proposed response to support or to conditionally support* each power being
requested by TfSE with the reasons given. *The conditional support is that
it is agreed by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in that
decisions on the use of those powers are made at the most immediate

(or local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities, e.g. KCC.

General functions

1 General Section 102 Provides the general This is required to
powers H of the powers required for enable TfSE to
required for Local TfSE to operate as a operate as a
TfSE to Transport Act | statutory STB, statutory body in
operate as a 2008 meeting the terms of preparing a
statutory requirements of the Support transport strategy
body enabling legislation and advising the

to facilitate the Secretary of State,
development and therefore is
implementation of a supported.
transport strategy.

Rail

2 Right to be Section 13 of | TfSE is seeking the This would provide
consulted the Railways | extension of the right added weight to
about new rail | Act 2005 — of a Passenger KCC’s own
franchises Railway Transport Executive responses to

Functions of | to be consulted consultations on
Passenger before the Secretary franchises, therefore
Transport of State issues an Subnort is supported.
Executives invitation to tender PP

for a franchise. The

right of consultation

is significant to TfSE

as it confirms its role

as a strategic

partner.

3 Set High Schedule 4A, | This power would This would provide
Level Output | paragraph enable TfSE to act devolution of powers
Specification | 1D, of the jointly with the from government to
(HLOS) for Railways Act | Secretary of State to TfSE and enable the
Rail 1993 set and vary the South East to set its

HLOS in our area. own priorities for the
TISE will act as the rail network,
collective voice of its Support therefore is
constituent PP supported.
authorities, providing

an evidence-based

regional perspective

and consensus on

the priorities for

investment in our rail

network.

Page 143



Highways

4 Set Road
Investment
Strategy (RIS)
for the
Strategic
Road Network
(SRN)

Set 3 and
Schedule 2
of the
Infrastructure
Act 2015

This power would
enable TfSE to act
jointly with the
Secretary of State to
set and vary the RIS
in our area. TfSE will
act as the collective

This would provide

devolution of powers
from government to

TfSE and enable the
South East to set its
own priorities for the
motorway and trunk

voice of its Support road network,
constituent therefore is
authorities, providing supported.
an evidence-based
regional perspective
and consensus on
the priorities for
roads investment.
Make capital grants for public transport facilities
5 Make capital Section 56 Constituent This could lead to an
grants for the | (2) of the authorities would improvement in
provision of Transport Act | benefit from the public transport;
public 1968 granting of this therefore, is
transport concurrent power as supported.
facilities they may, in future,
be recipients of Support
funding from TfSE to
partly or wholly fund
a transport
enhancement within
their local authority
area.
Bus service provision
6 Bus service The Bus This power, currently This power is
franchising Services Act | available to Mayoral currently only
2017 Combined available to Mayoral
Authorities, would Combined
enable TfSE to Authorities;
implement bus Support therefore, it would
service franchising be good if the STB
in its area with the could lead on
consent of the franchising and
affected LTA. therefore this is
supported.
Smart ticketing
7 Introduce Sections This would enable Support is given for
integrated 134C — 134G | TfSE to expedite the this power, in
ticketing & Sections introduction of a cost particular if the
schemes 135-138 effective smart and Support intention is to
Transport Act | integrated ticketing introduce a regional
2000 system on a regional ticketing scheme.
scale.
Other powers
8 Promote or Section 239 Local authorities A statutory body
oppose Bills Local have the power to should have the
. : Support 1
in Parliament | Government | promote or oppose ability to promote of
Act 1972 Bills in Parliament; oppose Bills in

Page 144




granting the power Parliament,
concurrently to TfSE therefore this is
reflects the supported.
devolution agenda of

which STBs are a

key part.

9 Incidental Local A statutory STB A statutory body

amendments | Government | requires certain needs these powers

Act 1972, incidental to operate as an
Localism Act | amendments to organisation,
2011, Local enable it to operate therefore this is
Government | as a type of local Support supported.
Pension authority, with duties PP
Scheme in respect of staffing,
Regulations pensions, monitoring
2013 and the provision of

information about

TISE.

Highways

10 | Enterinto Section 6(5) | TfSE is seeking the Local Highway
agreements of the power that Local Authorities can
to undertake | Highways Act | Highway Authorities already enter into
certain works | 1980, (trunk | currently have to agreements with
on Strategic roads) & enter into an other Highway
Road Section 8 of | agreement with Authorities for cross-
Network, the Highways | other Highway boundary schemes.
Major Road Act 1980 Authorities to Therefore, even
Network or (local roads) | construct, though the TfSE
local roads reconstruct, alter, proposal is that

improve or maintain Conditional | these powers would
roads. These Support* only be used with
powers, operated the consent of the
concurrently with the Local Highway
local authorities, will Authority, we
enable TfSE to question if the
promote and duplication of these
expedite the delivery powers that Local
of regionally Highway Authorities
significant cross- already have is
boundary schemes. required at STB
level.

11 | Acquireland | Sections 239, | This power, It is unclear how an
to enable 240, 246 and | exercisable STB would acquire
construction, | 250 of the concurrently and land if a Local
improvement, | Highways Act | only with the Highway Authority
or mitigate 1980 consent of the was unable,
adverse relevant Highway therefore even
effects of Authority, would " though the TfSE
highw llow preparations Conditional roposal is that

ghway a prep . Support* prop

construction for the construction P these powers would
of a highways only be used with
scheme to be consent of the Local
expedited where Highway Authority,
Highway Authorities we question if the
are not able to duplication of these
acquire land. powers that Local

Page 145




Highway Authorities
already have is
required at STB
level.

12 | Construct Sections 24, | The concurrent Local Highway
highways, 25 & 26 of powers required to Authorities already
footpaths, the Highways | effectively promote, have these powers
bridleways Act 1980 coordinate and fund and are able to

road schemes are deliver schemes,
vital to TfSE. therefore even
Without them, TfSE though the TfSE
would not be able to proposal is that
enter into any Condit these powers would

onditional X
contractual Support* only be used with
arrangement in consent of the Local
relation to procuring Highway Authority,
the construction, we question if the
improvement or duplication of these
maintenance of a powers that Local
highway or the Highway Authorities
construction or already have is
improvement of a required at STB
trunk road. level.

Bus service provision

13 | Duty to Section 63 TfSE is seeking this Local Transport
secure the (1) Transport | duty concurrently Authorities already
provision of Act 1985 with the Local have the power to
bus services Transport Authorities fund services that

in its area, enabling cross authority

it to fill in identified boundaries.

gaps in bus service However, if TTSE

provision or secure wanted to intervene

the provision of Conditional | and provide specific

regionally important Support* cross boundary

bus services services, these

covering one or could be funded

more constituent through the power to

authority areas. provide grants (as in
power 5) rather than
having the duty to
secure the provision
of services.

14 | Quality Bus The Bus This would allow Quality Bus
Partnerships | services Act | TfSE to expedite the Partnerships are

2017 introduction of more effective when

Sections partnership schemes led and developed

113C - 1130 | covering more than locally to ensure

& Sections one Local Transport they meet local

138A-138S Authority area which Conditional | need, including the
otherwise might not Support* impact on the local

be introduced.

bus market and local
authority needs.
However, it may be
possible for TfSE to
have a role
supporting

Page 146




authorities with
additional resource
for partnerships.
Air quality
15 | Establish Sections Local Transport The power to
Clean Air 163-177A of | Authorities have the introduce Road User
Zones the Transport | power under the Charging should
Act 2000 — Transport Act remain with Local
Road User 2000 to implement Transport and
Charging road charging Conditional | Highway Authorities
schemes. TfSE is Support* and any potential
seeking this general cross-boundary
charging power as a scheme could be
mechanism for the facilitated by inter-
introduction of Clean authority
Air Zones. agreements.

3.5 KCC’s full draft response can be found in Appendix A.

4. Conclusions

4.1 Sub-national Transport Bodies (STBs) are resulting in a new regional level of
transport planning in the UK.

4.2 KCC is currently a constituent authority in the ‘shadow’ Transport for the South
East (TfSE) along with 15 other Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) and five
Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPS).

4.3 TISE will speak with a single voice on the South East’'s transport needs to
directly influence the decisions of national infrastructure providers and
operators (for example Network Rail and Highways England would need to
‘have regard to’ TfSE’s transport strategy).

4.4 TISE is currently consulting on its draft proposal to government to become a
body with statutory powers and functions.

4.5 KCC'’s proposed response supports the establishment of an STB for the South
East with it as a constituent authority within TfSE and supports the proposed
voting arrangements for the Partnership Board.

4.6 KCC’s proposed response supports the following proposed functions and

powers of TISE (powers 1-9 in the table in paragraph 3.4):

e General powers required for TfSE to operate as a statutory body.
The right to be consulted about new rail franchises.

Set the High-Level Output Specification (HLOS) for rail.

Ser the Road Investment Strategy (RIS) for the Strategic Road Network
(SRN).

Make capital grants for the provision of public transport services.
Bus service franchising.

Introduce integrated ticketing schemes.

Promote or oppose Bills in Parliament.

Incidental amendments.

Page 147




4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

5.1

KCC’s proposed response gives support on the condition that it is agreed by

TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in that decisions on the use of

these powers are made at the most immediate (or local) level, i.e. by

constituent authorities, e.g. KCC, for TfSE’s proposal to have the concurrent

powers of a Local Highway Authority through the Highways Act 1980 to

(powers 10-12 in the table in paragraph 3.4):

e Enter into agreements to undertake certain works on Strategic Road
Network, Major Road Network or local roads;

e Acquire land to enable construction, improvement, or mitigate adverse
effects of highway construction;

e Construct highways, footpaths, bridleways.

KCC’s proposed response also gives support on the condition that it is agreed

by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in that decisions on the use of

these powers are made at the most immediate (or local) level, i.e. by

constituent authorities, e.g. KCC, for TfSE’s proposal to have the concurrent

powers of a Local Transport Authority (LTA) for (powers 13-15 in the table in

paragraph 3.4):

e The duty to secure the provision of bus services (Transport Act 1985);

e Quality Bus Partnerships (The Bus Services Act 2017);

e Establishing Clean Air Zones (The Transport Act 2000 — Road User
Charging).

Following this consultation, TfSE will update the draft proposal to government
and publish a summary of the comments received.

A post-consultation revised proposal will then be agreed by TfSE’s ‘shadow’
Board, which will need endorsement by KCC with a decision by the Leader
under Article 10 (1) and 10 (4) of the Constitution, before TfSE’s submission to
government. The proposed decision by the Leader will be brought to Cabinet
Committee.

It was expected for the proposal to be submitted by TfSE to government in late
2019, with statutory status subsequently being awarded should approval be
given by the Secretary of State in 2020. However, after the consultation
launched, the Secretary of State wrote to all emerging STBs indicating his
preference for the time being to continue to work with them as voluntary
partnerships rather than granting statutory status. A new approach to
formalising TfSE’s status will therefore be discussed by its ‘shadow’ Board in
September.

Financial Implications
KCC contributes £58,000 per year to fund the development of TfSE. All
constituent authorities make this contribution (unitary authorities contribute

£30,000 per year). This has been matched by £1million of funding from the DT
in 2018/19 and a further £500,000 in 2019/20.

Page 148



6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Legal Implications

Advice from Invicta Law included the need to amend KCC’s Constitution to list
TfSE in Appendix 2 Part 5 Partnership Committees and Bodies and Joint
Arrangements.

Equalities Implications

A full Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) will be undertaken by TfSE as part of
its draft transport strategy that will be consulted on in Autumn 2019. KCC has
undertaken an EglA screening of its proposed response and concluded that
some protected characteristic groups could benefit from TfSE becoming a
statutory body. The EqIA screening is attached in Appendix B.

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) Considerations

A Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) is not required as this
consultation response does not require the processing of personal data.

Other Corporate Implications

Key to the TfSE proposal is that the powers which are additional to the general
functions relating to STBs, including those powers that a Local Highway
Authority and Local Transport Authority already have, will be requested from
government in a way that means they will operate concurrently and with the
consent of the constituent authorities. KCC is therefore not giving up any
powers to TfSE but would be sharing them. These shared powers would also
only be used by TfSE with the consent of KCC as a constituent authority,
therefore the normal KCC decision making process as a Local Highway
Authority and Local Transport Authority still apply if KCC agrees to the TfSE
proposal (at this stage it is only a consultation on a draft proposal, the proposed
KCC response to which is to give conditional support for the concurrent powers,
subject to it being agreed by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in
that decisions on the use of these powers are made at the most immediate or
local level, i.e. by constituent authorities, e.g. KCC).

Governance

Decision (16/00120) taken by the Leader on 8 December 2018 to establish and
participate in the formation of TfSE was resolved at the Environment and
Transport Cabinet Committee on 17 November 2016.

The Leader or Cabinet Member/Deputy Cabinet Member for Planning,
Highways, Transport and Waste represents KCC on the TfSE ‘shadow’ Board.
The Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and Transport represents KCC
at the TfSE Senior Officer Group.

A decision will be taken by the Leader under Article 10 (1) and 10 (4) of the
Constitution to endorse the final proposal made by TfSE to government on
powers and responsibilities relating to the establishment of TfSE following this
formal consultation. The post-consultation revised final proposal by TfSE will be

Page 149



11

12

13

brought back to Cabinet Committee prior to the decision being taken by the
Leader.

Recommendation:

Cabinet Committee is asked to comment on the proposed response by Kent
County Council (KCC) to the consultation by Transport for the South East
(TfSE) with proposed support for powers 1 to 9, and conditional support for
powers 10 to 15 as set out in the table in section 3.4 and in the conclusions in
paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8. The conditional support is that it is agreed by TfSE that
the principle of subsidiarity applies in that decisions on the use of those powers
are made at the most immediate (or local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities,
e.g. KCC.

Background Documents

Appendix A: Proposed response from Kent County Council to the consultation
by Transport for the South East (TfSE) on its proposal to government.

Appendix B: Equality Impact Assessment (EglA) screening.

Proposal to Government: Draft for Consultation, Transport for the South East
(TfSE), May 2020 https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/05/Transport-for-the-South-East-Draft-proposal-for-
consultation.pdf

Sub-National Transport Body for the South East, Item 146, Environment and
Transport  Cabinet = Committee, Thursday 17"  January 2019
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88577/1tem%207%20-%20Sub-
national%20Transport%20Bodies%20-
%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf

Decision 16/00120 Sub National Transport Board for the South-East
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?1D=2215

Further information on TfSE can be found on its website
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/ including the full consultation material
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/about/becoming-a-statutory-body/

Contact details

Report Author: Relevant Director:

Joseph Raitcliffe, Transport Strategy Stephanie Holt-Castle, Interim Director of
Manager Environment, Planning and Enforcement
03000 413445 03000 412064
Joseph.Ratcliffe@kent.gov.uk Stephanie.Holt-Castle@kent.gov.uk

Page 150


https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Transport-for-the-South-East-Draft-proposal-for-consultation.pdf
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Transport-for-the-South-East-Draft-proposal-for-consultation.pdf
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/Transport-for-the-South-East-Draft-proposal-for-consultation.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88577/Item%207%20-%20Sub-national%20Transport%20Bodies%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88577/Item%207%20-%20Sub-national%20Transport%20Bodies%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s88577/Item%207%20-%20Sub-national%20Transport%20Bodies%20-%20Transport%20for%20the%20South%20East.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2215
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk/about/becoming-a-statutory-body/
mailto:Joseph.Ratcliffe@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Stephanie.Holt-Castle@kent.gov.uk

Appendix A: Kent County Council’s Proposed Response to Transport for the
South East’s (TfSE) Draft Proposal to Government Consultation Questionnaire

1. Do you, in principle, support the establishment of a sub-national transport body for
the South East, including the ability to publish a transport strategy and advise
central government on transport matters in the region?

YES/NO

2. What do you regard as the benefits Transport for the South East will provide as a
statutory sub-national transport body?

Sub-national Transport Bodies (STBs) provide an opportunity to address regional
transport issues. Given the role the South East plays in the overall UK economy, through
its proximity to London and as the UK’s international gateway, it is imperative that
government understands the unique transport challenges faced by this region. Having a
statutory sub-national transport body for the South East will provide a strong platform to
engage with the Department for Transport (DfT), Highways England, Network Rail,
transport operators and other key stakeholders about the strong case for investment in
strategic transport infrastructure.

Obtaining statutory status will strengthen Transport for the South East’s (TfSE) ability to
directly influence the investment decisions of government in relation to national networks
(road and rail) in the region as the Secretary of State must have regard to the transport
strategy of the STB. Having statutory status and an adopted regional transport strategy
will ensure the South East’s strategic transport priorities are considered and recognised
nationally. An adopted regional transport strategy will also assist in the delivery of jobs,
housing and growth across the South East and therefore further increasing our
contribution to the overall UK economy.

Kent County Council (KCC) gives support for the establishment of a statutory STB for the
South East. This will enable a collective voice of the South East to make the case to
government for improved rail services, and investment in the Strategic Road Network,
including the new Lower Thames Crossing and wider network improvements.

3. Do you, in principle, think your relevant local transport authority should be a
member of the Transport for the South East sub-national transport body? If not,
why?

YES/NO

The South East is the UK’s international gateway, with several of the country’s major
airports and ports located within the region. Kent is home to the Port of Dover and
Eurotunnel, which both play a significant role in the performance of the South East and
national economies. With a population of just over 1.5 million, Kent has the largest
population of all the English non-metropolitan authorities and its proximity to London and
the continent make it a unique and attractive place in the South East to live, work and
visit. Kent should therefore be part of the STB for the South East.

Page 151



Furthermore, Kent County Council is also a member of the South East 7 (SE7) councils
which originally proposed the establishment of an STB for the South East. The purpose
behind this was to bring central government, the South East’s Local Transport Authorities
(LTAs) and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) together with Highways England,
Network Rail and port, airport, rail and bus operators into one body; Transport for the
South East (TfSE).

4. Are you content with the proposed functions in the draft STB proposal?

YES/NO

5. What other functions do you think an STB should have/not have and why?

7.

8.

The table below summarises KCC’s support or conditional support for each function being
proposed by TfSE. The conditional support is that it is agreed by TfSE that the principle of
subsidiarity applies in that decisions on the use of those powers are made at the most
immediate (or local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities, e.g. KCC. Table is shown in
Section 3.4 of the main Cabinet Committee Report

Would you be content with an STB having such functions if any use of those
functions required the consent of the relevant local transport authority?
YES/NO

Are you content with the preferred voting mechanism, to be used when consensus
cannot be reached?
YES/NO

Any other comments

Transport for the South East (TfSE) as a partnership of local authorities, formalised as a
statutory body, should be responsible for the strategic transport priorities of the South
East, influencing the investment priorities of Network Rail and Highways England as
powers are requested to be devolved down from central government. Delivery of
transport schemes can be through its constituent authorities and their existing powers,
rather than through a duplication of those powers by devolving up to a regional body.

Page 152



€GT abed

Appendix B

Kent County Council
Equality Analysis/ Impact Assessment (EqlA)

Directorate/ Service: Growth, Environmental and Transport / Environment, Planning and Enforcement / Strategic Planning Policy

Name of decision, policy, procedure, project or service: Kent County Council’s response to Transport for the South East’s draft
proposal consultation.

Responsible Owner/ Senior Officer: Nola Cooper/Joseph Ratcliffe

Version: 1 — Initial Screening

Author: Nola Cooper

Pathway of Equality Analysis:

Summary and recommendations of equality analysis/impact assessment.

Context

Government is seeking to transform transport and rebalance the economy by offering areas legal powers for transport through the
creation of Sub-national Transport Bodies (STBs). The South East 7 (SE7) councils initially proposed the establishment of an STB
for the South East, which has now expanded to include the 16 Local Transport Authorities (LTAS) and the five Local Enterprise
Partnerships (LEPSs) that cover the geographic area. Kent County Council (KCC) and Medway Council are included. The
development of Transport for the South East (TfSE) is being led by East Sussex County Council.

TfSE will speak with a single voice on the South East’s transport needs to directly influence the decisions of national infrastructure
providers and operators. Once a statutory body, the Secretary of State must have regard to the STB’s transport strategy in
agreeing the investment priorities of Highways England and Network Rail. TfSE’s transport strategy will be consulted on separately
in the autumn.

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

¥GT abed

Appendix B

TfSE is operating in ‘shadow’ form until it becomes a statutory body. To become a statutory body, it needs to submit a proposal to
government with a request for transport powers. If that proposal is accepted by the Secretary of State, it will then be taken through
Parliament. Although the Secretary of State has indicated that he is not considering any more STBs becoming statutory bodies at
this time, TfSE is still preparing for this possibility in the future by undertaking a public consultation on its draft proposal and is
asking its constituent authorities, including KCC, to formally respond. Following this consultation, TISE will revise the proposal and
seek endorsement from its constituent authorities.

Aims and Objectives

The South East 7 (SE7) councils proposed the establishment of an STB for the South East that would bring central government, the
South East’s Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPS) together with Highways England,
Network Rail and port, airport, rail and bus operators in one body; Transport for the South East (TfSE).

TfSE is now seeking to formalise its role as the South East’s voice for strategic transport issues by becoming a statutory body. In
order to do so they have worked with member authorities to develop a proposal to government which makes the case for becoming
a statutory body and sets out the specific powers and responsibilities required to help TfSE deliver economic growth, improve
quality of life and protect and enhance the environment.

The table below outlines the powers and responsibilities proposed to be sought by TfSE.

Proposed Power

As set out in the Local Transport Act (2008), these functions
will give TfSE the powers to develop a transport strategy for
the area and to provide advice to the Secretary of State (this
is the minimum power for STBS).

General functions

Right to be consulted about new rail franchises

et Set high level output specification for rail

Highways Set the Road Investment Strategy for the Strategic Road
Network

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

GGT abed

Appendix B

Enter into agreements to undertake certain works on the
Strategic Road Network, Major Road Network and local roads
Acquire land to enable construction, improvement, or mitigate
adverse effects of highway construction

Construct highways, footpaths, bridleways

Make capital grants for the provision of public transport
facilities

Duty to secure the provision of bus services

Bus service provision | Enter into Quality Bus Partnerships

Implement bus service franchising

Capital grants

Smart ticketing Introduce an integrated ticketing scheme
Air quality Establish clean air zones
Promote or oppose bills in parliament
Other powers Incidental amendments to enable TfSE to operate as a type

of local authority

All of the proposed powers and responsibilities would be concurrent with Local Highway Authorities’ and Local Transport
Authorities” (LTA) existing powers and responsibilities and would only be implemented with the consent of the affected Local
Highway Authority / LTA and with the consensus of all TfSE’s constituent authorities.

The table below shows the powers and responsibilities that TfSE is not seeking, which includes highway maintenance.

Power Reason for TfSE to not seek the power
Set priorities for local
authorities for roads that are not | TfSE will only be responsible for identifying
part of the Major Road Network priorities on the MRN.

(MRN)

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

9GT abed

Appendix B

Being responsible for any There is no intention of TfSE becoming
highway maintenance involved in routine maintenance of MRN or
responsibilities local roads.

Take on any consultation
function instead of an existing
local authority

Local authorities are best placed to seek the
views of their residents and businesses

Give directions to a constituent
authority about the exercise of
transport functions by the
authority in their area

Constituent authorities understand how best
to deliver their transport functions to meet the
needs of their residents and businesses

There are no aspirations for TfSE to become

Carry passengers by rail a train operating company

Act as co-signatories to rail

franchises There are no current aspirations for TfSE to
Be responsible for rail become involved in this area.
franchising

TfSE’s proposal to government also includes the constitutional arrangements of the STB. As with the existing ‘shadow’ body, once
statutory status is granted it is expected that each constituent authority will continue to appoint one of their Councillors/Members or
their elected Mayor as a member of TfSE on the Partnership Board. The Partnership Board will be the only place where all
constituent authorities are represented at an elected Member level, therefore the Board will have formal decision-making powers.
The Partnership Board will meet at least twice per annum, with the option to meet more regularly. Each constituent authority will
also appoint another one of their Councillors/Members as a substitute member.

TfSE expects the Partnership Board will continue to work by consensus but have also proposed an approach to voting when
consensus cannot be reached and for certain key decisions, i.e. agreeing the TfSE transport strategy, budget and changes to its
constitution. It is proposed that a population weighted voting arrangement is adopted in these circumstances. Kent, with the largest

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

/ST abed

Appendix B

population of all the constituent authorities, would have the most votes of any single authority (11 votes) but is not large enough to
have a veto (there are a total of 54 votes across all constituent authorities).

Summary of equality impact
This EqlA is for Kent County Council’s (KCC) proposed response to the consultation by the emerging Sub-national Transport Body
(STB) — Transport for the South East (TfSE) on its proposal to government for statutory powers.

KCC’s proposed response gives support for the establishment of an STB for the South East and outlines the benefits of TfSE
having statutory status. These benefits include the ability to speak with one voice to ensure the case for strategic transport
investment in the region is clearly heard by government. As a statutory body under the legislation, TfSE will also be able to inform
and influence the critical spending decisions of Highways England and Network Rail in the South East as government will have to
‘have regard to’ the adopted regional transport strategy. This will enable a collective voice of the South East to make the case to
government for improved rail services, and investment in the Strategic Road Network, including the new Lower Thames Crossing
and wider network improvements.

KCC’s proposed response agrees that as the Local Transport Authority (LTA) and Local Highway Authority, KCC should be a
constituent member authority of TESE. The UK’s international gateways of the Port of Dover and Eurotunnel, which both play a
significant role in the performance of the South East and national economies, are within Kent. With a population of just over 1.5
million, Kent has the largest population of all the English non-metropolitan authorities and its proximity to London and the continent
make it a unique and attractive place in the South East to live, work and visit. Kent should therefore be part of the STB for the
South East.

KCC'’s proposed response also gives support to TfSE’s proposed population weighted voting mechanism. As the county with the
largest population within the TfSE area, KCC will have more votes than any other individual constituent authority and this equates
to 11 votes from a total of 54.

KCC’s proposed response supports the following proposed functions and powers of TfSE:

. General powers required for TfSE to operate as a statutory body.
. The right to be consulted about new rail franchises.
. Set the High-Level Output Specification (HLOS) for rail.

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

8GT abed

Appendix B

. Ser the Road Investment Strategy (RIS) for the Strategic Road Network (SRN).
. Make capital grants for the provision of public transport services.

. Bus service franchising.

. Introduce integrated ticketing schemes.

. Promote or oppose Bills in Parliament.

. Incidental amendments.

KCC’s proposed response gives support on the condition that it is agreed by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in that
decisions on the use of these powers are made at the most immediate (or local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities, e.g. KCC, for
TfSE’s proposal to have the concurrent powers of a Local Highway Authority through the Highways Act 1980 to:

. Enter into agreements to undertake certain works on Strategic Road Network, Major Road Network or local roads;
. Acquire land to enable construction, improvement, or mitigate adverse effects of highway construction;
. Construct highways, footpaths, bridleways.

KCC’s proposed response also gives support on the condition that it is agreed by TfSE that the principle of subsidiarity applies in
that decisions on the use of these powers are made at the most immediate (or local) level, i.e. by constituent authorities, e.g. KCC,
for TfSE’s proposal to have the concurrent powers of a Local Transport Authority (LTA) for:

. The duty to secure the provision of bus services (Transport Act 1985);
. Quiality Bus Partnerships (The Bus Services Act 2017);
. Establishing Clean Air Zones (The Transport Act 2000 — Road User Charging).

Overall, carrying out the EqIA screening grid has identified that some protected characteristic groups could benefit from TfSE
becoming a statutory body in the way that KCC’s proposed response to the consultation supports. For example, individuals with
limited access to a private car (such as the elderly and young people) could benefit from TfSE making capital grants available for
the provision of public transport facilities — a power/function proposed that KCC’s proposed response supports.

Adverse Equality Impact Rating Low

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

6ST abed

Appendix B

Attestation

| have read and paid due regard to the Equality Analysis/Impact Assessment concerning Kent County Council’s response to

Transport for the South East’s draft proposal consultation. | agree with risk rating and the actions to mitigate any adverse impact(s)
that has /have been identified.

Head of Service

Signed: T. Marchant Name: Tom Marchant

Job Title: Head of Strategic Planning & Policy Date: 04/07/2019

DMT Member

Signed: S. Holt-Castle Name: Stephanie Holt-Castle
Job Title: Interim Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement Date: 08/07/19

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

09T abed

Part 1 Screening

Appendix B

Protected Group

Please provide a brief commentary on your findings. Fuller analysis should be undertaken in Part 2.

High negative

Medium negative

Low negative

impact impact impact
Age None None None
Disability None None None
Sex None None None

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553

High/Medium/Low Positive Impact
Evidence



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

T9T abed

Gender identity/ | None None None
Transgender
Race None None None

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553

Appendix B



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

29T abed

Appendix B

Religion and None None None None
Belief

Sexual None None None None
Orientation

Pregnancy and None None None

Maternity

Marriage and None None None

Civil

Partnerships

Carer’s None None None

Responsibilities

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

Appendix B

Part 2

Equality Analysis /Impact Assessment

Protected groups

From the initial screening, it is not anticipated that any protected
characteristics will be impacted from KCC'’s proposed response to Transport
for the South East’s (TfSE) consultation on their draft proposal to become a
statutory body.

Information and Data used to carry out your assessment

As of 2019, the current estimated population for Kent is 1,554,600*. Going
forward the population growth for Kent is expected to rise due to natural
increase (more births than deaths) and in addition more people moving into
Kent than leaving. Analysis of 2011 census data about equality and diversity
in Kent has been undertaken to better understand the demographics of the
Kent population and the impact of KCC’s response to TfSE’s consultation will
have. Focus has been made on groups that tend to rely on public transport,
with the access to a car being limited.

Equality and diversity data from 2011% shows that:

¢ Kent has an ageing population, as estimates indicate the number of
65+ year olds if forecast to increase by 55% between 2013 — 2033,
however the proportion of population aged under 65 is only forecasted
to increase by 6.9%.

e There are more female residents in Kent than male. In 2014, this
equated to 51% and 49% (770,300 females and 740,100 males).

e 93.7% of Kent residents are white, compared to 6.3% BME residents.

e The 2011 office labour market statistics census data for Kent has the
following statistics®:

o The number of males and females (16+) owning a car or van, or
having access to these within households, (including company
vehicles that are available for private use): 91% of males vs 88%
of females.

o The car or van availability by gender and for those who consider
they have a long-term health problem or disability: 86% of males
vs 83% of females.

o The number of females (16+) with a disability of which there are
no cars or vans in the household: 17% compared to 12% of
males.

! https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/information-and-data/Facts-and-figures-about-
Kent/population-and-census

2 https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/information-and-data/Facts-and-figures-about-
Kent/equality-and-diversity-data

* DC3407EW - Long-term health problem or disability by car or van availability by sex by age
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/dc3407ew

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.govRdgerékphone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

Appendix B

e KCC Road Casualties in Kent (Annual Review 2014)* — there was an
increase in the number of people killed or seriously injured (KSI)
compared to 2013 of 11% (594 KSils increasing to -658 KSIs).

e Casualty data for Kent roads between 2012-2014, shows there are
generally more male casualties than females across all age groups”:

o 0-16, there were 1,891 casualties of which 57% were male and
43% were female.

o 17-24, there were 4,126 casualties of which 58% were male and
42% were female.

o 25-64, there was a total of 10,029 casualties, which is the latest
out of all age sets of which 58% were male and 42% female.

e According to the Kent Public Health Observatory®, the percentage of
adults in Kent currently classed as physically inactive is 28.1%.
Currently 56.3% of the adult population meet the physical activity
guidelines of 150mins per week to improve or maintain health.

¢ In addition, the Kent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (Kent JSNA)
showed that obesity is at 64.6%, which translates into 771, 476
individuals who are 16+.

e The ONS 2011 Census Analysis — Method of Travel to Work in
England and Wales Report’ — found that in the South East 66.8% use
road vehicles as a method of travelling to work, however only 12.1%
use public transport and 13.9% choose to walk or cycle.

e Using the ONS 2011 Census to break down method of travel to work
by age (Age 16-65+) and gender shows in Kent that®:

o 14% of females travel to work using active travel compared to
10% of males in the county choosing to travel by bicycle or foot,
thereby males will further benefit from the promotion of active
travel.

o 13% of males choose to travel by rail, bus, minibus or coach.
The female population comes out slightly lower with 12%.

o 62% of males either use a car or van to travel to work or are a
passenger. The number of females under the same criteria
comes to 63%.

e For 2015-2016, September Quarter 2 the number of®:

o Older person’s bus passes were 266,949

o Disabled person’s bus passes were 20,312

o Disabled person companion bus passes were 5,133

e According to a study conducted by Transport for London (TfL)'°, BME
individuals are more likely to use buses than white individuals (although
they are less likely to travel by bicycle). In addition, they are more likely

* http://ww.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0020/11819/Personal-injury-crashes-in-
Kent.pdf
®> Transport Intelligence Team: Casualty data 2012-2014 against age and gender
® http://www.kpho.org.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/jsna-behaviour-and-lifestyle/jsna-
g)hysical-activity

http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171766_299766.pdf
® DC7101EWIla - Method of travel to work (2001 specification) by sex by age
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/dc7101ewla
° Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring for 2015-2016, Quarter 2 paper. Page 136
10 http://content.tfl.gov.uk/BAME-summary.pdf

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.goPagei églephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

Appendix B

to express concerns for their safety and more likely to be injured in
road accidents.

Who have you involved consulted and engaged?

In preparation of KCC'’s response to TfSE’s consultation, senior managers
and directors of KCC have been engaged and consulted to gather their views
of the proposed powers being sought be TISE. Members will also be
consulted through the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 16"
July 2019.

Analysis

The establishment of a statutory sub-national transport body for the South
East will generally have a positive impact for all Kent residents, commercial
operations and tourists as transport network improvements will improve their
experience of Kent and the South East region. The delivery and promotion of
improved transport infrastructure and public transport will increase
accessibility to key services, jobs and education throughout the region.

Overall, carrying out the screening grid has identified that a number of groups
will benefit from the aims and objectives of TfSE being a statutory body. For
example, individuals with limited access to a private car (such as the elderly
and young people) will benefit from promotion of modes of transport that are
different from a car in terms of affordability and accessibility. Those residents
who are unable to drive (such as some people with a disability, or again Age),
will benefit from improved travel options and this will also benefit carers
across Kent and the south east. Due to the nature of their travelling
preferences and independence from a car, women will also benefit from
affordable and improved transport services.

Adverse Impact

After completing the initial screening grid, it indicated that KCC proposed
response to TfSE’s consultation on its draft proposal will not have a significant
negative impact on any of the protected characteristics. Individual schemes
that are delivered as part of TfSE’s priorities will be subject to an individual
Equalities Impact Assessment as the schemes are developed and taken
forward for delivery to ensure that no protected characteristics are adversely
impacted.

Positive Impact

The aims and objectives of TfSE becoming a statutory body and promoting
schemes will encourage a better quality of life for all residents within Kent and
the South East, by providing a transport network of all modes that enables
access to jobs and services within the county. Therefore, it will benefit the
overall needs of residents within Kent and the South East region.

The older generation and families with younger children tend to rely on public
transport, and therefore will benefit from more affordable and accessible

transport solutions (bus and rail) that will enable them to enjoy their journeys
throughout Kent, for example through accessing jobs and education services.
The provision and promotion of active travel choices will potentially benefit all

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.govRdgeriétephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

Appendix B

residents’ health and well-being, but equally reducing congestion and pollution
will benefit road users. Disabled people, who rely on public transport, will also
be a beneficiary.

JUDGEMENT

¢ No major change - no potential for discrimination and all opportunities
to promote equality have been taken

Internal Action Required YES/NO

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.goPagei dephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk

/9T abed

Equality Impact Analysis/Assessment Action Plan — N/A

Appendix B

Protected
Characteristic

Issues identified | Action to be
taken

Expected
outcomes

Owner

Timescale

Cost
implications

Have the actions been included in your business/ service plan?

N/A

Appendix

Please include relevant data sets — N/A

Please forward a final signed electronic copy and Word version to the Equality Team by emailing diversityinfo@kent.gov.uk

If the activity will be subject to a Cabinet decision, the EqIA must be submitted to committee services along with the relevant

Cabinet report. Your EqIA should also be published.

The original signed hard copy and electronic copy should be kept with your team for audit purposes.

This document is available in other formats, Please contact
alternativeformats@kent.qgov.uk or telephone on 03000 421553



mailto:alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk
mailto:diversityinfo@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services
Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment
and Transport

To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019

Decision No: 19/00055

Subject: Contract for Coroners’ Post-Mortem Examinations, North West
Kent Coroners Area

Classification: Part 1 Report — Unrestricted

Part 2 Appendix - Exempt as defined in Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A

Future Pathway of Paper: N/A

Electoral Division: All in North-West Kent

Summary: This paper describes the proposed future provision of contractual
arrangements for mortuary and Post Mortem Examination (PME) services in the Mid
Kent & Medway coroner area.

Recommendation(s): The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked
to consider and endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for
Community and Regulatory Services on the decision to award a four-year contract to
Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust (MTW) for the provision of post mortem
(PM) facilities at Tunbridge Wells Hospital, Pembury for the Mid Kent & Medway
coroner area as shown as Appendix A.

1. Introduction

11

1.2

Coroners are independent judicial office holders, appointed by the local
authority within the coroner area. Local authorities have a legal obligation to
support the work of coroners, to fund all the costs of the service and to
provide the necessary resources to enable them to carry out their statutory
obligations under the Coroners and Justice Act 2009. This includes the
provision of contractual arrangements for mortuary and PME services.

KCC does not have its own public mortuary and has always commissioned
the NHS in Kent & Medway to provide this service as no such facilities exist
outside the NHS in Kent. For the administrative areas of KCC and Medway
Council, KCC is legally responsible for meeting all the costs of the coroner
service. However, Medway Council meets 15.3% of the total cost (based on
Medway population as a percentage of the total Kent & Medway population

Page 169



1.3

1.4

15

1.6

2.1

2.2

2.3

and this is updated annually using the mid-year population estimates) and the
detailed arrangements for this are set out in a SLA.

Coroners investigate deaths that have been reported to them if they have
reason to think that:

e The death was violent or unnatural;

e The cause of death is unknown; or

e The deceased died while in prison, police custody or another type of state
detention.

When a death is reported to the Coroner, he or she:

e Establishes whether an investigation is required.

e If yes, investigates to establish the identity of the person who has died and
how, when, and where they died, and any information to register the
death.

e Uses information discovered during the investigation to assist in the
prevention of other deaths where possible.

In some cases, the coroner will order a PME to establish the cause of death
and the deceased is taken by KCC’s body removal provider to a pre-designated
Kent NHS Trust mortuary for this purpose. On behalf of the Kent Senior
Coroners, KCC ensures access to body storage and PME facilities across the
four Kent coroner areas.

Mortuary and PME facilities are a business-critical function, a statutory
responsibility and, importantly should it fail, carries a high risk of reputational
damage to KCC, Medway Council, the Provider and the Kent and Medway
Senior Coroners.

The Report

The contract for mortuary and PME services at Tunbridge Wells Hospital, with
Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS (MTW) expired on the 31% March 2019 and
needs to be renewed. Although negotiations to renew the contract began in
August 2018, it was not possible to agree terms by the renewal date and so a
contract extension is currently in place.

In Kent the supplier market for coroners’ mortuary and PME facilities is limited
to the NHS as there are no private sector suppliers of this highly specialised
service.

Our Kent NHS partners only provide sufficient body storage capacity for deaths
at their own hospitals which are not subject to referral to the coroner, and for
coroner cases for the relevant coroner’s area based on past local demand.
Body storage capacity is therefore finite and during the winter period it is
sometimes necessary for the Trusts to hire temporary storage units for which
KCC contributes to the cost. Therefore, none of the other Kent NHS

Page 170



2.4

3.1

4.1

5.1

mortuaries have sufficient body storage capacity to absorb the PME activity
currently undertaken by MTW.

The nearest public mortuary is at Greenwich and past experience has shown
this not to be a suitable alternative location. We therefore have just one option
to continue provision of this statutory service and that is to enter into a new
contract with MTW. The benefit of this approach is the continued delivery of
this critical service with a proven provider who has delivered to a high level for
many years.

Financial Implications

Based on 2018-19 activity levels the estimated cost for the four years (based
on the proposed new rates) is £676,000. This is a 21% increase over the
previous contract and is an unavoidable pressure on the budget which the
service seeks to address through the Medium Term Financial Planning
process. The provider is required to perform the following services:

e 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year for short term refrigerator body
storage.

e 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year for long term freezer body storage.

e 8am - 4pm Monday to Friday for carrying out routine and complex
coroners PMEs.

e 8am - 4pm for the release of deceased to family funeral directors following
completion of a PME.

e Out of hours provision of mortuary services for forensic PMEs.

e 8am - 4pm Monday to Friday for ID of the deceased.

Further financial details are shown in the confidential appendix.
Legal considerations

This opportunity has not been subject to competition. This is supported by
Regulation 32(2)(b)(ii) of the Public Contract Regulations which states that a
Negotiated Procedure without Prior Publication may be used where services
can be supplied only by a particular economic operator where competition is
absent for technical reasons.

Equality considerations

An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out and there is no potential
for discrimination and all opportunities to promote equality are currently being
taken in line with KCC policies and statutory requirement. Should any issues
arise they will be dealt with in accordance with KCC policies and statutory
requirements.

Page 171



6. Conclusions

6.1 Local authorities have a legal obligation to support the work of coroners and
this includes the provision of contractual arrangements for mortuary and PME
services.

6.2  The supplier market for coroners’ mortuary and PME facilities is limited to the
NHS and a small number of local authority owned public mortuaries as there
are no private sector suppliers of this highly specialised service.

6.3 The only viable option given the very specialist nature of the work and
absence of any alternative providers in the current market is to renew the
contract with current provider without competition.

7. Recommendation

Recommendation:

7.1  The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and
endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Community
and Regulatory Services on the decision to award a four-year contract to
Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust (MTW) for the provision of post
mortem (PM) facilities at Tunbridge Wells Hospital, Pembury for the Mid Kent
& Medway coroner area as shown as Appendix A.

8. Contact details
Report Author:

Giles Adey

Contracts & Projects Manager
07740 186032
giles.adey@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

Stephanie Holt-Castle

Interim Director, Environment, Planning and Enforcement
(03000) 412064

Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

Page 172



mailto:giles.adey@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Stephanie.holt-castle@kent.gov.uk

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL — PROPOSED RECORD OF DECISION

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY:

Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for 19/00055
Community and Regulatory Services

| For publication

| Key decision: YES

Subject Matter / Title of Decision
Contract for Coroners’ Post-Mortem Examinations, North West Kent Coroners Area

Decision:

As Cabinet Member for, Community and Regulatory Services, | agree to award a four-year contract
to Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust (MTW) for the provision of post mortem (PM) facilities at
Tunbridge Wells Hospital, Pembury for the Mid Kent & Medway coroner area.

Reason(s) for decision:

Coroners are independent judicial office holders, appointed by the local authority within the coroner
area. Local authorities have a legal obligation to support the work of coroners, to fund all the costs
of the service and to provide the necessary resources to enable them to carry out their statutory
obligations under the Coroners and Justice Act 2009. This includes the provision of contractual
arrangements for mortuary and PME services.

Cabinet Committee recommendations and other consultation:
The proposed decision and principles for future charging is being discussed at the Environment and
Transport Cabinet Committee on 16 July

Any alternatives considered and rejected:
None

Any interest declared when the decision was taken and any dispensation granted by the
Proper Officer:

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



/1T abed

Appendix B

KCC - Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate (GET).
Equality Analysis / Impact Assessment (EqlA) template

Name of decision, policy, procedure, project or service:

Renewal of contracts with the NHS for the provision of mortuary facilities and staff to carrying out post mortems on behalf of the
Kent Coroners.

Brief description of policy, procedure, project or service

Kent County Council (KCC) is responsible for supporting the Senior Coroners for Kent and Medway to provide the coroner service
to Kent and Medway residents.

The Coroner has a duty to investigate a death where there are reasons to suspect that:

e The deceased died a violent or unnatural death;
e The cause of death is unknown;
e The deceased died while in custody or otherwise in state detention.

When a death is reported to the Coroner, he or she
e Establishes whether an investigation is required,;
e If yes, investigates to establish the identity of the person who has died; how when and where they died and any information
to register the death; and
e Uses information discovered during the investigation to assist in the prevention of other deaths where possible.
In some cases the Coroner will require a post mortem examination by a suitably qualified medical practitioner such as a Pathologist

to find out the cause of death. This involves an invasive procedure to openand examining the body and in some cases body fluid
and tissue samples will be taken for analysis. A new technique is becoming available in some part of the country (nearest Oxford

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



8/ T abed

Appendix B

and Birmingham) whereby the deceased has a non invasive post mortem procedure, a CT scan which in some cases but not all
can establish the cause of death. This procedure is favoured by some religious groups (Jewish and Muslim) and in such cases the
Coroner is able to consider requests from next of kin ((NOK)/personal representative)) for a CT of the deceased. If the Coroner
agrees to a CT scan, and it is not conclusive, the Coroner will order an invasive post mortem. By law the Coroner is not required to
obtain consent to the post mortem examination from the NOK. The NOK cannot attend a post mortem but the coroner is legally
required to tell the NOKwhere and when the post mortem will take place and the NOKmay ask to be represented at the post
mortem by a doctor of their choice. A Coroners Officer acting on behalf of the Coroner will explain this to the NOK and the reasons
why the post mortem is necessary, and what happens after the post mortem. The NOK will also be sent a copy of the Guide to
Coroner Services which is published by the Ministry of Justice. This gives and overview of coroners and investigations and the
standards of service that can be expected.

The Coroner has physical control of the body (as evidence) from the time he/she has been informed of the death, until the time the
all the necessary enquiries have been concluded, at which point the body can be released to the family. The Coroner’s control of
the body is absolute (jurisdiction) and supercedes any claim on the body by the family, or for example any other organisations such
as the police.

The NOKaor a representative of their choice may be asked to formally identify the body and sometimes this will take place at the
mortuary. This is usually done through a glass window rather than being in the same room. Viewings by the NOKare at the
discretion of Coroner but are not normally allowed as the expectation is that viewings take place at the funeral directors premises
after the coroner has released the body.

On behalf of the Kent Senior Coroners, KCC is responsible for putting contracts in place for the provision of mortuary facilities,
body storage and specialist staff to carry out post mortems to help establish the cause of death. The contract for post mortems for
the North West Kent Coroner area is due for renewal on 1 April 2019.

Aims and Objectives

e Ensure statutory compliance by KCC and the Kent Senior Coroners
e Ensure best value in the use of public funds through a formal procurement process

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



6.1 abed

Appendix B

JUDGEMENT

No major change - no potential for discrimination and all opportunities to promote equality are currently being taken in line with

KCC policies and statutory requirement. Should any issues arise they will be dealt with in accordance with KCC policies and
statutory requirements.

| have found the Adverse Equality Impact Rating to be Low

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



08T abed

Appendix B

GET Document Control

Revision History

V0.1 28/07/19 Debbie Large

V1

(this should
be assigned
to the version
the Director
signs off)

Document Sign-Off (this must be both the relevant Head of Service and the relevant Director)

Attestation
| have read and paid due regard to the Equality Analysis/Impact Assessment. | agree with the actions to mitigate any adverse
impact(s) that has /have been identified.

Debbie Large Head of Service 28-07-19
Stephanie Holt- Interim Director
Castle

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



TQT abed

Part 1 - Screening

Appendix B

Protected Group

You MUST provide a brief commentary as to your findings, or this
EqglA will be returned to you unsigned

High Negative Imp
act

Medium Negative
Impact

Low Negative Impact

High/Medium/Low
Favourable Impact

Age

NOK are not allowed
to attend a post
mortem. There is no
age restriction as
regards attending an
identification or a
viewing although in the
latter case, the
presumption is for this
to take place at the
funeral director’s
premises. For the
elderly and children,
where it is deemed
necessary and
appropriate for them to
attend, it is for the
NOK, not the Coroner
to arrange for them to
be accompanied at an
identification or
viewing.

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Appendix B

Disability If someone with a
disability wishes to
attend an identification
or viewing, it is for the
NOK to arrange for
them to be
accompanied if
necessary. The
Coroners Officer will
explain the access
arrangements to the
NOK, including if there
are any restrictions
and mortuary staff will
be on hand to assist if

> necessary.

® Gender There is no impact on

o the gender

N characteristic.
Gender identity/ Toilet facilities at the
Transgender hospital are provided

by the hospital Trust
not the Coroner and
are outside the scope
of the contract.
Otherwise there is no
impact on the gender
identity/transgender
characteristic.

Race If the NOK attending
an identification cannot

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Appendix B

speak English, and
this is made known to
the Coroner in
advance, the Coroners
Officer can arrange for
a translator to be

present.
Religion and The Coroner is able to
Belief consider a request for

a non invasive post
mortem on religious
and belief grounds but
is under no obligation
to agree to it. If the
Coroner agrees to a
non invasive post
mortem and it is not
conclusive the Coroner
is likely to order a full
or partial invasive post
mortem. There is no
appeal mechanism
against a Coroners
judicial decision to
order an invasive post
mortem other than by
way of a Judicial
Review through the
courts. For some
faiths it is custom and
practice to bury the

€8T abed

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Appendix B

deceased within 24-48
hours although in
cases where the death
is referred to the
Coroner, this is not
possible as the need
for the Coroner to
complete his/her
enquiries takes
precedence. The
Coroner will though
make every effort to
release the body as
soon as possible after
the post mortem

5 examination.
® Sexual Orientation There is no impact on
o the sexual orientation
B characteristic.
Pregnancy and If the NOK attending
Maternity an identification or

viewing is pregnant
and has any special
needs it is for the NOK
to arrange this with
other family members
or friends. If the NOK
attending an
identification or
viewing has young
children that need

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Appendix B

caring for whilst the
identification or
viewing is in progress
it is for the NOK to put
these arrangements in
place with other family
members or friends.
The Coroner is able to
consider a request to
meet any reasonable
costs for putting
alternative care
arrangements in place,
but only for an
identification.

Marriage and Civil
Partnerships

GgT abed

There is no impact on
the marriage/civil
partnership
characteristic.

Carer’s
Responsibilities

If the NOK attending
an identification or a
viewing is a carer, it is
for the NOK to put
alternative care
arrangements in place
during his/her
absence. The Coroner
Is able to consider a
request to meet any
reasonable costs for
putting alternative care

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Appendix B

arrangements in place,
but only for an
identification.

Council

kent.gov.uk

98T abed

Date Document Updated 08/07/2019

This document is available in other formats. Please contact diversityinfo@Kent.gov.uk or telephone on 03000 415 762



Agenda Item 17

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment &

Transport
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 16 July 2019
Decision No: N/A
Subject: Serious and Organised Crime
Classification: Part 1 Report — Unrestricted

Part 2 Appendix - Exempt as defined in Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972

Electoral Divisions: All divisions

Summary: The purpose of this paper is to provide Cabinet Committee with an
update on Serious and Organised Crime in Kent.

Recommendation(s):

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse KCC’s approach to
Serious and Organised Crime.

1. Introduction

1.1 Serious and organised crime (SOC) affects more UK citizens, more often, than
any other national security threat’.

1.2 It is estimated to cost the UK economy at least £37billion per year, with this
cost increasing year on year.

1.3 The main categories of serious offences covered by the term ‘serious organised
crime’ are child sexual exploitation and abuse, illegal drugs, illegal firearms,
fraud, money laundering and other economic crime, bribery and corruption,
organised immigration crime, modern slavery and human trafficking, and
cybercrime.

1.4 Organised crimeis defined as serious crime planned, coordinated and
conducted by people working together on a continuing basis. Organised
criminals working together for a criminal activity or activities are referred to as
an organised crime group (OCG).

! National Crime Agency National Strategic Assessment of Serious and Orgnaised Crime 2019

Page 187



1.5 At the end of June 2018, the National Crime Agency was aware of 4,542
organised crime groups operating in the UK.

2. The Home Office Serious and Organised Crime (SOC) Strategy

2.1 The Home Office Serious and Organised Crime strategy (SOC Strategy) was
reviewed and published in November 2018 and calls for local authorities and a
range of partners to play an important role alongside the Police to tackle SOC
and OCGs.

2.2 The SOC Strategy sets out how the Government ‘will use the full force of the
State, aligning collective efforts to target and disrupt serious and organised
criminals, equip the whole of government, the private sector, communities and
individual citizens to play their part in a single collective endeavour to rid
society of the harms of serious and organised crime, whether they be child
sexual exploitation and abuse, the harm caused by drugs and firearms, or the
day to day corrosive effects on communities across the country. The
Government will prevent people from engaging in serious and organised
crimes; protect victims, organisations and systems from its harms; and prepare
for when it occurs, mitigating the impact...’

2.3 The SOC Strategy details four overarching objectives:

e Relentless disruption and targeted action against the organised criminal
networks who are causing the most harm.

¢ Building the highest levels of defence and resilience in vulnerable people,
communities, businesses and systems.

e Stopping the problem at source, identifying and supporting those at risk of
engaging in criminality.

e Establishing a single, whole system approach.

3. The National Context
3.1 Key national statistics include:

e a 25% increase in firearm offences between 2015/16 and 2017/18.

e 43% of UK businesses identified at least one cyber security breach or
attack in 2017.

e A 35% increase in potential modern slavery and human trafficking victims
referred to the National Referral Mechanism in 2017.

¢ Online child sexual exploitation and abuse referrals have risen by 700% in
the last four years.

¢ In the year ending June 2018, there were 3.3 million fraud incidents in
England and Wales®.

2 All stats above have been taken from the Home Office opening statement at the SOC Strategy 2018 London
Workshop

Page 188



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

Furthermore, 44% of OCGs are connected to at least one limited company?. In
2016/17, the Home Office organised pilots with Local Authorities (1 County
Council, 1 District Council, 2 London Borough Councils and their Police
counterparts) to understand the threat that serious organised crime poses to
publicly procured services in local authorities (LAs) and how to respond to that
threat. Procurement is considered to be lucrative and attractive to serious
organised criminals because there are multiple ways to commit fraud, including
price fixing, bid rigging, double invoicing etc. The pilot adopted a two-phase
approach — the first was a data washing exercise which checked LA data
against the Police Organised Crime Group Mapping data. From this, 10 ‘direct’
links with criminal activity were found in two pilot areas - one of which was a
County Council. The second phase followed up the links identified taking
forward joint LA/Police work.

The pilot identified supplier sectors and areas that were potentially of higher
risk from organised crime group exploitation — waste firms and taxis were
considered the highest risk.

SOC in Kent
Key statistics for Kent include:

e Between April 2010 and September 2018, knife crime in the county
increased by 152%.*

e In 2018, Kent Police carried out 171 investigations into slavery offences

e 3 of the 9 case studies featured in the NCA National Strategic
Assessment featured Kent, 2 in relation to incidents that had occurred at
Dover point of entry and 1 in relation to the perpetrator living in Kent.

More detailed information for Kent is provided in the confidential appendix.
The Kent Approach

The SOC Strategy calls for local authorities and a range of partners to play an
important role alongside the Police to tackle SOC and OCGs.

Chair of the Local Government Association’s Safer and Stronger Communities
Board, Cllr Simon Blackburn, responded to the launch of the SOC Strategy in
November 2018 stating “Councils play a key role in tackling organised crime
such as serious violence and modern slavery, and protecting children and
vulnerable adults from exploitation. It is good that the Government
acknowledges this in the strategy, but what we really need to see is long-term
investment in local services, so we can identify signs of exploitation and
intervene at an early stage. This isn’t just about law enforcement, but
communities too.”

8 Independent review into SOC in the waste sector — November 2018
* The Guardian (20 March 2019) County lines drugs blamed for Kent's big rise in knife crime, online,
https://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2019/mar/10/county-lines-drugs-kent-knife-crime-rise-cuts

Page 189


https://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2019/mar/10/county-lines-drugs-kent-knife-crime-rise-cuts

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

The Home Office Serious and Organised Crime Strategy champions the ‘4P’
approach - Pursue, Prevent, Protect and Prepare - to tackle and disrupt serious
and organised criminals, groups and gangs.

Generally, Kent Police is the lead responsible agency (however this is not
always the case) and the named Lead Responsible Officer manages the
creation of a ‘4P’ plan.

Kent Police has established a strategic multi-agency working group with key
local and national enforcement partners to enable more coordinated and
collaborative working on the issue. is currently represented by Barbara Cooper
and Natalie Liddiard.

Two meetings have taken place so far and identified the continuing need for
information and intelligence sharing between members.

KCC currently provides a range of frontline services and back office functions
which contribute to work under the 4P headings. However, there are
opportunities to coordinate better this activity which will serve to increase
robustness and ensure that operational activity is underpinned by Kent wide
intelligence. The locally based sharing of essential information and impactive
interventions will also be developed further.

As one of the largest employers and procurers in Kent, it is essential that the
policies, procedures and training for staff is appropriate and that the risk posed
to the organisation by Serious and Organised Crime is minimised as much as
possible.

Funding has been agreed for a suitably graded officer to lead a cross-
directorate county-wide programme reviewing how KCC is responding to, and
is prepared for, the issues and threats that serious organised crime poses to
the Authority.

5.10 Due to the sensitive nature of this work, further details of the approach in Kent,

6.

and the actions that KCC are taking in tackling this can be found in the
Confidential Appendix.

Recommendation(s)

Recommendation(s):

6.1 The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse KCC’s approach to
Serious and Organised Crime.
7. Contact details

Report Author

o Natalie Liddiard, Intelligence & Standards Manager, Public Protection

Page 190




¢ 03000 413407
e natalie.liddiard@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director:

e Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director for Growth, Environment and Transport
¢ 03000 415981
e Barbara.cooper@kent.gov.uk

Page 191


mailto:natalie.liddiard@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Barbara.cooper@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

From: Benjamin Watts, General Counsel
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee on 16 July 2019
Subject: Work Programme 2019 -2020

Classification: Unrestricted

Past and Future Pathway of Paper: Standard agenda item

Summary: This report gives details of the proposed work programme for the
Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee.

Recommendation: The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to
consider and agree its Work Programme for 2019/20.

1. Introduction

1.1 The proposed Work Programme, appended to the report, has been compiled
from items in the Future Executive Decision List and from actions identified
during the meetings and at agenda setting meetings, in accordance with the
Constitution.

1.2 Whilst the Chairman, in consultation with the Cabinet Members, is responsible
for the programme’s fine tuning, this item gives all Members of this Cabinet
Committee the opportunity to suggest amendments and additional agenda
items where appropriate.

2. Work Programme 2019/20

2.1 The proposed Work Programme has been compiled from items in the Future
Executive Decision List and from actions arising and from topics, within the
remit of the functions of this Cabinet Committee, identified at the agenda setting
meetings [Agenda setting meetings are held 6 weeks before a Cabinet
Committee meeting, in accordance with the Constitution].

2.2 The Cabinet Committee is requested to consider and note the items within the
proposed Work Programme, set out in appendix A to this report, and to suggest
any additional topics to be considered at future meetings, where appropriate.

2.3 The schedule of commissioning activity which falls within the remit of this
Cabinet Committee will be included in the Work Programme and considered at
future agenda setting meetings to support more effective forward agenda
planning and allow Members to have oversight of significant services delivery
decisions in advance.

2.4 When selecting future items, the Cabinet Committee should give consideration
to the contents of performance monitoring reports. Any ‘for information’ items

Page 197



2.5

will be sent to Members of the Cabinet Committee separately to the agenda
and will not be discussed at the Cabinet Committee meetings.

In addition to the formal work programme, the Cabinet Member for Economic
Development, the Chairman of the Cabinet Committee and other interested
Members are intending to visit all district councils over the next two years
starting with Dover, Dartford, Swale and Thanet.

Conclusion

It is vital for the Cabinet Committee process that the Committee takes
ownership of its work programme to deliver informed and considered decisions.
A regular report will be submitted to each meeting of the Cabinet Committee to
give updates of requested topics and to seek suggestions for future items to be
considered. This does not preclude Members making requests to the
Chairman or the Democratic Services Officer between meetings, for
consideration.

5.

Recommendation: The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is

asked to consider and agree its Work Programme for 2019/20.

6. Background Documents: None

7. Contact details

Report Author: Lead Officer:

Georgina Little Benjamin Watts

Democratic Services Officer General Counsel

03000 414043 03000 410466
Georgina.little@kent.gov.uk benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

Page 198



mailto:benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

Appendix A

Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee - WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20
Updated — 05/07/2019

Portfolio Dashboard At each meeting
Budget Consultation Annually (November/December)
Final Draft Budget Annually (January)
Annual Equality and Diversity Report Annually (June/July)
Risk Register — Strategic Risk Register Annually (March)
Winter Service Policy Annually (September)
Work Programme At each meeting
10 October 2019
No Item Key Decision Date added to WP Additional Comments
1 Intro/ Web announcement (Standing Item)
2 Apologies and Subs (Standing Item)
3 Declaration of Interest (Standing Item)
4 U | Minutes (Standing Item)
59 | Verbal Update (Standing Item)
6 — | Archaeology Report and Presentation
7 © | Performance Dashboard
8 Tunbridge Wells Transport Strategy
9 Transport for South East (TfSE) - endorse TfSE proposal
10 Household Waste Recycling Centre
11 Food Processing
12 Waste Transfer Station and Bulk Processing
13 Public Rights of Way Asset Management
14 Winter Service Policy
15 Work Programme (Standing Item)
EXEMPT
16 Contract Management (Standing Item)




29 November 2019

Item

Key
Decision

Date added to
WP

Additional Comments

Intro/ Web announcement (Standing ltem)

Apologies and Subs (Standing Item)

Declaration of Interest (Standing ltem)

Minutes (Standing Item)

Verbal Update (Standing Item)

Performance Dashboard

N[OOI WIN| -

Work Programme (Standing Item)

EXEMPT

Contract Management (Standing Item)

24 January 2020

Z

Item

Key
Decision

Date added to
WP

Additional Comments

Intro/ Web announcement (Standing Item)

00z|eh®d

Apologies and Subs (Standing Item)

Declaration of Interest (Standing Item)

Minutes (Standing Item)

Verbal Update (Standing Item)

Performance Dashboard

N[OOI WIN| -

Work Programme (Standing Item)

EXEMPT

Contract Management (Standing Item)




24 March 2020

Item

Key
Decision

Date added to
WP

Additional Comments

Intro/ Web announcement (Standing ltem)

Apologies and Subs (Standing Item)

Declaration of Interest (Standing ltem)

Minutes (Standing Item)

Verbal Update (Standing Item)

Performance Dashboard

N[OOI WIN| -

Work Programme (Standing Item)

EXEMPT

Contract Management (Standing Item)

15 May 2020

Z

Item

Key
Decision

Date added to
WP

Additional Comments

102 Shec

Intro/ Web announcement (Standing ltem)

Apologies and Subs (Standing Item)

Declaration of Interest (Standing ltem)

Minutes (Standing Item)

Verbal Update (Standing Item)

Performance Dashboard

N[OOI WIN|

Work Programme (Standing Item)

EXEMPT

Contract Management (Standing Item)




17/00084 — A247 Sutton Road, Maidstone at its junction with Willington street

18/00037 - M2 Junction 5

Thanet Parkway Commissioning Plan

19/00050 — A20 Coldharbour Roundabout Improvement

19/00052 — Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Allocation Policy

20z abed



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2019
	7 19/00051 - Fastrack Full Network - Bean Road Tunnel
	Item 7 - 1900051 - Appendix A - Fastrack Full Network – Bean Road Tunnel - PROD
	Item 7 - 1900051 - Appendix B - Overarching Agreement for Fastrack Tunnels Works
	Item 7 - 1900051 - Appendix C - Drawing No. B2350500-JAC-HA-XX-DR-D-0001 Rev P01
	Item 7 - 1900051 - Appendix D - EqIA

	8 KCC Bus Feedback Portal - Summary of Feedbacks Received January to May 2019
	Item 8 - Appendix A - Bus Feedback Portal - Summary of Feedback Jan to May 2019

	9 Performance Dashboard
	10 2018/19 Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate Equality Review
	11 Gypsy and Traveller Service - Emerging Policies
	12 19/00053 - Dover Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) - Infrastructure delivery partner with Dover District Council
	Item 12 - 1900053 - Appendix A - PROD
	Item 12 - 1900053 - Appendix B - EqIA

	13 19/00054 - KCC Country Parks - Decision to approve fees and charges for Pay and Display and Season Ticket charging, and the principles for establishing future fees and charges
	Item 13 - 1900054 - Appendix 2 - KCC Country Parks Fees and Charges - PROD
	Item 13 - 1900054 - Appendix 3 - EQIA
	Item 13 - 1900054 - Appendix 4 - DPIA

	14 Fly Tipping Enforcement Plan
	15 Kent County Council's Response to Transport for the South East's Proposal Consultation
	Item 15 - Appendix B - EqIA Screening on KCC Response to TfSE Propsoal Consultation

	16 19/00055 - Contract for Coroners' Post-Mortem Examinations, North West Kent Coroners Area
	Item 16 - 1900055 - EXEMPT Report - Contract for Post-Mortem Examinations
	Item 16 - 1900055 - Appendix A - PROD - Contract for Post-Mortem Examinations
	Item 16 - 1900055 - Appendix B - EQIA - Contract for Post-Mortem Examinations

	17 Serious and Organised Crime
	Item 17 - EXEMPT Report - Serious and Organised Crime

	18 Work Programme

